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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFHHEHE

2020
—E-f

—_ ==

HK$'000

BT

14,885,044

14,939,550

2021

B —fF
HK$'000

BT

16,183,872

2022
B C

HK$'000
BEFT

15,832,646

2023
SES

HKS'000
AR

14,997,714

2,414,824 2,274,167 2,949,461 3,172,657 3,393,130
12,470,220 12,665,383 13,234,411 12,659,989 11,604,584
BUEHKS32.947t  BIEHKS33.457T  BMEHKS34.967  BIEHKS33.445c  BESHK$30.657T
429,984 162,560 427,302 86,148 (814,937)
BEHKSL14T  BEHKS0.437w  BEHKSLI3T  BMHKS0.237T  BRHKS(2.15)7T
BIHKS0.607T  BIEHKS0.407T  BUEHKS0.467T  BHEHKS0.387T HBIHKS0.285T

53% 93%

41%

165%

(13%)




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHARTS A& M B ERE &
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HONG KONG &i#
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present a review of the Group’s business
performance, with some observations from the overall
economic environment of 2023 and expectations for the year
ahead.

2023 REVIEW

Global GDP for 2023 is now estimated to be around 3.1%,
slightly higher than the original forecast in January 2023. The
world economy has shown remarkable resilience. It recovered
from the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ukraine Crisis, the still
rampant inflation in early 2023, and the following widespread
monetary tightening. With a restrictive monetary policy and
food and energy prices retreating, headline and core inflation
stabilized and fell in 2023. However, core inflation is still not
under complete control in most countries, and unit labour costs
are still above the target inflation cores. The unemployment
rates have remained low, in general, in most countries in 2024.

Global financial conditions have recently started to calm down
with the prospect of lowering interest rates. The long-term
bond yields did not stage a dramatic drop, but the volatility has
receded, and the equities have strengthened. Nevertheless, The
monetary tightening has left an implant in the real estate
sector: Prices declined with the rising mortgage rate. The
volume of transactions has continued to drop in residential and
commercial real estate markets.

The US equities had an impressive year, with the Dow Jones
rising 14%, the S&P 500 rising 24%, and the Nasdaq Composite
rising 43% for the year. The US economy grew 2.5% in 2023,
exceeding the original forecast. This growth was driven by solid
consumer spending, a revival in manufacturing investment, and
increased Government purchases. The unemployment rate has
stayed below 4% for 22 straight months. Due to the recovery of
food and energy supply chains, inflation showed a downward
trend for almost a year.

The European stock market also did well; the Stoxx 600 ended
2023 with a year-to-year increase of 12.64%. The Euro area GDP
has grown around 0.5% in 2023. The overall stagnation of the
region was partly caused by the loss of cheap Russian energy
and the weak demand in the Chinese market.

FRERIMRER :

TANRRAE BTE2HEEE_ZT_=
FZHERRE > URAANHEREHR
BZBRS  HREFERZALE

—E_=F[EE

REB ARG ) —S - =F2IKGDP
N&R31% BBER -2 _=F—AK%
YRR - HRLERIBHEZHIE
wHrEEE SRl —_ "=

MNARB R ERURBEREZNEE
REPRERR - BERFIMEEEEER
Uk emiEREREE > — 2=

RSB DBIRFIRE T 28T
REHBEROZOBIRNDKRTEES
BUSFRANESRERERZO =
T NFAZSHERVRERBIDMER
TEBAEKTF o

BERSHAREE  2RERIRER
L%%@F%EOE%%%Wﬁ$ﬁm
BHIRBIZUTEL - (BIRBNMERSS > Ik
EE e A ERBREHEHETERE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

Chong Hing Bank Centre BIESR1THI

The UK struggled to escape economic stagnation in 2023. The
UK has a meager growth of 0.1%, but the December 2023 PMI
grew more than expected to a six-month high, mainly from the
strong bounce back of the service sector. Inflation and the
resultant monetary tightening led to a higher mortgage rate,
which has constrained household spending, as well as business
investment, while productivity has been almost flat since 2007.
The labour market remained tight with only 4% unemployment
rate.

In 2023, Japan had economic growth above 1% and a
persistently low unemployment rate. Nikkei 225, the Japanese
stock index, was Asia’s best-performing index. It recorded a 28%
gain in 2023, touching a new 33-year high, thanks partly to a
weak Yen policy.

Australia exhibits a similar pattern to other mature economies,
except the US, where the rise of inflation and the corresponding
monetary squeeze led to a sharp discount in real household
disposable income, hence weaker consumption. The Australian
economy experienced the slowest growth to some 2% for the
year 2023.

“EIFHEABNERKEEE &
EEREEA01% B2 2=+
BRREBLIENIGHETER > 8I/NEA
e FEBERRBENBIRE
BARAMME 2 MR G B EREFIEIKIE
FELFA > EREITHREZHMEER
B MEENBZSSTLHEURETH
T BMAOTHMARR REXES
4% o

TR FHAREERBIALS 0 KE
KIFEEN - BAKREIEHHRK 2254
DHRRRENEH EEZZT =
#R1528% MV R > MR 33FRMIE >
I ERE BEEZEBRNEE -

BUINBY 1B L S L th Bl P BE AR 1L (FRSE
E5h) - i@k EAMBRHNE B REER
BERXEASZEWAKRETE > ME
HOHBRES®  _T=FRNKSEER
BREXRIE > E492%
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & Serviced Residences ONE-EIGHT-ONEBERR#H X (EE

China’s GDP in 2023 grew 5.2% annually, reaching RMB126.06
(US$17.52) trillion, still topping all the major economies.
Economic indicators show a steady recovery, except for the real
estate sector. The country’s value-added industrial output went
up 4.6% overtaking the 3.6% growth in 2022. The annual added
value of the service industry grew 5.8%, with the hospitality and
catering industry topping the rest with 14.5% growth, reflecting
a recovery from the COVID-strike 2022.

For 2023, China’s real estate development fell by 9.6%, in line
with market expectations. In the Foshan area, both the new
property supply and transactions have dropped by 66% and
21%, respectively. A-grade commercial properties in Shanghai
experienced a 24% increase in supply in terms of area. The net
intake of office space has been reduced by 17% from 2022. The
average rental was about RMB7.2 per day, p.s.m., a drop of 6%,
with a vacancy rate of 20%.

S =FhHGDPEE RS52% > &#
12606 BET AR (17528 E%7T) »
MUBEEKETELERZE o KEIEIE
B RREMETTESS ) HMEHEHE
WIELEH - 2R ITEEMEER46%
BBR_E - _F36%MNIERERE o RIS
E2FIER58%  HPBEEMEMREN
145% g RAUBHEE > RT -2
FHEEBERNER o

“ETCFHEEMERME TPE.6%
REeamizEE - BLUtEHREHEEEM
RRXED R FR66%F21% o L5 B4R
e AT 0 24% » B FIEF R4
ERZETFRADI7% 0 FHEHHEELN
ABRETHARARME7.27T > THE6% >
EEERAH20% o
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

The Government has been promptly implementing measures to
increase demand for residential housing in 2023. Major policies
included lowering the initial payment for first-home buyers and
second-home buyers, adjusting the definition of first-home
buyers, making it cheaper to buy properties, lowering the
mortgage rate, and lowering the bank rate — hence the
mortgage rate. The four restrictions in “purchase restriction,
foreign purchase restriction, loan restriction, and price
restriction”, which had been used to curb investment demand,
were, to various degrees tuned down in most of the cities. There
were also various tax incentives for residential purchases, first
introduced in 2022 and have been extended to the end of 2025.

China also adopted various monetary measures to ease the
overall economy in general. The reserve deposit rate was
reduced twice in March and September 2023, releasing
approximately 1 trillion yuan in the economy. it has
implemented various measures to help small and medium-
sized private enterprises. We expect the continuous support of
the economy by the Government.

Hong Kong had a lackluster 2023, with a revised annual GDP
increase of 3.2% as compared to a contraction of 3.7% in 2022.
Hang Seng Index ended the year at 17,047, an annual drop of
13.8%. But having said that, it has full employment, a moderate
underlying consumer price inflation averaging 1.7% in the year.
The export of services rose significantly to 22% due to the
revivals of visitor arrivals after lifting the COVID-19 restrictions.

But the headline news was with the property sector, the Hong
Kong mortgage rate increasing from 1.5% in 2022 to 4.125% in
2023. This increase resulted in a 6.8% drop in the average
residential price, worse on smaller units, and the volume (in
terms of value) dropped to HK$4.7 billion, a ten-year low.
Demand for Grade A office was weak; the vacancy rate of Grade
A office rose to 12.9% by December 2023, and Central District’s
vacancy rate has gone up to 9.9%. The overall rent was down
5.3% in 2023 compared to 2022. The rental for the retail shops
of High Street shops and prime shopping centers rose 14.8%
and 2.7%, respectively, in 2023. But these shops’ rental rates are
still over 70% below the historical peak in 2014. The vacancy
rate in High Street is 11.6% at the year’s end.

“EC-FPEBAMEEBRAEE
BRNER > TERROEREBRER
M_EBHNBENIMR - AEEERNES
FEERE A A ~ FRRERITH R » Mm%
BRIBERFER - Al BRINGIRER
KBy TPREE « RYME ~ [RE ~ R(E) IR
FREFEHE > EARED WA FEIZE
B - EASBHHEEERENRIK
BEBRYBERE_SAFRGER ©

FEERINT SEE KRR RER
KEBH _E_=ZF=BMABEmE
BREGEREEESE ARBEERTAOA
REE18ERT > S EEmE P/ NG
¥ EMET BN EEEHCERHES

£ o

TECICFFEBARERREN  EBLEER
HEREGDPIER32% > BB _FIK
A837%° IREISH B2 FUER17,047 7 >
FEIR13.8% © AT » BBBERT RO
¥, 2EHEKHEBEYEBRAN » T3
#17% c R RREHERFEHNRE
RS RFBEOEEIERT 22% °

ECAMINHEREMETE B
HIEBF R —_ S - _FEM15% EHAE
TET=ZFM4125% 0 ERFHEEE
BTET 68%  BUNEBMHNEKIEEK >
RZE (HEEHE) BE47EET A
TERME - BREFIBEREE > &
EIZET=F4+ZH BREFEZTE
EEAZFE129% PIRETEXHE
9.9% o BEEIHS L — T~ —F FFE53% ©
TEI=FEEHEHMEERBYPROLN
ZEEHEEDH LR T 14.8%F2.7% © B
EEEHNESNBRIRER S
—NENEFIEE FRGEHEEEX
2A11.6% °
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

In the Chief Executive Policy Address in October 2023, to boost
the property market, the Government has reversed part of the
demand-side management measure first introduced some to
ten years ago: halving Buyer’s Stamp Duty(BSD) and the New
Residential Stamp Duty(NRSD) to 7.5%; shortening Special
Stamp Duty(SSD) levied on property resales from three years to
two years; introducing a stamp duty suspension arrangement
for eligible income talents to enhance further the stamp duty
refund arrangement introduced in 2022.

BUSINESS RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a
loss of HK$873.1 million, compared with the profit of
approximately HK$88.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Group's results from profit to loss was mainly due to
the fair value loss of investment properties and impairment loss
recognised in respect of properties under development for sale
and properties held for sale. As these losses are non-cash in
nature, they will have no effect on the Group’s operating cash
flow. Nonetheless, the overall financial and business position of
the Group remains strong and healthy.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend, at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 23 May
2024, the payment of the final cash dividend of HK$0.17 per
share. Together with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.11 per
share paid on 15 September 2023, the total cash dividend
amounted to HK$0.28 per share for the year 2023.

EZZ2_=F+AN(TRREMBERS)
Fo BiRIREMETS 0 BAFBUE T 3
DTEREREENEREEEE . &
B RENTER (BSD) FFT{EEENTEFRR (NRSD)
BET5% ; HEEEEHWNIERIENTE
R (SSD)HAPR I = F4AREIEEME ; HHE
BULA BRI AA HHENTER B ELHE
MigE—HMe —F - —F5| ARENTER
RIBZHE o

REXER
BE_S_=F+"BA=1+—HLEE"
& B RIS E51E 48 873,100,000 7T »
ME&E_ZE-_"_F+-B=+—HLHF
£ > RIER1S i FI15 497815 88,800,000 7T ©
AEBNXEERAGIEZHNRKEE
MELATEEEERGFHEZRDYE
REHEYERINRERIEFN - A
RZEBREXAFERETUE > ALFEH
AEENKERETEEETE - BE
Wit > EEAERE MM EFHERRIA
= o

EFERN _E_NERAB-+=HZ
TZRERREBFAE » BRIKERLE
HERESREK0L/T - BERNR_-Z
—=FENBT+EBHBREZHIARER
ESRBEIllT ZSE=FE2ZR
EREEHASKAEEK0.287T -



A detailed business review and analysis are to be found in the

“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual

Report. In summary:

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total rent
received by the Group amounted to HK$302.1 million,
increased by HK$1 million, slightly increased by 0.3%
compared with the year 2022. For our major properties,
the aggregate occupancy rate is 85%.

For the property development in Foshan, The Grand
Riviera, a total of 99% of residential units had been sold.
As of 31 December 2023, the total sale proceeds of the
whole development project amounted to some HK$6
billion. A substantial income is anticipated from the sale of
the remaining residential units, car parks, and shops in the
future.

Construction of our residential property project “Elegance
Garden”located in Sanshui District of Foshan has been
completed in December 2022. The open sale for the first
block was recently launched in November 2023. As of the
date of report, we have successfully sold out 30.8% of
available units, generating approximately RMB33.4 million
in sale proceeds. Moving forward, the decision to release
the remaining blocks for sale will be contingent upon the
prevailing conditions of the local property market.

One-Eight-One Hotel and Serviced Residences opened in
December 2019. As of 31 December 2023, the income
received by the hotel amounted to HK$77.1 million, a drop
of 6.2% compared with the year 2022.

In December 2021, the Group completed the acquisition in
Kimpton Kitalay Samui, a five star hotel in Koh Samui,
Thailand managed by the InterContinental Hotels Group
(IHG). As of 31 December 2023, the revenue received by
the hotel amounted to HK$96.3 million, significantly
increased by 104% compared with the year of 2022.

EXRFRMEEE 25 mR DT —EIR
A FENEFOER D o UL
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

The Rockpool FifEl;

. In April 2023, the Group has newly acquired a UK
commercial property, Barratt House, located on 341-349
Oxford Street, London. The property with 100% occupancy
generates annual rental revenue approximately GBP2.5
million.

. In 2023, the Group has made a new overseas investment
jointly with Value Partners Group (stock code 806.HK) for
acquiring 50% share of Cromwell Italy Urban Logistics
Fund which is holding seven logistic centers in Northern
Italy. Our Group’s effective holdings of these properties
are 25%.

MRIZZ=FNA » FEEHKE
i 72 i B4 7R 1 341-349 SR AV T )
7 # = it 7 Barratt House © %4 %
B EXA100% FHEWRALYD
2,500,000 ZE§% o

AEBN_S_=—FHAEPER (R
X35 806.HK) S 1EMIE T — IR B
b & B W B T Cromwell Italy
Urban Logistics Fund 50% 4 % 1 >
ZEEFEEARMIEE @Y RH
Do REEHZZEYMENERFFR
EEBI %5 25% ©



OUTLOOK OF 2024

Economic pundits predict the worldwide growth rate of 2024
will be in line with that of 2023. One of the most frequently
asked questions is whether the leading central banks will
reduce interest rates, how far, and how fast. This issue is crucial
to Europe, the UK, and Australia for the economic stagnation to
break loose. IMF predicts “policy rates to remain at the current
level for FED, ECB, and BOE until the second half of 2024 before
gradually declining as inflation moves to close to Target”. Thus,
the Euro area is only forecast to grow 0.9% in 2024 and the UK
0.6% in 2024. The US also has a slightly lower growth projection
of 2.1%. Japan is expected to grow marginally lower than 2023
as the one-off events that boosted the economy last year
disappear, the Yen depreciates, and the COVID-19 pent-up
demand ends.

2024 is a major “election year” — US and Russian presidential
elections and general elections in the UK, India, and Indonesia.
Again, the unpredictable can happen, and it can upset the

economy.

Economists expect China’s 2024 growth rate to be around 5%.
Capital inflows will increase as foreign investors have witnessed
the resilience of the economy. The forecast interest cut in the
year’s second half by FED will narrow the interest-rate
differential between the US and China, reducing the arbitrage
opportunities for firms diverging their funds off to the US. At the
December 2023 Central Economic Work Conference, Chinese
policymakers vowed to open China’s telecommunication and
healthcare industries further, and will open up visa
arrangements. All these will provide a positive environment for
capital inflow to China.

—ECORE
REERBA S _MELKEEER
EKRATET=FFF - HPREAER
B REIBERTEREERE  BREIE
EMRE - SEMEHPEN - EHEM
BNERCSECHAEREE - BREE
BESAMTER > TEBER -« BUNRITH
FERITHBERFIRRRIFEERIKTE »
BRI ZZSZMETHE  RAEBEEER
BB AEMmE T o ALt > FEstET
EEMENKEEREREF09%
HEKHEREA0.6% > EFERMKEY
REAHEE > A21% - BEEERH
BN —RMESHEHE  BEREURK
MEEEBEKRER » FEst H ALY
REBRER_S_=%F-

“ECNER—RAEENTERE) > 8
EEEM AR EEE » LIRS
ENEFMENERIKRIEE - RAEITERAIBYIB R AT
AEZE » W B A REB AL ©

RBEPRTBAPE T ZMFERLEE
RERFOH 5%  BEIRKREE RE
PEEHENENNE  BARAREN - T8
stEME T ¥ ERSFENRERNE
BOEERBETEZIZENENRE
A _=F+_ANPREETIE
# L FERREAHRE—THKTE
HYEBEMBEMRETE - RRERRLE
FRrEELERSEARRATERHRBER
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT FE&HR&EE

Private consumption is expected to remain strong as the
services sector boom increases income growth and
employment. The property market investment will be supported
by the “Three Major Projects,” viz affordable housing, urban
village renovation, and both emergency and leisure public
infrastructure projects.

Hong Kong is a small but open economy, so there is little that
her Government can do. Her economy is forecast to grow 2.5%
— 3.5% in 2024. The Government has removed all the anti-
cyclical demand side measures on the residential property
market which may stabilize, especially, if the FED lowers the
interest rate in the second half of 2024. The IPO market may
rebound following a stable and recovering China market. The
GEM reform starts in January this year and will help research
and development firms to list. With a presidential election in
the US this year, Hong Kong could see an easing in geopolitical
conflicts, hence reestablishing herself as the international
finance centre in Asia.

BUSINESS PREVIEW

As mentioned above, businesses in Hong Kong are facing an
uneasy time. Thanks to our professional and prudent
management team, our Company still has a healthy balance
sheet and a good cash flow. However, we should conduct
ourselves cautiously about our expenditures and investments.

We will await an opportune time to sell our properties in the
Foshan area to seek optimal earnings. We expect our hotel in
Koh Samui, Thailand, Kimpton Kitalay Samui, to continue to do
well. It has been expanding from its traditional customer base,
tapping into new markets in Germany and Scandinavia.

AT F M R RR S UL ALE R AL R
g BAMANHERSRIEBYER 5
ENIGRERFSHI=KER %R
BEREEET  BHPNREURES
MBI AHERRMIER °

BEAZ—E/NEMBERALER  FEit
BITRESI RN IEEBR FEEt =
“MEFEBRBERILR25%FE3.5% ° B
REBUHHEEMETZNMAE KRB
BREEH JHHIRURERBFEELS
“HETHEERS ) FEMETIH IR
B BEPENHBIEEMNEE 5
RARBRMNTHE IR E - FER
SHE—ARETRIERNE  BHEBRN
B RBEENEE LT BESEEER
A AEE > MGBUAERAZEM %
MESBEMMRAEMNNEREERAD o

575 Al B2

WM EXFRit > HEEZEEMBRRNZHE
e AREMEXFENEEERRE > 2
A NARERENEERRRNREHN
WER e 28Mm > HAGEEEERM
HFRE o

EMEMESENREEERMESL
&% > USREEWE - EKMTE
5t K i 5% %= B & 18 5 89 78 [& Kimpton
Kitalay SamuiB B RIFE B - EER
RERFTLHIERE > BHTERMEE
B4 R E T ©



One-Eight-One Hotel will continue its excellent service. The
Rockpool is almost fully leased, and the first phase of installing
an additional electricity supply for our Mongkok Chong Hing
Square has also been completed. We expect these buildings
will enhance our rental yield.

Last but not least, my heartfelt thanks to stakeholders and
shareholders for their continued trust and support, to all my
fellow directors for their wise stewardship, and to our senior
management and our staff for their commitment and
dedication.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2024

One-Eight-One JA[E i 4 B 17 (1B B IR
B ABEHATEHAFEEIMEL > ME
AR E ISR ERINE NH R E —BE
EBTRMNETN RMESELEMER
REEMNBESUERE -

RE > FAZBUEHFNERRRZES
EHRASE - REFZERED > UK
BEEANBERETZROENRT » B
RIOHE ©
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders its
annual report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are property investment, property development,
investment holding and hotel operation. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in
notes 40 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review of the business
and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2023, and
an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the “Five-Year Financial Summary”,
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Summary of Financial Highlights”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of the Annual Report. The above
sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that
date are set out on pages 168 to 280 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.11 per share was paid to
shareholders on 15 September 2023. The Board recommends a
final cash dividend of HK$0.17 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.28 per share for the year.

PRIETCEARARNEEFE ((EFT))
RERBEE_T-_=F+"A=+—H
LEFEEZFEREEREEZZMBR
& MARETINIRREE ©

FEEBREBEHE
RARIRERBAR (TREE) 2EE
EXGAMERE - VMEZRE RBREER
RBEEE BSXTENBRAIKREEDR
EZ2FEEBEDNFINGEEMBER
RMEEE 40 K% 18I8A ©

MErAREEE B QTR (TR EMEE))
B2 5 Fr AR R T 8 5 B9 As SR B SR 550 o
D BEEBHAALRE - AEEE
HNTERRRAFPERARERZAHEL - =
M BEEREREELRER
EENEEEHFE UARBAERE
BARRNERINERGRAVIET > 7
BRFHEAN TEEMBRE) - TEFERE
STHBEREZ - TEEEZH®AD
W AR TEEERREE - U LER
AR S —80M7 o

ERREBRKR

rEREEE_E_=F+"-HA=+—H
EFENEEREANTEAERNZHE
HEFR TR AFIRSE 168 E280H ©

445
FHIRERESRBELIITERZE
T=FNBT+HEBIRE - EFFEREIK
BERIAFRERESRABIEL/IT 2F
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2023 comprised the
accumulated profits of HK$7,086,774,000 (2022:
HK$7,521,841,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties during the year are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Movements in property, plant and equipment/Right-of-use
assets during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES
HELD FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development for sale/
properties held for sale during the year are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has no capitalized interest during the year. (2022: HK$nil)

R
rEERNTEBRREZEDFINGS
EanEEhR  ~EEFATHEZED
YRR G M B IRARMIEESE 38 18R o

RZZBZ=F+ZHA=+—H ' &RQF
ARFRAZFECERB N BIE
7,086,774000c( Z B Z —_ F: B &
7,521,841,0007T) °

REME
rEEREVEEIFIINGS
RIS 14THRA ©

ME - - BERRE EREERE
FEEVE - BERRE HRAREE
SN EEMBRRMEF 15TER
16I8/A °

FHEZRDME SHEME

R F5

AEEFHERERTYE FHEYE
BEFFTINFR S B RRMEER17EA ©

fig zs
ARABTRAFBIINGEM BRI T
5 281HNA ©
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are shown on page 131 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in
office, shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

In accordance with Article 97, 105 and 106 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu
Chak Hung Adrian and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger shall retire at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company. The Company intends to comply with code provision
B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules, which provides, among other things, that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu
Chak Hung Adrian and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 136 to 144.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules throughout the review period.

EEg
FEEARBEARSEBHLE &2
RAEESEHIINAFRFEIBIER -

REARBERZAL > EAEHERZ
EFMAREHERRRESR T2
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FCLEMRAD MiER Cl 2 REEATRIF
XB22ZRE  BREMBER  BRESF
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FHREREIT R -FRHEXE - BEE
FTEBERARERBEERTERICE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors and the
Chief Executive Officer in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or have been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND IT’S ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

EEELARIRHEHMBEBEEERE ZR
TR

A ZE=F+ZRA=+—H EEK
THAERNR A AT REBEEE (EER
Es RHEAERBIEXVER) 2% ~ 1HE
RO KRESFPNEREREDESRES
BHIEXVBFR7IRFEIDHBENETEA
A REBHAERZMBERAE (MHA
Fr1) > HEIRIRE S KGR EI5E 352 1%
RRERNATMEFEENELM > HER
BLEHRETAZESETES R ZIRE
FAMEARRB R 2SR
T

T4 25 Kk HE B EB R K AER
A2 {5 R B &5

/N

ERIEEERRAE

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD #55 ZiBRzBR A& E

Family interests

Total interests as

(interests of spouse or Corporate interests approximate % of the
child under 18) (interests of controlled relevant issued
Long/short Personal interests Rifta corporation) share capital
position (held as beneficial owner) (Bof@ak 18 5% AR Total interests Ak e BT
wa/ %E AR (BRHE) MUTFFRziER) (BRI AR ZRER) migm [z R ES
Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 = 218,069,000 218,093,000 57.61%
1| %0 (notes 1 and 2)
E’E?-J\E%E y}% (M‘Tﬂl&z)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai  Long 2,756,867 - - 2,756,867 0.73%
Winston e
notes: MizE

1 132,326,710 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu's Holdings Limited, of which
Mr. Liu Lit Chi are amongst its shareholders. The above numbers of shares are duplicated
under the corporate interests for each of these directors.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 85,742,290 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the corporate
interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

1. BISAEAERERERARNZRE » ZAFAH
BREAEA AT 13232671008 - RERE > £E
ESRTZATESBENES

2. BIEREREMBALAEEEAERATDZKRE

ZRRERREARAR R 57422900k » LEHMHE
BABEERTZARRRRER o



INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the directors or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

FERRRAEMALNES

A ZEZ=F+ZRA=+—H > mExa
SIPTEN > FYIRRR (R AT ERHITHAE
HBRIM) RA QB Z B AR K ABRARR (D R #E
BREES RIAEROIEXVEE 2 KR53
DEZREBEERATIRE 2 K
B NEEIEEERIEEFMBRT
RAEEREREMEEATREAE L
REZAE AR AEES% U £ 2 #

circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the % :

Group:

Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
TERRER e/ %R i3 FisEERRHHE HERTRAERLL
Liu's Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132'32(?'07133 34.95%
BREBEERAT e BufFAA (et D)

Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 85'74(%]'0%23 22.65%
EEEEARAT e BERFAA (if3t 2)

notes: Mgk

1 Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, amongst 1. BREBERABNNEEIMBEILZIART &

others, Mr. Liu Lit Chi. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under
“Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr. Liu
Lit Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-section
under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated
Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by
any person (other than the directors or Chief Executives Officer
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more as
at 31 December 2023 which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

BEANBEBENERE - ZERAEENERLFIZA
TESHAARREAREEES 2 REEE) 28R

Eo
2 BEEEERAADRESEMEIZMAAD 5
BB AL REHRA T EFRS - R ATE
BRERESEA B ATREAK L BRES
2IRAEE) HERE o
PR EMPFTIRESN » WIRBEMAL (A
B EF o ITBHERRIN) MEREE S K
HERFIEXVHBHR _E-_=F+_8
=+—HIFEXRAT 5% U EZRID K
AR ZEZHKEB A AT EH K
B HREE SRS EGIE 336 18BF
HBEZSEEMAPACERIEITINE °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, “Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had, whether directly or indirectly,
have material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was partied to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were both
less than 30%. None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Board owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
shares in the Company.

EFEGOER

PR e M BRI E S 39IEA TRIHEA
TIREEIR FRitZ 5 MEEHEFE
REARE > SRR EFLEEZN
BIZERABHEEMME AT L
ZERBNDPERREAEEEFERME
EXA -

TEEATRBHEEMAMEBELSTRR
2EEMLBESEZEARTEAT
HERMEMAT 2RO HESFMER

RERERZKRREAFARG LBEEE
ZERRBESF > HWEARATFTHERA
HEXTN—FABAXNEES (BEE
ZRBEERD) MRLEZRBEA -

FERRRMLEH

TEER > AEBZAAKRERRE LG
FEBRBARBDOZ=1T > MEER
ZAHARERRGEEERERERER
BZ=T FRABVBEFRREBBAL
HERKRR (EFTNEEERIQFTEHE
TRABERDZH) BEAAEZEAM
FER S PR

BE - WEXEBERERRG
BE_ST_=F+"BA=+—HILEE
N> AAFREMBARLEES - W
ERBEEAAABT ZRKRMD ©
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION HRER
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS FREESM10(IRR
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31 REBARASTRREFLZMER » RZF
December 2023, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows: Z—=F+_"_H=+—HFEREFSH10
fIRGERUIT :

Number of

shares held %
Name of shareholder RREHE RERMAYE BRL
1. HKSCC Nominees Limited BEPRER (REAN) BRAF 160,709,717 4245
2. ChongHing (Nominees) Limited B ({{32) BFRAT 138,463,288 36.57
3. AlbaHoldings Limited EEEEERAT 35,000,222 9.25
4. MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64
5. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 5,000,000 132
6.  ChengKee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,160,000 0.83
7. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 3,100,000 0.82
8. Leung Kwok Choi Leung Kwok Choi 1,324,000 0.35
9. Leung LaiFong Leung Lai Fong 1,300,000 0.34
10.  On Luk Tong Limited On Luk Tong Limited 1,090,000 0.29
Total A5 359,147,227 94.87
LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS SR
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31 REXAATRREZMMER > BT
December 2023, the location of shareholders are as follows: “_=F+ZA=1+—HREIMMUWT :

Number of

shares held %
Location of shareholders RRA RERMAHE Epifid
Hong Kong &4 378,523,540 99.9842
China and South East Asia B RAEE 33,660 0.0089
Europe B 800 0.0002
US and Canada EERMEK 16,860 0.0044
Australia BN 8,580 0.0023

Total =L 378,583,440 100
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at the end of the financial year and of their respective
profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to select suitable
accounting policies and apply them on a consistent basis,
making judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure from
accounting standards; prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to presume
that the Company and the Group will continue in business for
the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the
Group and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston, Mr. Lee
Wai Hung, Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Liu Chak Hung Adrian and
Liu Kwun Hung Tiger. Based on the duly approved terms of
reference by the Board, the committee is authorized to discuss,
formulate policies and make decisions on all matters relating
to the daily management and operations of the Company and
its subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss significant daily
operational issues, review business performance and take
prompt corrective actions as appropriate. The Board believes
that the function of committee could help to relieve the Board
of detailed review of information and to increase the
operational efficiency among different departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company’s
website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 40 to 41. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the
internal controls and the financial reporting requirements of
the Group. The Audit Committee meeting will normally hold
twice in each financial year immediately before the Board
meeting for approving the interim and final results. The
committee is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on pages 42 to 43. The
report showed the main duty and the work performed by the
committee during the year of 2023.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 44. The
report showed the main duty and work performed by the
committee during the year of 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Company has substantially complied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023 with those paragraphs of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, with which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the
Company are set out on pages 66 to 91.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report
prepared by the directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the Board of
Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Mok Siu Kwong Stanley
Mr. Guan Chubin
Mr. Liu Ying Shing Claudius

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2024
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANISATION CHART
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The Audit Committee (“AC”) is made up of four members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The AC oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements including the selection of suitable accounting
policies. External auditors are responsible for auditing and
attesting to the Group’s financial statements and will report to
the management of the Company from time to time on any
weakness in controls which come to their attention. The AC
oversees the respective work of management and external
auditors to ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have an effective internal control procedures.

The AC had performed the works as follows:

1. Toreview the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023;

2.  To review the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2023;

3. To review and monitor the external auditors’
independence;

4. Toreview the system of internal control of the Company;

5. To review the audit plan and the engagement from
external auditors;

6. To make recommendation on the re-appointment of
external auditors; and

7. To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of
account and finance team of the Group in order to carry
out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was
found and all the recommendations previously suggested by
auditors were agreed and implemented by the management in
2023.
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Based on these reviews and discussions, together with the
report of the external auditor, the AC recommended to the
Board’s approval of the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 with the Auditor’s Report
thereon.

The Committee recommended to the Board that the
shareholders be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for 2024.

Members of the Audit Commiittee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur

Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi Moses

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric

Hong Kong, 12 March 2024
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT 1R RZEEHREFE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members. The
main duties of the Committee are (i) to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board in
order to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to
identify suitably qualified individuals to become directors of
the Company and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the directors and succession plan for
directors, in particular the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the Terms
of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and
duties. The Terms of Reference were duly authorised by the
Board.

In year 2023, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following
issues at its meeting:

1. Toreview the composition, size and structure of the Board
of the Company.

2. To review the attendance records of directors of the
Company.

3. To review the brief details of each director (including
years of service).

4. To review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

5. To review the directors’ appointment control schedule —

Rotation of Directors.

6. To review and confirm the independence of all the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

7. To review and amend as required from time to time the
Board’s diversity policies.

8. To review and appoint Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu
Chak Hung Adrian and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger as
Executive Director of the Company.
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The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting
are circulated to the Board for information. The NC meets when
required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric

Hong Kong, 12 March 2024
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The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of four members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company.

The main duties of the Committee are to formulate the
Company’s remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or
make recommendations to the Board with regard to the
structure of remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman
and Managing Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by referring to the Terms
of Reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and
duties. The Terms of Reference was duly authorised by the
Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had
reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

1. To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior
management;

2. To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board
regarding the Directors’ fees and other allowances for the
year 2024;

3.  Toreview and approve the annual performance bonus and
its policy;

4. To review and approve the newly formulated
Remuneration Policy; and

5. Toreview and confirm the revised Terms of Reference.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting
are circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi Moses (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming John

Hong Kong, 12 March 2024
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B BB E

2023 2022 Change g
k- Jank- 3 k-t =) o
HK$000 HK$'000 % -
BT BETT ERES =
=
Revenue ’g
6 732311 715,240 9
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners 3
of the Company =
NERFABRRZAEE (1) 5h (814,937) 86,148 2
Basic (loss) earnings per share =
SREX (518) BF (B¥EHKS2157T) B HKS0.23 7T :
Net assets value per share =]
BREERE B HKS30.65 7T BIEHKS3344 7T -
Dividend per share g
SRES ¥
Interim B
R B HKS0.11 7T B HKS0.18 7T -
Final
KHA BEHKS0177T B HKS0.20 7T
Total
a# AR HKS0.28 7T BHEHKS0.38 7T
Dividend payout ratio
RELE (13%) 165%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the audited
consolidated losses of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately of HK$873.1 million, comparing to
2022 profit amounted to approximately of HK$88.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$961.9 million.

The Group’s results from profit to loss was mainly caused by (1)
the fair value loss of approximately HK$297.5 million of
investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2023,
compared to a gain of approximately HK$236.5 million in the
previous year and (2) impairment loss recognised in respect of
properties under development for sale and properties held for
sale of approximately HK$598.7 million (included in “direct
costs”) for the year ended 31 December 2023. It is important to
note that both the fair value loss and impairment loss are non-
cash items and do not impact the Group’s operating cash flow.

Despite these challenges, it is worth highlighting that the
overall financial and business position of the Group remains
robust and healthy. While the results may reflect a temporary
setback, we remain confident in our ability to navigate these
circumstances and maintain our commitment to delivering
long-term value to our stakeholders.

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from
property investment, property development, property
management, treasury investment, trading & manufacturing
and hotel operation.

Other income refers to various miscellaneous incomes,
excluding the main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of loss on changes in
fair value of investment properties and net exchange gains
(Losses).
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$302.1 million,
increased by approximately HK$1 million from approximately
HK$301.1 million in the year of 2022, slightly increased by 0.3%.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group’s overall occupancy of major investment properties
maintained at 85% as at 31 December 2023.

HK PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Square

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is a
20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial development offers
over 182,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, Chong Hing Square
generated a gross rental revenue of approximately HK$56.6
million, decreased by approximately HK$12.4 million from
approximately HK$69.0 million in 2022. Decrease of rental
revenue was due to rental concessions to existing tenants and
rental reversion. The occupancy was 75% as at 31 December
2023.

Chong Hing Bank Centre

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road Central,
is a 26-storey Grade A office building. Having retained several
floors for the Company’s use, this office building was leased to
Chong Hing Bank Limited for 5 years with a monthly rental of
HK$7.98 million started from 19 February 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Chong Hing Bank Center
has generated rental revenue of approximately HK$95.8 million.
The management regarded the tenancy would bring stable and
good rental return to the Group.

On 24 March 2023, Chong Hing Bank Limited exercised its
option to renew the lease for five more years from 19 February
2024 to 18 February 2029, at a monthly rental of HK$6.08
million, representing a decrease of 23.8%. Considering the long-
term interests of the Group, the management has accepted the
lease renewal.
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Having prolonged negotiations and discussions with the
management of Chong Hing Bank, we regarded Chong Hing
Bank is the Group’s long term strategic partner. The
management, having taken into account the tenant’s strong
financial background, the surrounding office supply, and future
economic developments, believes that this decision will ensure
the Group’s long term success and competitiveness.

The Rockpool

The Rockpool (formerly known as Chong Yip Centre) is located
at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West. The mall was revamped in
2019 and turned into a young and trendy community mall
serving local neighbors providing numerous new brands of
retailers and F&B outlets. After renovation, the management
expected this would be one of the young and popular malls in
the western district and be able to generate higher rental
return.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, The Rockpool generated
gross rental revenue of approximately HK$13.4 million,
increased by HK$4.9 million from approximately of HK$8.5
million in 2022. As of today, the mall achieved occupancy of
88% and carparks were fully let.

Fairview Court

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. The Group
owns 5 units, each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury
apartment on a low-rise building. For the year ended 31
December 2023, Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of
approximately HK$6.3 million, it records net rental revenue of
approximately HK$3.1 million after rental elimination. This
property recorded 80% occupancy as of 31 December 2023.
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PRC PROPERTIES

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai

The Group’s mainland flagship property located at 288 Nanjing
Road West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a 36-storey Grade
A commercial building which commands a strategic location
and enviable view over The People’s Square just across the
street. With a total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of
office and commercial spaces and 198 carparks, this property
was approximately 84% let in terms of office space and 100%
let in terms of retail space as at year end. For the year ended 31
December 2023, this office building, after taken exchange
translation, has generated a rental revenue of approximately
HK$102.5 million, decrease by approximately HK$8.8 million
from HK$111.3 million of 2022.

Throughout 2023, we observed a steady increase in occupancy
rates, indicating growing demand for our property in Shanghai.
This serves as evidence of the effectiveness of our leasing
strategies and the lucrative terms offered to attract new
tenants. In 2024, we are confident that both occupancy and
rental revenue for our Shanghai property will improve further,
positioning us for sustained growth and profitability in the
coming years.
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UNITED KINGDOM PROPERTIES

Barratt House, 341-349 Oxford Street, London

On 6 April 2023, the Group has completed the new acquisition
of a UK commercial property, Barratt House, located on 341-
349 Oxford Street, London. The property provides 7 floors of
accommodation with total area of 16,200 sq.ft., consisting of a
5,894 sq.ft. prime retail unit over basement, ground and first
floors, and 8,244 sq.ft. of refurbished offices on four upper
floors. From the date of acquisition to year ended 31 December
2023, the rental income attributable to the Group was
approximately HK$18.1 million. This property recorded 100%
occupancy as at 31 December 2023.

The management regarded the acquisition is a good investment
given the prime location, good tenant mix, strong discounted
value and future redevelopment potential.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

This comprehensive development situated at 1 Guilong Road,
Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan, is conveniently located
within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan financial district and
within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan West Station.

Development Status

This Foshan residential project is a comprehensive
development and is developed by phases. The whole project,
including Phase 1 to Phase 4, was completed and handover for
occupation since September 2018.

Financial and Sale Results

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded sale
revenue of approximately HK$66.7 million, a decrease of
approximately HK$16.1 million from approximately HK$82.8
million, representing a 19.4% decrease. The number of
residential units sold and recognized for the year remained at
20 units, the same as in 2022. However, the number of carparks
sold decreased from 170 units in 2022 to 104 units in 2023.
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As at 31 December 2023, a total of 5,239 out of 5,264 residential
units (representing 99%) and 2,389 out of 4,670 carpark units
(representing 51%) were successfully sold, fetching
accumulated sale proceeds of approximately HK$6 billion. The
management forecasts that further sale proceeds of
approximately HK$700 million could be received if all unsold
properties including residential units, carpark spaces and retail
shops were to be sold under current market conditions.

Elegance Garden, Sanshui

Location and vicinity

The development is located at the heart of Bei Jiang Xin Qu. It
is surrounded by the well-developed facilities, such as Beijiang
Primary School, Xindongli Center, Beijiang Feng Huang Park,
Sanshui Renmin Hospital and Sanshui Bus Stop. It takes 15
minutes’ drive to the Guangzhou and Foshan High Speed
Railway Station and 20 minutes’ drive to Sanshui High Speed
Railway South Station only. The development is just 2.1 miles
away from the Sanshui Metro Route 4, it is closely connected to
the Guangzhou and Foshan cities.

Project design

This residential development named Elegance Garden, consists
of 9 blocks 31-storey residential apartments with three typical
sizes of 88, 98 and 108 square meters respectively. Given the
plot ratio of 3.2 and green area ratio of 30%, it provides a total
of 1,084 residential units with developable areas of over
108,000 square meters. If including the retail and commercial
area of approximately 1,461 square meters on the ground floor
and 874 carpark spaces mainly built at basement level, the
total developable area is over 142,000 square meters.

Construction and Sales

The construction work was completed at the end of 2022.
Market research and sales activities have already begun and
official open sale for the first phase (Block 1) was launched in
November 2023. As at the date of board meeting, a total of 37
residential units were successfully sold, fetching sale proceeds
of approximately RMB33.4 million. The interior decoration work
is expected to be completed and will be handed over to the
buyers in August 2024. An additional block will be ready for sale
in the second quarter of 2024.
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HOTEL OPERATIONS

PRC

Budget Hotel

Since 2008, the Group started to operate budget hotel business
in Shanghai, Beijing and Guangzhou. All of these budget hotels
are managed by and under the brand name of Hanting. Due to
the restructuring of the business strategy, the Group had sold
the budgeted hotels at Shanghai and Beijing in 2016, only the
hotel in Guangzhou remains in operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue of the
budget hotel increased from approximately HK$6.4 million in
2022 to approximately HK$11.8 million in 2023. However, due
to the lease expiration, the hotel business in Guangzhou ceased
operations on 11 January 2024.

HONG KONG

One-Eight-One Hotel & Serviced Residences

The previous office building (formerly known as Western
Harbour Centre), located at 181-183 Connaught Road West,
was converted into a 182-room hotel and serviced residences.
The hotel was in full operation after obtaining the hotel license
on 2 December 2019. Apart from providing 182 guest rooms
(room size ranging from 330 sq.ft. to 1,152 sq.ft.), other facilities
include Sky Residences, two restaurants, Quay Club (executive
lounge), gym room and a wide range of services and amenities.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the hotel operation
recorded gross revenue of approximately HK$77.1 million, a
decrease of approximately HK$5.1 million from the HK$82.2
million recorded in 2022. This generated earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA") of
approximately HK$20.7 million. However, if including the F&B
business, overall EBITDA will be reduced.

The management expects the hotel business will improve
following the recovery of the Hong Kong tourism industry. The
hotel team is closely monitoring market trends and adjusting
our pricing strategies accordingly. By offering competitive rates
and attractive packages, we aim to capture a larger market
share and maintain a strong competitive position within the
hospitality industry in Hong Kong. With our strategic initiatives
and commitment to excellence, we are well-positioned to
capture growth opportunities and deliver sustained profitability
in the years ahead.
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THAILAND

Kimpton Kitalay Samui

In 2021, the Group invested in a hotel property at Koh Samui,
Thailand, through an acquisition of entire issued share capital
in Choengmon Real Estate Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Thailand.

The hotel is located at the north-eastern part of Samui Island
and is situated along the Choengmon Beach. The land is a
freehold land title with land areas of 29,588 sq.m. The hotel
consists of 21 pool villas and 117 premium rooms and suites
with total gross floor area of over 22,098 sq.m. Other amenities
include the main reception building, lobby bar, lobby lounge,
an all-day dining restaurant, a beachfront specialty restaurant,
swimming pool, spa, fitness centre and yoga studio, kids club
and multi-purpose space to accommodate weddings or
executive meetings. The hotel was in full operation since
January 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the hotel achieved gross
revenue of approximately HK$96.3 million, an increase of
approximately HK$49.1 million from approximately HK$47.2
million in 2022, generating EBITDA of approximately HK$33.2
million. These figures represent a very positive performance for
the year of 2023, as both gross revenue and gross operating
profit exceeded the budget. This success can be attributed to
the reopening of Asian regional markets and the
implementation of various IHG marketing campaigns. Moving
forward, the hotel’s management will closely monitor its
financial and operating results. The hotel team remains
committed to implementing appropriate measures to maintain
this positive trend.
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SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group, in partnership with the
same joint venture partner, acquired four warehouses in Japan,
two office buildings in Australia and seven logistic centers in
Italy. All these investment properties continued to maintain
stable rental revenue with 73%-100% occupancy. The
management believes that all the joint venture investments will
bring the Group with stable rental returns along with long term
capital appreciation. For the year ended of 31 December 2023,
the share of results from joint ventures increased from a loss of
approximately HK$24.1 million in 2022 to a gain of
approximately HK$22.1 million in 2023. The increase in share
results was primarily attributable to the rental income from
newly acquired properties and the fair value gains of
investment properties.

OUTLOOK

Along with the challenges posed by continuing high interest
rates and slow economic growth, the Hong Kong economy
continues to face difficulties and uncertainties. However, with
the support and introduction of various economic stimulus
policies and initiatives implemented by local government, we
maintain our confidence in the gradual recovery of local
consumption and overall business activities, driven by the
revival of the retail and real estate markets, along with a
gradual increase in PRC visitors and investors. These factors are
expected to stimulate economic growth and boost business
activities in various sectors. Our management remains
committed to improving overall financial performance through
operational efficiency and asset enhancement. We will focus on
optimizing existing business operations to enhance profitability
and maximize returns for our stakeholders.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds decreased from approximately
HK$12,599.4 million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately
HK$11,566.8 million as at 31 December 2023, representing a net
decrease of approximately HK$1,032.6 million. The decrease in
shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) loss attributable to the
owners of the Group of approximately HK$814.9 million; (b) net
decrease of investment revaluation and exchange reserves
totaling approximately HK$100.3 million; and (c) 2022 final
dividend and 2023 interim dividend paid approximately
HK$117.4 million.

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

NET DEBT BALANCE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net debt balance (being
borrowings less cash and deposits) amounted to approximately
HK$1,201.3 million, increased by approximately HK$627.0
million from approximately HK$574.3 million in 2022. The
increase of net debt balance was used for the construction
payment of Sanshui residential project, the acquisition of UK
commercial property, and the new investment on ltaly Logistics
Fund.

The Group will closely monitor their future investment and
capital expenditures so as to ensure all those expenditures
incurred are within the budget and do not undermine the
company’s working capital. At 31 December 2023, the Group
had a gross gearing ratio, (gross borrowing divided by equity
attribute to owners of the Company) of 20.8% (31 December
2022:17.5%), and a net gearing ratio (net debt divided by equity
attribute to owners of the Company) of 10.4% (31 December
2022: 4.6%).

The management expected that the Group’s cash balances
could be improved steadily further by the sale of the remaining
residential and carparks units of “The Grand Riviera” and
“Elegant Garden”, revenue of hotel operation, and the stable
rental revenue generated from different rental properties and
overseas joint ventures projects.
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BANKING FACILITIES

Most of the banking facilities as at 31 December 2023 were
committed banking facilities. In managing the debt portfolio,
the Group has endeavored to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still coming
from the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral
banking facilities with various banks, most of which have
established long relationship with the Group. The management
will consider to widen the funding source from capital market if
both the market conditions and terms are favorable to the
Company. The management will closely monitor the company’s
funding position, internal funding and cheaper external funding
will be used for coming development projects.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain healthy cash
balance and high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will
not only help the Group to fulfill all short term payment
obligations but also improve the Group’s working capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring income of various
investment properties, hotel operation and overseas joint
ventures projects, cash sale proceeds from various completed
development projects and committed banking facilities.
Liquidity risk of the Group is low and it has been further
reduced by early refinancing and improvement of cash flow.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan
tenors. 74% of the bank loans in the group will be expired in the
coming year, and there is a consensus with the bank that the
banking facilities will be renewed, ensuring continued access to
necessary funding and further mitigating liquidity risk.
Additionally, the Group will further improve the cash position
by sale of the residential units in Sanshui and stable rental
revenue from various investment portfolio in HK, PRC and
overseas projects. These efforts will contribute to strengthening
the Group’s overall financial stability.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the
Group may use certain derivative instruments such as interest
rate swaps, cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and
foreign exchange contracts. It is the Group’s policy to allow
using derivatives as hedging purposes only. With respect to the
counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group transacts only
with financial institutions with strong investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate
may result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s
financial position. Given that, the management will actively
involve and review the movement of interest rate so as to
minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and
not to speculate in currency movement. As at 31 December
2023, other foreign exchange exposures related to some major
investments in Shanghai, Foshan, Thailand, United Kingdom and
overseas Joint Ventures projects which altogether amounted to
the equivalent of about HK$6,280.1 million or 41.9% of the
Group's total assets.

For the overseas project, the group has acquired a hotel
property in Thailand, which is financed by Thai bank borrowing.
The foreign exchange risk exposure has been lowered by
matching the Thai asset with Thai liability. The management
keep closely monitoring these foreign exchange exposures by
implementing different appropriate measures on a timely and
effective manner.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a workforce of
621 (31 December 2022: 629). Staff cost for the year include
salaries, bonuses and allowances, were approximately HK$145.1
million (31 December 2022: HK$140.8 million). The Group's
remuneration policy, having been advised and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the pay levels of
its employee are reasonable and competitive in the market and
their total rewards including basic salary and bonus system are
linked with their performance. The members and work done of
Remuneration Committee are shown on page 44.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company has substantially complied with the Provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”
or the “Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of Listing Rules.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the purpose of enhancing long-term
value for shareholders. The corporate governance chart
adopted by the Company could be referred to Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited Simplified Organisation Chart on page 153.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

. The Board is accountable to the shareholders for
leadership and supervision of the senior management for
the purpose of creating long-term shareholder value and
producing a sustainable growth and successful business.

. The principal tasks of the Board are to set objectives,
formulate strategies and to monitor the operating and
financial performance.

. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

. The Board also oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management should
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of these systems.

. Duties of the Board include approving interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases of interim and
final results, setting the dividend policy, and approving the
issue, allotment, disposal or grant of options in respect of
unissued new shares of the Company.
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()

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has clear and distinct division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director.

Mr. Liu Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board, provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board. The Managing Director is responsible for the
Company’s business, daily management and operations
generally.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for the
Group’s operation and performance by delegating duties
to different Executive Directors and senior management
to achieve targeted objectives. The Board gives clear
directions to management of their powers and
circumstances in which the management should submit a
report.

Throughout the year, the role of Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company has not been
segregated as required by the code provision C.2.1 of the
Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the best
interest of the Company that by nature of the Group'’s
business which requires considerable market expertise
and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, with his profound experiences in the
property and banking industry, shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and Managing Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE
The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors, one
Non-executive Director and five Independent Non-
executive Directors. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Board has met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least one-third of
the Board should be Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors
strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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(v)

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-
executive Directors are free from any businesses or other
relationships which might interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgment and each Independent Non-
executive Director brings his own relevant expertise to the
Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors
could ensure that the Board functions effectively and
independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. In
short, these committees have Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate
Governance Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising two
Executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors to perform the corporate governance duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 136 to
144. These demonstrate diversity of experience and
calibre of the Board in making management decisions.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognizes the importance of diversity
among its Board members and has adopted a Board
Diversity Policy which is available on the Company’s
website. The Board will review the Policy annually to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company has strived to
maintain the diversity of the Board, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
length of service, and any other factors that the Board
might consider relevant and applicable from time to time
towards achieving a diverse Board.

Our Board is dedicated to improve its gender diversity by
actively recruiting a suitable female candidate to join our
single gender board by the end of 2024.
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In order to maintain gender diversity, similar
considerations are used when recruiting and selecting key
management and other personnel across the Group’s
operations. As at 31 December 2023, we maintained a
59:41 ratio of men to women in the workplace. For details
of our recruitment and employment practices, please refer
to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report. Our
five Independent Non-Executive Directors are from diverse
and complementary backgrounds. The valuable
experience and expertise they bring to our business are
critical for the long-term growth of the Group.

In considering the Board’s succession, The Nomination
Committee was of the view that the average age of the
directors of the Board is 57. The Nomination Committee is
considering to invite more young professional/expertise to
the Board in order to support board succession planning
and long-term growth and have invited current directors
to nominate suitable young candidate to the committee
for consideration. Moreover, an internal management
training program is setup for internal promotion.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at each
annual general meeting shall retire from office and be
subjected to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at
the first annual general meeting following their
appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company and were appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

(v)
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Code provision B.2.2 stipulates that every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Under the Article 105,106 and 113 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, all directors including the
Managing Director are subject to retirement by rotation.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are as
follows:

(i) to perform such functions and exercise such powers
as are appropriate to the position as an Independent
Non-executive Directors or Non-executive Directors
of the Company;

(i) to comply with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to be a director of the Company, including
but not limit to the Listing Rules; and

(iii) to notify the Board immediately upon the occurrence
of, or the directors becoming aware of, any matter

which may affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee are
available to review on the Company’s website.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES
AND SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their roles and duties as
directors, committing to support the creation of a healthy
corporate governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an
introduction to the Group’s major business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other
regulatory requirements.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Rules Governing the
listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rule”) as its own code of conduct for Directors in their
dealing in the securities of the Company. Having made
specific enquiries with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
Reporting Period.
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(V1) CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

(Vi)

Code provision C.1.4 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of
attending continuous professional training for the year
ending 31 December 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the Company Secretary also an
Executive Director of the Company, is a full time employee
of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company'’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman of the Board or Executive
Management Committee on governance matters and also
facilitates induction and professional development of the
directors. All directors have access to the advices and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the
Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year, the Company Secretary has
duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biography of Mr. Lee is set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in the
annual report.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

(1)

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate
governance and in compliance with the requirement as
mentioned under Appendix C1 — Corporate Governance
Code, The Board has held full Board meetings at least
quarterly during the year 2023.

The Executive Management Committee was established
on 30 October 2014. The current members of the
committee comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai
Winston, Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu
Chak Hung Adrian and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger. Based on
the duly approved terms of reference by the Board, the
committee is authorised:

(1) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on
all matters relating to the daily management and

operations of the Company and its subsidiaries;
to discuss significant daily operational issues;

to review key business performance and take prompt
corrective actions as appropriate;

to discuss and formulate financial policy, including
review and present of final and interim results of the
Company to the Board, as well as make
recommendation of interim and/or final dividends or
other distributions to the Board;

to discuss business opportunities arising from
changing conditions so as to formulate policies to
sustain the growth of the Company; and

The Executive Management Committee is currently
receiving monthly management report which shows
the Group’s financial and operating results with
detailed analysis of different business activities.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve
the Board of detailed review of information and to
increase the operational efficiency among different
departments. For the avoidance of doubt, all matters that
require public announcement pursuant to the Listing Rules
or rules of any other relevant regulatory body must be
approved by the Board.
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Matters reserved for full Board decision include material
bank facilities arrangements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, material transactions with connected
parties, significant investments including large capital
projects, delegation of authority, treasury and risk
management policies and any matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and the Board committee meetings, which
are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final signed
version is sent to all directors for their records and open
for directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent professional
advice at Company’s expense.

The Company has purchased the Directors and Officers

Liability insurance.

. Details of 2023 Board meetings attendance record are set
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out below: ;YT -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HETERY iR
Executive Directors HiTEE
Liu Lit Chi BAE
(Chairman, Managing Director and (£« EFHLIERTEARE)
Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai Winston Bl
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEEHLTE) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Bo Darryl BEE
(appointed on 10 August 2023) RZ2Z=F)\R+HEZD) 11 100%
Liu Chak Hung Adrian BEh
(appointed on 10 August 2023) (RZ2Z=F)\B+HEZI) 11 100%
Liu Kwun Hung Tiger BE#
(appointed on 10 August 2023) (RZ2Z=F)\R+HEZI) 111 100%
Non-executive Director FHTES
Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher TR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFRITER
Cheng Mo Chi Moses BEE 3/4 75%
Au Kam Yuen Arthur BHRR 4/4 100%
Ma Hung Ming John BB 4/4 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo EREHA 4/4 100%
Tong Tsun Sum Eric EE& 4/4 100%
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(1) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS

The Company attaches great importance to continually
improve on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination
of information to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply
of information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent
in full to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give
relevant documents at least five clear days replacing
current practice of at least three clear days in advance of
meeting). Where appropriate, communications are sent
electronically.

All directors are currently provided with quarterly
management reports which shows the Group’s financial
and operating results with detailed analysis of those major
rental properties, property under development and other
investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, was regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the
Company’s business and operating results with reference
to the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding internal
management meetings twice a week with all Executive
Directors and different department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review
performance for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held
twice a week to discuss the daily operation and to review
the Company matters by reference to monthly
management reports.
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(111) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board’s responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s strategic
objective through an established, appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte regarding to
the Company’s existing system and internal controls and an
appropriate policy and detailed work plan had been formulated
after having identified the main area of risks.

. During the year of 2023, the management had completed
enterprise risk management and the internal control
assessment and various follow up actions had been done
based on the findings and recommendations by Deloitte.
The management highly regards the internal controls and
considered that such review based on the identified audit
areas, will be performed annually so as to manage the risk
and control the effectiveness of the system.

(D) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and
senior management’s remuneration policy:

. The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005. Its terms of reference are to review and
determine the remuneration packages for all directors and
senior management.

. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi
Moses (Chairman), Dr. Ma Hung Ming John and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo and a Non-executive Director, Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan
Christopher.

. The committee meets at least once per annum.
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The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on or
determine the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors and senior management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the

remuneration packages of individual Executive

Directors and senior management, including benefits

in kind, pension rights and compensation payment

and any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

(iii) to make recommendations to the Board on or

determine the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives.
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. Details of 2023 Remuneration Committee meeting -« —_EC=FEFMNEEEERLE
attendance record are set out below: SCERELTIANT -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEGERY HiEx
Members of Remuneration Committee iNEEeEE
Cheng Mo Chi Moses (Chairman) BEE (£/E) 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher SR 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming John BiBE 111 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo EREHA 111 100%
Tin Siu Kuen (Secretary) HA/ME (7E) 11 100%
+  The committee is authorised by the Board to overseeand « ZECEEECEHEEREETEHR
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and TEEREHREIEBAEZEHEN o
senior management.
«  No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. « IEBERBRT B S o B3

On matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman
or Managing Director may be invited to committee
meetings to give advices.

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures
to take independent professional advice at Company’s
expense for making and determining the remuneration
package proposal.
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(E)
(1)

(1)

The committee will present a report to the Board after
each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for
all Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual
general meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in
the Remuneration Committee Report on page 44.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY'’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects in all shareholder
communications.

The Board fully understands its responsibilities regarding
the preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF
REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT
AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members,
all of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Dr. The Hon. Cheng
Mo Chi Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur and Mr. Tong Tsun
Sum Eric.

All members have experience in reviewing and analysing
audited financial statements of public companies or major
organisations.

The committee meets not less than twice per annum. The
Chairman, the Managing Director and the Executive
Director who is in charge of finance matters may be
invited to the meetings. The committee also meets not less
than twice per annum with the Company’s auditor.
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(i)

(vii)

EEEBK

The main duties of the committee include the followings:

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties to have
effective systems. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting

policies and practices;
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(ix) to review the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and management’s
response; and

(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
management letter.

Details of 2023 Audit Committee meetings attendance
record are set out below:

(ix) BMEINEZLHENREERRE 2K
B E st AC Bk ~ M7
ARE SR E R EERER
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(x) BREFEGRFEFEERINSZ
%&EfﬁﬁA BEEZEZIBERR
REFFRENEE -

TR CEEBREEEERYE
SCERETIANT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY HEE

Members of Audit Committee BULZEEZE
Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman) EH (F/2) 2/2 100%
Cheng Mo Chi Moses HRE 2/2 100%
Au Kam Yuen Arthur Ei%}ﬁ 2/2 100%
Tong Tsun Sum Eric EEHR 2/2 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) &g #WE) 2/2 100%

Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with
external auditors, to review the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements, and to evaluate the Group’s
system of internal controls.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee
members to take independent professional advice at
Company’s expense.

The committee presents a report or makes advice to the
Board after each meeting for addressing their work done
and findings.

Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 40 to 41.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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(1) AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the auditor had received
from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately HK$4.2
million for audit and audit related services (2022: HK$1.9
million) as well as approximately HK$0.4 million for non-audit
services including consultancy service and due diligence service
(2022: HK$0.4 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM
TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND
COMPANY ASSETS

. Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position and to protect its assets.

. The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to
identify and manage the risks that the Group may be
exposed to.

. These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the
assistance of external auditors during the course of audit
and separate assignment to ensure their effectiveness and
compliance with Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.

. The Managing Director and Executive Directors will
discuss with external auditor in the Audit Committee
meeting at least twice a year on key issues in relation to
internal controls, audit findings and risk management.

. As concluded in 2023 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found
by the auditor.

(F) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

. The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors.

. The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of
the Board. The committee shall comprise members not
less than three and a majority of the committee is
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Liu
Lit Chi, the Chairman of the Board.

Other members are Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung
Ming John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric

(Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng

Tjoan Christopher (a Non-executive Director).

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience
required) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Details of 2023 Nomination Committee meeting
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attendance record are set out belows: SCERETIEOT -

Number of Attendance

meeting attended rate

HEEERY HEE

Members of Nomination Committee R&ZRZEEZ%E

Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BIE (£E) 1/1 100%

Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher FFRE 1/1 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo BRERAT 1/1 100% @
Au Kam Yuen Arthur EiRR 171 100% 2
Ma Hung Ming John BB 171 100% =
Tong Tsun Sum Eric EEHR 1/1 100% =
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TERIE#WE) 1/1 100% %
ol
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(G)

Committee members are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the
Nomination Committee Report on pages 42 to 43.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kam Fai Winston.

Its other current members are Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Executive
Director of the Company and two Independent Non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur and
Dr. Ma Hung Ming John.

The committee meets at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the
policy for the corporate governance of the Company. The
duties performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee include the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the
Company and the senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of the
Company;
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(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under the
Listing Rules; and

to hold regular meetings with all department heads
from time to time requesting them to review their

(v BAKRABDNEEETEERER
TFRIRBSRELHRAUZH
EREXRERABRSFLHKE
)4

TR EFR AP I E EEHRT
T3 BERKEMAHEIFIA

corporate governance within the department and ZHEEER LIREEZIM
require them to submit proposal or remedy action to MITEAERAEE °
redress the matters.
«  Details of 2023 Corporate Governance Committee meeting « Z—E_=—"FEGTXELRZTETEE
attendance record are set out below: HECHREFIWMT -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERY Hg=
Members of Corporate Governance Committee {*¥EAHZEEEE
Liu Kam Fai Winston (Chairman) BeiE (/) 11 100%
Au Kam Yuen Arthur BHRR 111 100%
Ma Hung Ming John BBk 111 100%
Lee Wai Hung TRk 111 100%

(H)
(1)

Committee members are allowed to take independent
professional advice at Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different
departmental heads) fully appreciate their respective
roles with supportive commitments of creating a healthy
corporate governance culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management, including different departmental heads, has
in place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board has delegated management functions to
Executive Management Committee and different
department heads for the Company’s operations and daily
business affairs.
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() BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE

AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Management Committee, each
of the Committees have specific written terms of
reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
all members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. The Hon.
Cheng Mo Chi Moses and has a majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
the Chairman of the Board and has a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Mr.
Liu Kam Fai Winston and comprises of one Executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises of six
Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present(s) their respective reports
to the Board after each meeting, for addressing their work
done and findings.

=
=

()

EFZEY PERESZEE > ®
EXSEREMERR
EXERRRALEEERES
DHABREEE FMNEED -
RBZEET  EEERZETRH
TEEZET RFZEGIIETAR
ERELES -

BZEZE X EABEHMM T ERFR
BEZEEBBIIFRTES -
FMEEEEREABREBLIRE
PEIIFRITERERSH -

REZEETIF—HASEEETEE

BB RELE > HPB\IIFRIT
EEGRZH

TERERLZEETFEHETERE
HE > RBXRAF—BRTESR
WMEBILIFMITESHEMN o

HITEEZESTHAQATRIHNT
EEMEM -
BEFZEENEBRNEREMNES
ERXAEMEIFBERRERER
ZHE o



(1)
(1)

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practices in

relation to communicating with its shareholders and

prospective investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of
open and timely disclosure of relevant information on its
activities to shareholders, subject to applicable legal
requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular
communications to its shareholders and the market is
important to ensure they have the available information
reasonably required to make informed assessments of the
Company’s strategy, operations and financial
performance.

Communication channels
Communication is made through:

— the Company’s annual and interim reports, which
have been enhanced to present a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group position and prospects.

— notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual
and other general meetings, which have been
enhanced to provide shareholders with additional
information in an understandable manner.

— press releases on major developments of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

— disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant
regulatory bodies.

— Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk which
shareholders can access information of the Group.
The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and
operations, press releases, financial reports, and
corporate information of the Group.

() MRRBEHRK

n ®=
AEREIEMESATDEEARRREAER
REEBBZEAKRER -

« ARFEROEFERRRKRRARK
REHEBZHAREN > HARE
FERREFRR ©

- FREREEERRKETSERE
i# > HREFRRSESSEMREEM
LA AB 2 R~ EERMFBR
RELABHEEAERE

L@ RIE TR IEET

— MABEARNEERTBRE
ME » LU A B2 SRR R A
SEHRE « RS 1IN
2 o

— MBAEREMREARE
ERNPETHINE > UD
RIBRZ R BRER (i —
HER o

— AMEARREMEBAREA
5 R AR o

— MMRFAREREEHBEL
ZIWEE -

— KRUEABRATZHEE (B8
ik © http://www.lchi.com.hk)
MEBREBZER o ILEE
Rt (HPaiE) cEEzhE
NESNEBERKREZE - WE
e~ MBREREEER o

o
c
=
z
m
wn
7
o
m
=
]
=
>
Zz
o
(a)
o
X
-l
(]
P
>
=}
m
(0]
o
<
m
]
4
>
z
0
m
b
#
o]
-]
&
5
oy
*
i

(-]
w

ErHEXRIHE@H

BEEL=—&= |



-3
o

€207 LHOd3Y TYNNNY | QILIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ E B

() SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The Board regards the annual general meeting as the
principal opportunity to meet with shareholders and
welcome any constructive opinions.

Details of director’s attendance record of the annual
general meeting of the Company held for year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

n EEXE

EFTRORFRERRBEARS L
RUAERRMZER > UHRRKRRAE
FAREAHHEERNRRZEZ TE2K

&= o

BE"_Z_=-—F+_HA=+—HL
FEZAABRRAGEFHFERL
BEHTIWTF

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEGHERH HEE
Executive Directors HITER
Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BIE (/) 1n 100%
Liu Kam Fai Winston BLiE
(Deputy Managing Director) (CEEL S 11 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 11 100%
Non-executive Director FEHITEE
Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher SR 11 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTES
Cheng Mo Chi Moses R 0/1 0%
Au Kam Yuen Arthur [0 11 100%
Ma Hung Ming John BB 11 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo R 11 100%
Tong Tsun Sum Eric EE&H 11 100%

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for
shareholders so as to allow at least 21 days for
consideration prior to the annual general meeting. And all
other general meetings to be sent at least 14 days.

The Board encourages and supports shareholder
participation in general meetings. Shareholders are
encouraged to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the
highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditor of the Company will
attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
from the shareholders.
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(1) SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

. Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public
are responded by the Executive Directors, Director of
Finance, Company Secretary or the appropriate members
of senior management.

. The Company will respond in a timely manner to
shareholders’ queries and concerns.

(Iv) THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

. All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting
rights. Annual general meeting proceedings are
continually reviewed in the light of Code on Corporate
Governance Practices.

. Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.

. Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting
circular containing:

. re-election of directors;

. general mandate to buy-back shares;

. general mandate to issue shares;

. amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
. voting at annual general meeting; and

. comprehensive information on each resolution to be
proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to
demand and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at
shareholders’ meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll
and the poll procedures are included in all circulars in relation
to shareholders’ meetings and will be explained during the
proceedings of shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is
conducted, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on the business day following
the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on page 34.
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(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A

GENERAL MEETING (“GM”)

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote may
request to call a GM of the Company.

The written request: (@) must state the general nature of
the GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM,;
(c) must be signed by the shareholders making such
request, and (d) may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more of those shareholders. A
request by joint holders of shares must be signed by all
such holders.

The request should be deposited at the registered office of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified by the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company Secretary will convene a GM on behalf
of the Board by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements or applicable rules or
regulations to all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders
concerned will be informed and no GM will be convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene a GM, but any GM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be proposed
as a special resolution, the directors shall be deemed not
to have duly convened the GM if they do not give such
notice as is required by section 578 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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(V1) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD

PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice of
a resolution if it has received requests from the following
number of shareholders:

(i) Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to
which the request relates; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting
to which the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the
shareholders concerned; (b) must be sent to the Company
in hard copy form at the registered office of the Company;
(c) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and (e) must be received by the Company not
later than 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to
which the requests relate; or if later, the time at which
notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
valid, the Company will give notice of the resolution or
circulate the statement provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i) the proposed statement must be received in
time to enable the Company to send a copy of
the statement when the notice of annual
general meeting is despatched;

(i) and, the shareholders concerned have to
deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later
than 7 days before the annual general meeting.
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(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have
to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than
7 days before the GM.

. If the request is verified to be not in order or the
shareholders concerned have failed in the above manner
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s
expenses for the said purposes, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no action will
be taken by the Company in that regard.

. Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expenses to each
shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the annual general meeting in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as soon
as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder
qualifications, and the procedures and timeline, shareholders
are kindly requested to refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578,
580 to 582, 610 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong).

P =l
[==]

=
=

(b) EZEEBRA(RRBAFRE
BUSNN) RERAG AR BIA
FRRBAEFAERRRARE7
BRI EFEEEMHRIRIALZ
HAERBRMILEENFR

HZERWEEEN > HBEMRR
RERU LA XNEFFRIHRER
TABPMFFRENZHR > mAF
B ARMKRR > B ERILEL
EA1TE ©

RIEATRBIE 61615 > EBERE
2R QB RIE A ERB S 615 1%
BHARABRES > ARV ERE
UBEEENKRREFAEESHNE
NERRFERZREEE > EAH
ERBXY FEAXNEARGRES
—¥ FERFHARGESRE—
B e EREEERERTHE

==4
= ©

NERRFEEBTEBNERMZER
AREmsEAEME6 (FBEEF622
) c BRRRERNE—THFE > UK
REFEMEREE > BERRERQF RG]
(BB EEE622F) FE 566 E 567 ~ 571
578 ~ 580 E 582 ~ 610 Fz 61515 ©



(vil) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules
and the articles of association of the Company as amended
from time to time, if any shareholder(s) of the Company intends
to propose a person other than a director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at any GM, the following
procedures shall apply:

. a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged with the Board at the
registered office of the Company;

. the minimum length of the period during which such
notice(s) are given shall be at least 7 days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
GM appointed for such election and end no later than 7
days prior to the date of such GM; and

. in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the
nomination of a director must state the full name of the
person nominated for election as a director and include
the person’s biographical details as required by the Listing
Rules.

(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association in
the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015 and 15 May
2018, the shareholders of the Company had approved the
amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company. The
changes were carried out in compliance with the latest Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which came into effect
on 3 March 2014. The revised Articles of Association is available
on the Company’s website.
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ABOUT LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”), the principal business activities of Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “We”) included investment holding,
property development, property investment, property
management and hotel operation. We are pleased to present
this environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report (the
“Report”) for the Reporting Period, which showcases our
sustainability endeavours to stakeholders. The report depicted
our initiatives, activities and performance regarding the
sustainability of the Group.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

The Group determined the reporting scope mainly by
considering, but not limited to, the revenue streams and staff
numbers in each business operation. Therefore, the relevant
environmental key performance indicators (“KPIs”) covered
mainly the principal activities mentioned above, except for the
hotel operation in Koh Samui, Thailand (the “Samui Hotel").
Same as the last reporting period, the Samui Hotel is managed
and operated by a professional hotel operator that is not under
the operational control of the Group.

The ESG Reporting Guide, outlined in Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, was applied to the fullest extent possible in
the preparation of this ESG Report, and the “comply or explain”
provisions were adhered to.

In the preparation of this Report, we adhered to the four core
principles of the ESG Guide, namely the “Materiality,”
“Balance,”

“Quantitative,” and “Consistency” principles

described below.

Materiality: Materiality assessments are conducted and
reviewed annually to ensure that the topics presented in this
Report are relevant and significant to our business operations
and stakeholders.

Quantitative: The disclosed KPIs are measurable and applicable
for valid comparisons under appropriate conditions.
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Balance: The information for the Reporting Period is presented
in an unbiased manner to avoid the possibility of
inappropriately influencing any judgement or decision by
readers of the Report.

Consistency: The data and calculation methods for these KPIs
are kept consistent to ensure valid comparability in data
disclosure.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is dedicated to upholding responsibility, ethics, and
sustainability in its operations. We have incorporated corporate
social responsibility (“CSR”) and ESG objectives into our daily
practices. The Group has developed an ESG framework to
promote and enact the Group’s sustainability strategy. It
encompasses guidelines pertaining to operational strategies,
accountability, performance evaluation, and other pertinent
aspects.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) bears ultimate
responsibility for ensuring the sustainability of the Group, which
encompasses establishing ESG strategies, assessing ESG-related
risks, evaluating performance, and approving the Report. The
Group’s Executive Committee is tasked with formulating ESG
strategies, examining and addressing ESG issues in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide. Additionally, the Executive
Committee continuously explores opportunities to operate and
expand its business in a sustainable manner. Evaluated ESG
risks and opportunities are integrated into the Group’s business
strategy. Operational department heads were granted power
and authority and are responsible for collecting information,
developing, and reviewing KPIs as necessary, as well as aligning
operational policies with the Group’s business objectives.

The Executive Committee annually reviews the effectiveness of
the strategy and implementation of relevant solutions to ESG-
related issues. Environmental targets, revised strategies, and
policies are periodically reviewed and endorsed by the Board,
ensuring alignment with the latest regulatory requirements.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that opinions from stakeholders form the
robust cornerstone for the Group’s sustainable development
and success. Therefore, stakeholder engagement was carried
out to understand their feedback, aiding the Group in crafting a
business strategy aligned with their needs and expectations.

The Group recognizes the following parties as key stakeholders.
A variety of transparent and open channels are established for
effective communication, both internally and externally.
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Stakeholder Communication channels

FRE BERE
Investors . Corporate website
REE YNSIFE
. Announcements and financial reports
NERUBRSE
. Annual general meetings and shareholders’ meetings
RRBEAGRRRAE
Government/ . Announcements and public information
regulatory organizations NERREER
B/ GEE «  Other regulatory reports
HitE RS
. Correspondences through email and letters
BREHREFEN
Employees . Regular meetings
B8 THEH
. Training and seminars
SBARRE
. Questionnaire
GESEERE
. Performance evaluation
KRB
Customers . Customer instant messaging tool & service hotline
xR B REEEA T ARRHEHR
. Customers' review
XPHE
. Face-to-face communication
EHEER
Suppliers . Suppliers and subcontractor assessment
AR it R a1
. Site visit

5528




MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Based on the feedback gathered from communication channels
regarding stakeholders’ opinions and expectations, the
Executive Committee (comprising our Executive Directors)
conducted a materiality assessment to identify and prioritize
the ESG topics most relevant to the business operations and
stakeholders.

The ESG Reporting Guide is initially examined to discern a
range of possible significant ESG issues pertinent to the Group’s
business operations. Following this, the identified ESG issues
are rated and prioritized, taking into account the concerns
expressed by our stakeholders. Subsequently, the Board
assesses the results of the materiality assessment and
determines the list of significant ESG topics. The identified ESG
issues are regularly reviewed to ensure their continued
significance and relevance to the Group.

EEMAMG
REXERREWEINERAFNER
REHIZNREE > ITEEE (RATE
AR ETEEMTE 0 SEMRIERK
MEHBEERFNERBANIRE » 1
BREREE > THREHEBLRF

FEBERIRE L ERERKREIES
ETNPEE #hH—RIEXER
EHEERMNEBETERRRE -HER
EREHE - H®B TEFMHENRAIEE
ENE#RNRE - HERELEEE
THE UREBLERTF - BR  EF
EHLERNTENEREEEEKNIR
B ERELGEEBTE TEHHE
ARG - HEREBETIRE > B
REFEHAEREAEZ M RAERME -
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The issues below are the ESG topics that considered materialto TFIHEEABEAHFHEMSBEE

our stakeholders. HIRIE s HEREGE-E °
Environmental aspects . Emissions
RIGEE B
. Waste management
EYER
. Energy efficiency
AeRAE
. Environmental regulations compliance
RREEAR
. Protecting the environment
REIRIR
Social aspects . Staff compensation and welfare
HEEE BT #HMRER
. Staff occupational health and safety
BETHERREZS
. Staff development and training
BTERRE
. Equal opportunities
FEHE
Operating practices . Quality of service
ZEES FRBER
. Customer satisfaction
ERRRE
. Supply chain management
R EE
. Anti-corruption
k&5

. Compliance with laws and regulations

BTiaiER




PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group recognizes the critical importance of environmental
protection for the well-being of both present and future
generations. This commitment underpins our efforts to ensure
the sustainability of ecosystems, human health, and economic
prosperity. To achieve this objective, we have implemented two
key strategies: raising staff awareness about environmental
protection and serving as a role model in the workplace.

In December 2023, The Group organized a visit to O + PARK1,
the first large-scale organic resources recovery centre in Hong
Kong. The visit enabled staff to learn about the process and
objectives involved in converting food waste into energy. The
primary goal of this visit was to enhance the environmental
awareness of our employees, encouraging them to adopt green
living practices in their daily lives by understanding the
environment benefits of converting food waste into energy.
Beyond this, the Group continually enhances staff awareness
through ongoing training sessions and communication efforts.

REIRIR
AEERHIIRREREHNEARER
MEUAEMEBEE - ZBEAEEKFIFEF
FREAG - NERERREEERTRFE
HRNEL - HEMZER > HANT
WMIRZORE | RS 8 THIRAREH R
T T {F5Fr i 2240 o

R ZEZ=F+ZR AEEMARZH
EEEEAEEHERL KA O
O+ PARKL (B & REIRFPLE—HA) ©
LERB2ECET TR ERECAER
Fri RRMAIE R BR o LITHEEBW
EEBTHREERELCARRNIRIER
@ RABIMNRAEH > SEHER
BELEEPFRITHEEEESR - BRibZ
46 REBBBIFENIEIEREREE
Zh FERABTIHER o
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The Group endeavours to mitigate adverse impacts on the
environment and natural resources through the
implementation of various policies and initiatives. Our hotel
operations generate oil and grease in wastewater, which we
manage in accordance with applicable regulations. To minimize
our environmental impact, we conduct regular vacuum cleaning
and engaged laboratory for wastewater testing. Our buildings
are designed and managed with resource efficiency in mind. For
instance, the Chong Hing Finance Center in Shanghai
incorporate features that mitigate heat islands in the
surrounding areas and reduce light pollution. The Group
regularly assesses the feasibility of offering environmentally
friendly products and services, reaffirming our commitment to
environmental preservation.

For certain properties managed by the Group, the
environmental management system has been achieved I1SO
14001 certification. This system allows us to evaluate, monitor,
and enhance our policies and procedures, aiming to further
reduce our environmental footprint.

EMISSIONS

Greenhouse gases (GHGs) significantly contribute to climate
change. During the Reporting Period, the primary air pollutants
emitted by the Group were exhaust gases from electricity
consumption and vehicles. Compared to the previous reporting
period, our electricity consumption increased due to the local
improved epidemic situation and the resumption of full services
at our hotel facilities including restaurants and entertainment
rooms. Although electricity is inevitably used, the Group has
adopted initiatives in several areas to minimize usage. For
instance, idle lights and air-conditioning are turned off at night
and activated only upon request. Mechanical timer controls the
operation of external lights in unnecessary areas. Our engineers
regularly monitor daily meter consumption and promptly
address any abnormalities observed.

FEBRNREBE IS BEBERMIEH
URERIRERBRERN AR E -
BMIREIESEELE S MAEREK > 194%
REAERETEE - HRAREMRE
OHIRBENEE > RAIEHETEEE
BN EFEREHEKETER - £12
FREAMEEBELE > ZABEIEER
R o FlgN > (IFS BRI RN B E R A O
R A PR AR B 18 & 2 S U R im D e
BHREEL o AEREE M EIRHIRMR
EmRRFBATTE > BREBHKFAH
IRIBREBIEGE o

HRAEEEEENTIMEMS © IR
IBEBAMAEER IS0 140015355 © % &
B FIFEST(E ~ B R mnaa kMK
REER > BEEE—TROEMAVIRIE
BB

HE

BERBEHRESENTZERE - MK
SHIEA > AEEHFRHNERSRYE
BERERAEEENBERKRERHER - 4
E—HREHBAEL > AR HER BB
FHEUREBRREEFBEEERN
EEERRT - FMNAEERFMEM -
HARBAAIES  EXAEEEHES
B EmEREUEN - BEHIAE - HlM
REMAREERRER  ERFER
R - ESME X ZRBE IR AN E
R4l o JHMIV TIZAM S E AR IE B I
SHAEE » WRERAFZEIRNER
REBER -



For vehicle emissions, we have established policies that limit
vehicle use to essential needs only and encourage the use of
public transportation. However, with increased travel distances
and location during the Reporting Period, vehicle emissions
were slightly increased. To minimize GHG emissions, the Group
ensures vehicles are well maintained to prevent high pollutants
levels. We also promote the use of electric vehicles, having
installed several electric vehicle chargers at the Chong Hing
Finance Center in Shanghai and One-Eight-One Hotel &
Serviced Residences (“One-Eight-One”) in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, we participated in the
Environmental Protection Department’s Indoor Air Quality
Scheme, earning the “Indoor Air Quality Certificate — Good
Class” for Chong Hing Square and Chong Hing Bank Centre.

The Group significantly reduced the necessity for business
travel, decreasing GHG emissions by nearly 50% compared to
the previous reporting year. Business travel primarily aimed at
market expansion, plays a significant role in exploring new
business opportunities and markets. Visiting new locations
allows management to conduct market research and evaluate
potential risks and challenges. The company has established
policies and strict approval procedures to ensure that only
essential business trips are undertaken.

HREmPEN > KMEIERRBK &
BHEHNFERERNMEERER > L5
BIERAERIBEBIR - A » AIREH
i T EE Bl e s BE Y9 BRI 0 > EEEwHE
WEHB LA ARERVBEREH
W AERRRSEN[{IRHFRE
MBS LIS AR ERE o FHPITRHEEME
AE W SR EESR AP0 K
One-Eight-One /&S KR ARFE N EE (TOne-
Eight-One)) L4 L ERSE R E ©

REBEHE > RASRTHIRERES
BMNERNTRERE > AIEESR
BIERITHROERSE IEAEREREE
e (REFAR)L ©

AEBAERDBHEROTR > B E
—HREFEMAL  BEREHKRERD
H50%c MHBEREEZLURETISSE
B ERATEE AT S AEEESRE
ER - EEEFSERMEEMNS 28
EITTIGE L B TE R R R B k8 o
FRABHERRREBOEMIZF > B
RIBEITOENBHER ©
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GHG emissions during the Reporting Period:

REHENEERESIN

Sources Types of GHG Unit 2023 2022
KR BEREEY Efif —EC= —E-C
Emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption Nitrogen oxides (NO,) tonnes 0.02093 0.01459
and use of vehicles
REMEDHFER S B RN EIREE &ty (No,) L]
Sulphur oxides (S0,) tonnes 0.00010 0.00007
fé&1E4 (S0, WA
Direct emissions or removals from sources (Scope 1)
ERRZEREBHEAR (BE1)
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources Carbon dioxide (CO,) tonnes 92.72 88.12
TRENRRIMERT R E RIS —&1Ehx(Co,) U
Methane (CH,)! tonnes 0.28 0.26
BRI (CH,)! WA
Nitrous oxide (N,O)* tonnes 11.50 10.93
AIEEE(N,0) i
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
R = RARHE (8E2)
Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon dioxide (CO,) tonnes 342612 3,293.89
nENARBEES —S1ER% (CO,) Wa
Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon dioxide (CO,) tonnes 63.14 4328
REBPERIARABERER Z&Ehk(Co,) L]
Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)
HithfasR = RARHHK (8E3)
Electricity used for processing fresh water and Carbon dioxide (CO,) tonnes 1230 17.43
sewage by government departments
BT BRI 3E B K R 5 KR P FEE 7] Z&Ehk(Co,) Ui
Business air travel by employees Carbon dioxide (CO,) tonnes 5.83 11.07
BEMEEHERK ~&1{bi (CO) L]
Total GHG emission (Scope 1, Scope 2 & Scope 3) Carbon dioxide (CO,)* tonnes 3,611.89 3,464.98
BEREHNEE (EBE] - HE2RHE3) Z& 16k (CO,) Ui
Total GHG emission intensity Carbon dioxide (CO,)/ tonnes 1263 12.24
employee
BEREHNARE Z&thk(Co,)/ 1BE L]
Notes: Mzt
1 Methane and nitrous oxide emissions were converted into carbon dioxide emissions based 1. REZKEGER(TGWP)) » BERRECEIHKR

on global warming potential (“GWP"). Therefore, the total amount of greenhouse gas
emissions is the total amount of carbon dioxide emissions equivalent.

The methodology adopted for reporting on greenhouse gas emissions set out above was
based on “How to Prepare an ESG report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange.

BRA SRR Bt BERBHREEA-
AIERINEEEE
2. LRREREHMEREMRAN G AR EATE

M ERERE HERERRS — M= R
MR RERIES



The Group has set a target to reduce the intensity of emissions
from gaseous fuel consumption and overall GHG emissions by
2% in its Hong Kong properties by the year 2025, using the year
2021 as the baseline. During the Reporting Period, excluding
the electricity consumption from the reopened restaurant, the
overall electricity usage was lower than in the previous
reporting period, indicating progress toward the target. To
achieve this reduction, several measures have been
implemented including the regular maintenance of vehicles
and machineries to reduce gas emissions and the upgrading of
chillers in managed properties to conserve electricity.

The Group did not record any instances of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that significantly impact on GHG
emissions during the Reporting Period.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

We embrace the “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle” philosophy as the
cornerstone of our environmental protection efforts, promoting
responsible resource management and contributing to a more
sustainable future. Our waste management policies ensure
proper handling of all waste, along side strategies aimed at
reducing waste generation.

REDUCE

The Group believes waste reduction at the source is the most
effective management approach. For internal communications,
we encourage the use of electronic communication channels
over paper-based communication whenever possible. When
printing is necessary, double-sided printing is encouraged.
During the procurement stage, the Group negotiates with
suppliers to minimize unnecessary packaging and request more
sustainable packaging alternative, like substituting plastic with

paper.

In hotel operations, for long-stay guests, we minimize plastic
usage by switching to larger-sized bottles for bathroom
amenities and avoid using plastic garbage bags in guest rooms.
A new, more durable and less crease-prone uniform was
introduced during the Reporting Period.

FEBRTEBR AT —FREE >
E-_E_RFZAREBYERRHFE
FREEMNBINREREEREHFREE
2% o IR EHAMRE 0 BISREMRER
BFIEENEER  BERBERN L
—REH AILRBEZFTEMBR -
~ERZABIER > RAEKRNZIERE
It o BUERETT EHA R M R i 2R AE FE LURL
DRARIEN > URFREEVMENRS
RIEUABIEES] ©

RIREHRE > Z2EEXRZFRFEER
RE HE AT A 1E {71 K AR AR A VA 15 e AR 51 B9
ESR

BEMER

HFIRFF TR ER - MEHEA - BIRB
B BESEAREALENESG G888
ENERERE > BAFERKFLER o
?JﬂFﬂLi_@%&IEESZ%EEﬁ%TFEE@%

ETZERE  RFESSERLVEY
EELE YR o
i L 1 F

FEBRE > REAEERAEUNERE
Bk ERBMEES > RFIXBIRAIAE
EREFEEENMREREE -ELEY
ENBy > FFIscBhEEEYIED - TERIBREEL
AEBEMEEFGE > URLFTHERN
BE > TERRBAFENSLEENLS
£ WAMKREAER -

TEEEELE HHERRAREE > &M
BENBEAMENLTSRA@RBLVDER
ERE » WiRRERFEAEBIIRE
REBEHE > ZASKBEEE T ER
TEMA ~ A ZERKBIFHIAR
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REUSE

Reusing resources significantly lower of waste generation,
easing the burden on landfills and the environment. The Group
encourages staff to use reusable items such as utensils and
glass cups. Festival decorations and hotel operations use non-
disposable items. In hotel operations, the more durable green
cards were redesigned during the Reporting Period to serve a
broader purpose. For long-stay hotel guests, without
compromising customer satisfaction, guests have the option to
reuse towels and mattress for multiple days, contributing to
water and energy conservation. Additionally, old towels and
unused tissue rolls are repurposed for internal cleaning use.

RECYCLE

Recycling helps conserve natural resources by minimizing the
necessity for extracting raw materials. At our headquarters and
managed properties, we promote recycling among employees
by providing recycling bins in staff areas for their convenience.
Additionally, old furniture in good condition, no longer needed
between departments, is gathered and donated to charitable
organizations.

Our hotel operations serve as the primary source for collecting
recycled materials. Our housekeeping team collects recyclable
materials from guest rooms, sorts them, and places them in
designated recycling points for collection. Since One-Eight-One
was no longer a quarantine hotel during the Reporting Period,
the materials were no longer required to be treated as clinical
waste and could be arranged for recycling. Consequently, the
total volume of recycled materials increased significantly
compared to the previous reporting period.

Materials recycled during the Reporting Period:

MEHH
BERBIAARKEEEVMONELE > BE
HIURHHEERIREHNEHE - ZEBRE
BETHERANERMNANYIL  NEER
R - EEIBERAHAEEEZSH
ERE—RMEYm - EBEEZSHE >
AR KSHREMRSEMANET
R LUREEEZNAER - HRNRE
TE > EFAREZTRREENERT
EANUEREZHEREREMRKE
W MABEIKERAE o S > BEEMRK
ERNEMERKRERMA > FRRHE
RR®T -

BIRBE
BIRBEAMREBR D RRRMEHR
HERER TR REEYE > &
HETEREMWE > HEEITETOE
e > DAEZRERFH B TRYEIWLEH © thoh -
HPIREMFPIFTBREN - KR REFH
ERE > MR TESHE -

B I SR 5 2 O WA B £ Z2ROR o 3%
HYE B AR B R = B R E R R -
ETOE > UREREEEERWRE
T S - IS TE ¥R S HA A > One-Eight-
One A BAREHEE > FILZFMHE
FEREARSBEREY > ATETERKRAA -
FE > 82 E—#R S HIAELL > B AR
ABEAKIEM o

S AR RV AT [E] U A #e

Materials Unit 2023 2022
L7t B “EC=H ZECCE
Used cooking oil tonnes 1384 0.625
FERBENRH W
Paper tonnes 0.390 0.220
R 0
Plastic bottles tonnes 0.599 0.006
BB 0
Aluminium cans tonnes 0.080 0.067
it 0




Food Waste

It is inevitable for a hotel to generate surplus materials from
kitchen operations. We regularly review and manage food
preparation to minimize food waste. Kitchen waste will undergo
simple fermentation to be transformed into fertilizer for use in
hotel greening and fertilization.

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a total of
27.38 (compared to 22.5 in 2022) tonnes of general hotel and
office waste, equating to an intensity of 0.10 (compared to 0.08
in 2022) tonnes per employee. This increase was attributed to
the corresponding decrease in hazardous waste.

The Group did not generate any hazardous waste in the
Reporting Period (0.08 tonnes of clinical waste in year 2022
arising from the cleaning of COVID-19 confirmed guest rooms).
In instances where hazardous waste is present, the Group has
established policies outlining procedures for collection and
handling by recognized contractors.

As the Group did not generate any hazardous waste, a reduction
target is not applicable. The Group aims to achieve less non-
hazardous waste in the coming year by promoting reusable
products.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group’s main resource consumption comprises electricity,
materials, and water. The Group regularly assesses and
implements new measures to enhance the management and
conservation of resources.

RYRE
BEEEEEERAAB Rt EE SR
Mkl HAEHEEREERYRE
iR BYIRE - BEEEYREBHE
RUEERRIE > BIEAER > BREIES
{EREE -

BEEBEYMEEZEY

REREHAR » ANE@MBRES S HE27.38M—
WBERBAZEY(HRME =
ZZHEA2250)  HERSAI{EER0.10
WA (FEEmMsS > — S - "4 4008H) o
ZILINER RN B SEEYRIERER L

RS AEBREETAESE
M (CEZZFREFZMETRF SRS
EEMAEL0.08MEEEEY) - MEETH
EEY > AEBRHIERE > MHBEL
R AEEETREREENZRF

HRAEBREEEAESEY > BUA
HERAER T~EESTEERBEER
EREREMR ARR—FRIVESE
) o
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ENERGY SAVING

B BE

Reducing energy consumption helps mitigate greenhouse gas BRIEBEFEBEBIN R BEEREEHEM o &K
emissions. The Group values the importance of energy saving. ®£ESEEREAETIE - RMMEGES &
We believe it can reduce our carbon emissions and mitigate the  AERIR/D IR EFINE > BB AEFEHIRIEMN
environmental impact of energy consumption. The Group F/28. AEFEZYERIEFTEIERA
closely monitors the building management system to oversee EB5if|8 )4 A4 HFE » MR T EERE
chiller consumption and closely monitors daily meter EH#EE > KRZERETEEEFEAHBEN
consumption to promptly identify any abnormal usage. Several ZA&EEAF /D EFEMEL NS TFTIEMRI
measures have been adopted to reduce its energy consumption: F :

Examples of the Group’s measures to improve the energy ZAEEARSHEEMERMEFREL

efficiency of its operations are highlighted below: BRI T -
Head office Switching off some lifts after office hours, as well as idle office equipment
e ENARRREREIARESERAER ARG

Using electrical appliances with a Grade 1 energy label according to the Hong Kong
government's Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme

RERE BRI RN R 8 —RERRENESR

Posting notices on saving energy to promote environmental awareness

REGEAES T RBRME M

Investment properties

REME

Using light-emitting diode (“LED") lighting for exterior billboards and switching off lights
in unoccupied areas

ENESRERENBE (TLED)) BIELMMEA BT HRA

Having dedicated staff to conduct regular inspections and monitor energy consumption

HEATHRERERERHRE

Upgrading building management systems, variable speed drives and chillers in managed
properties for current control and energy usage monitoring purposes

AREENZNEFEERR  BIRRRSRE 2R WER BRI EEERER

Hotel operations
BIEEE

Switching off lights in unoccupied areas and some lifts at midnight

AR A\GENRBERAETREERHIFAEER

Reducing the frequency of changing mattresses and towels where possible, without
affecting customers’ experience in using our hotel services
AAFEBRZZREERBNAIRT » Erlfn) ERREREDEE
Purchasing waterproof mattresses and pillow covers to reduce unnecessary steaming
steps

BERKRBNNE » WRDTHENZ SRS R

Manual switching off chiller operation when the outdoor temperature reaches a lower
temperature

EEMEERERDEER  FHHARIZR

Additional frequency inverter drives for flush water upfeed pump replacement

SREREIERE  BIRUPRIKHAR




Promoting energy efficiency and savings is crucial for
continually reducing carbon emissions. During the Reporting
Period, Liu Chong Hing Property Management & Agency Limited
demonstrated its commitment to the Government’s Energy
Saving Charter 2023 by undertaking the following initiatives:

1. Maintaining an indoor temperature range of 24-26°C
during summer time.

2. Switching off electrical appliances and systems when not
in use and procure energy efficient appliances and
systems

3. Encouraging staff and tenants to adopt the above energy
saving practices together

12 71 BE 5 88 i Bz BT AE ¥ 455 4 R ) Bl R T
EHEZ - NERSHE > BRIEYEE
BERAEERAFREBERUTHRER
BEHI(BNEENE_SE_=ZF)ET
HY7&GE

1 EFRPEEREFTERK24E26
EZE

2. FAENERNERKRRR
FEIRM BB R R AR

REER

3. EREIXRERBEREKEERIER
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4. Promoting energy data transparency, and share energy 4. 1275 f%ﬂ)ﬁ BHEE » HZ=HIREFE
saving measures and achievements; and R R 5
5. Promoting building energy saving retrofit 5  HWEEFERENE
Electricity consumption and intensity during the Reporting ¥REHRNBEEERFE !
Period:
Unit 2023 2022
B k- ek 3 k- Skt 2
Electricity consumption kWh 4,880,208.68 4,692,649.62
REE TRE
kWh/employee 17,063.67 16,581.80
TEE &8

As our hotel facilities have resumed services to all guests
following the improvement of the local epidemic situation, this
has led to an increase in electricity consumption. The Group has
set a target of reducing energy consumption by 3% in its Hong
Kong properties by the year 2025, with the year 2021 set as the
baseline. To achieve this, the Group replaced some pre-cooling
air units in the hotel building to enhance cooling efficiency and
reduce energy consumption during the Reporting Period. The
Group continues to monitor progress in reaching the target.
Whenever there is a need to replace a broken machine, the
Group prioritizes selecting electrical appliances with the
highest efficiency and lowest consumption. Additionally, the
Group will continue to strengthen employees’ energy-saving
awareness through internal training and education.

BEHERBLEENE » RMEER
MEWMERAEZEARE > BEXRE
HEREM - AE&EEGEER UZF
——EREBESE_EAFZARSE
BYEBBEFHFER LD 3% - RBRE—
BiR AEERKSHBEERBERE
FRETRSERARE > AR LA
R BE TR OHAE © ZK%.H‘J‘%ENEE./\
ERE—BRNER FEBRBRERRE
Ry > REEEBRE Eﬁ%?& = BEFER
REESR o ItHh » AEEREBE BB A
IR AR E THERESH
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During the Reporting Period, certain properties managed by the
Group participated in Earth Hour 2023 by turning off non-
essential external and interior lights and electrical appliances
for one hour at nighttime, symbolizing our support for energy
conservation and climate action.

The participated properties are:
One-Eight-One Hotel

Chong Hing Bank Centre
Chong Hing Square

Grandview Court

Bonsun Industrial Building
Fairview Court

Fung Yip Building office

MATERIALS USAGE

Sustainable materials are typically sourced and manufactured
in ways that minimize harm to the environment. The Group
carefully sources and selects materials that contain sustainable
certification or are made from renewable resources or recycled
materials. We are dedicated to establishing a robust framework
for embracing sustainability in our business operation.

To protect the environment, the Group only procures certified
Forest Stewardship Council paper for office usage. We have
introduced eco-friendly products such as biodegradable
takeaway meal boxes and cutlery for takeaway meals, as well
as oxo-biodegradable paper cups and paper straws. As there is
a growing demand for plant-based ingredients, we offer plant-
based options in our restaurant. These options generally have a
lower environmental footprint compared to animal-based
products, as producing plants requires fewer resources such as
water and land, and generates fewer greenhouse gas emissions.

Our garbage bags are made from completely biodegradable
plastic. Additionally, we use bamboo tissue instead of tissue
paper made from wood pulp. Bamboo grows up to 30% faster
than other trees, so its use helps reduce environmental harm.
The shampoo, conditioner, and shower gel supplied in hotel
guest rooms are organic, made with natural ingredients derived
from plants, herbs, and essential oils, avoiding synthetic
chemicals. This helps reduce the release of harmful chemicals
into waterways, minimizing pollution and protecting
ecosystems.
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WATER MANAGEMENT

The Group promotes water-saving habits to conserve water
resources. The Group has not encountered any problem in
sourcing water. Water consumption primarily occurs in our
offices, hotels, and commercial buildings.

Water-saving habits are highlighted below:

. Sensors are installed at taps to control the volume of
water output

. Dual flush system devices are equipped in all guest room
bathroom. During the Reporting Period, more sensors were
installed in guest washrooms as part of the renovation
work

. Regularly inspecting and repairing leaks in plumbing
fixtures and pipes to prevent water wastage

. Educating employees about the importance of water
conservation and posting signs for saving water near sinks

We maintain water quality standards by conducting cleaning of
our freshwater tanks quarterly. Samples are obtained from
these tanks and sent to recognised laboratories for testing
purposes to ensure water quality.

Since we are no longer operating as a quarantine hotel, less
water is consumed in the Reporting Period for cleaning and
disinfection purpose. We are consistently exploring feasible
strategies to decrease water consumption. One of our targets
involves assessing the impact of installing water aerators to
lower water flow. The initial study will concentrate on staff
areas, specifically examining water taps in the staff canteen,
hotel kitchen, and laundry area.

Water consumption and intensity during the Reporting Period:
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Unit 2023 2022
Efi - Sk 3 - et -2
Water consumption m? 19,944.80 28,527.49
EKE IHK 107
m?/employee 69.74 100.80 =
IBR/ B8

RESHE > *EETERETAER
BRARKERLMBETHEER ERE
SEEYVINERERRERBVER -

For the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any notice

I3 SR ]

of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating
to discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

BEIEE=—&= |



=
(=3
©

€207 LHOd3Y TYNNNY | QILIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI -HHEARELBRSSE

CLIMATE CHANGE

Our Executive Committee recognizes the importance of
identifying and addressing significant climate risks. A risk
management policy has been established to identify and
mitigate various risks that we may encounter and their impacts

on the Group’s business.

mAIREME

HITEZEERR > #NERERRR
BEREREE - ZRMAIEHERKREER
R DGR EE MR SE B BN B 1
RERENSEBEBNZE o

Physical risks ERAR
Description Response measures
fiid FESHEHE

The frequency of extreme weather conditions, such as typhoons,

flooding, and rainstorms, may increase.

BimR R TR EIBER » MEEA « HKK R » FIAE GBI °

It affects supply logistics, disrupt outdoor work, and increase risks

for staff commuting to work.

FEYRME  PIMERE > WEME TIBEAER

Maintain a large supplier base for selection.

R REA VISR R » DR -

Establish a policy to provide guidelines for staff on work
arrangements during extreme weather conditions.

HIERENR » A8 TRIEEHEX TR THRIELHEHE
5| o

Transition risks

Description

fit

Customer preferences may shift towards competitors who

prioritize environmental protection.
R EEnHRERESERMINGENTF -

Changes in environmental policies and rules may increase

compliance costs for the Group

RRHRIRENE RS MAE BN SR o

Response measures

FESHERE

Keep communication with customers to understand their
preferences and needs to respond to changes promptly.

BERFREER TRARINER > UERBERENE -

Regularly monitors existing and new climate-related policies and
regulations.

EHEARA RN REEHERNER -

To properly manage the potential impact from climate change,
the Group performs regular review on the identified risks and

implement necessary actions.

ARLEEERBREECAIESRNZE
AEEE BT B E Y E L E
2178 -



EMPLOYMENT

Our business success is built upon people, and we consider
employees our most valuable asset. We promote a harmonious
relationship based on mutual respect and equal opportunities.
The Group has developed an Operations Manual and Staff
Handbook detailing human resource management policies. It
covers policies on recruitment, dismissal, promotion, anti-
discrimination, benefits and remuneration, health and safety,
and other welfare measures.

RECRUITMENT AND DISMISSAL

The Group values staff diversity. A diverse workforce brings
together individuals with different perspectives, experiences,
and backgrounds. However, all job applicants share an equal
chance in the recruitment process. We assess and evaluate
candidates solely based on their experience and qualifications,
ensuring a fair and equitable recruitment process regardless of
gender, age, race, family status, religion, or disability status.
Candidates are required to disclose any conflicts of interest
between themselves and the Group. Child or forced labour are
strictly prohibited. We employ appropriate candidate screening
and age verification measures in our recruitment process to
ensure that the information disclosed by the candidate is
accurate and meets our Group’s requirements.

To safeguard sensitive personal data, all information gathered
during the recruitment process is solely be utilized for its
intended purposes and accessed only by authorized personnel.
Details of unsuccessful candidates are typically erased 24
months following their application.

Employees within the Group must adhere to our internal
policies and code of conduct. Those found engaging in
misconduct or displaying unsatisfactory performance may face
disciplinary actions, up to and including termination of
employment. Unfair or unlawful dismissals are not tolerated.
Dismissal will only occur on reasonable and lawful grounds or
in cases of serious policy violations.
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EMPLOYMENT

The Group promotes open and transparent communication
channels between employees and management. Employees are
encouraged to communicate their job difficulties or thoughts
with the supervisor overseeing their daily activities. Working
hours and rest times are clearly outlined in our employment
contracts with staff. The Group conducts regular reviews to
ensure compliance with applicable labour standards and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Department heads and supervisors are responsible for
overseeing the quality of work performed by subordinates and
managing overall workplace affairs within the department. If
any cases of child or forced labour are identified, the Human
Resources department will conduct an immediate investigation.
If such instances are confirmed, the employment relationship
with the implicated candidate will be terminated.

& &
2&%@@%51&1"‘"@@2%@%%3&
FERANEE RSB EELEER
BEEPNEREEENR ﬁIf’EI%EEJZ

% HPEETHNREESHFERT
EHIf’FB%F'aﬁ&M?k%E%F’aﬁ o REETEH
B URFRREETEERTENE
P TRRAE AR o

HMHABBEAMTEASEETEIF:
TEREBPFIRNNBRE TSR - MEIR
EfRE T S5a% % TRE > ANERS
FIRZENRARE - MBE > HFIRE
- BAFRRA iR ARV (B R 1% o

Detailed information about our workforce can be found below: HBREIE THEREHTIIT :
Total Workforce: B T4E8 :
By gender 2023 2022 By age group 2023 2022
1451 —EC= ZEZCE EBAER —EC= - Jone
Male 59% 58% 30 years old or younger 12% 10%
B 30FIUT
Female 41% 42% 31-50 years old 54% 53%
peq i 31E505%
51-60 years old 23% 27%
S1E605%
Over 61 years old 11% 10%
61REMU L
By geographical region 2023 2022 By employment category 2023 2022
HE ZgC-= ZECCE (ERER —g-= k- et
Hong Kong 74% 78% Senior level 14% 15%
&8 BREEAER
Others 26% 22% Middle level 25% 24%
Hith HREEAER
Entry level 61% 61%
BiEET

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not notice any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
preventing child and forced labour, compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunities, diversity, discrimination
prevention, or other benefits and welfare such as Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

RBEHE > ~EETESFREAER
BRMIEET RAAHISE T ~ Fri s r2(E -
BEREM  TERH- REA- TEH
g St BLERRIEMTERE
MBBRARRERNER  WERE
5158 57 B (R R A% B ) K & A B 55 485
& (GafltEARE s EIRAD o



EMPLOYEE RETENTION

We believe that experienced employees possess valuable
knowledge and expertise about the Group’s operations,
processes, and culture, which are essential for our long-term
success and sustainability. The Group boosts employee
satisfaction and morale by addressing their concerns, providing
competitive compensation and benefits, and promoting a
healthy and supportive work environment.

During the reporting period, the Human Resources department
designed and distributed a questionnaire to staff to understand
their opinions on improving workplace facilities and measures
to facilitate their work. We received much positive feedback.
The Group has assessed the feedback and responded as
practically as possible. We made efforts to enhance the
workplace environment to accommodate the personal needs of
our staff. For instance, we facilitate breastfeeding by permitting
breaks for this purpose and offering a private area equipped
with suitable facilities for working mothers who have resumed
their duties after childbirth.

We strictly adhere to labour laws and regulations and offer a
comprehensive package to our staff. In addition to statutory
holidays, we provide a range of paid leave options including
sick leave, casual leave (i.e., leave of absence at short notice for
personal matters or family emergencies), marriage leave,
compassionate leave, annual leave, and injury leave. Our aim is
to offer greater flexibility to our employees in managing their
personal and family affairs.

The Group’s medical benefits extend to certain employees’
spouses or children as well. During extreme weather conditions
or when road and traffic conditions hinder staff from reporting
for duty on time, we respond with consideration. Employees
who are required to report for duty under No. 8 or higher
tropical cyclone warning signals or black rainstorm warning
signals are eligible to apply for overtime payment and
allowances, including meal and transportation allowances.
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The total turnover rate during the Reporting Period increased $HREHANBEBBER_ST-__FH
from 18% in 2022 to 36% in the current period. This increase  18% EFHZEZAHIMI 36% © ZIEMETEEH
was mainly due to job market dynamics. As the economy RFETISEEFRR - EELTIBER
recovers from the pandemic, job opportunities increase, #EER > IEMKSIEN > ETSKHE
prompting employees to seek new opportunities that align with HEB¥ BIZRELBIEETHHK S o
their career goals and priorities. In the future, we will endeavor R > FKMISG LB HABE L EH) > 158
to organize more events to enhance the sense of belonging EBIKREEBR -

among our staff.

Detailed information about employee turnover can be found HEFRIESBEREFTMNEBUT !

below:
By gender 2023 2022 By age group 2023 2022
1451 k- e ZRICE FRAER - el - et
Male 35% 18% 30 years old or younger 51% 41%
Bt 30BEMUT
Female 36% 18% 31-50 years old 32% 18%
7 31E505%
51-60 years old 37% 14%
51E605%
Over 61 years old 35% 7%
61 L
By geographical region 2023 2022
HE —§-= - el
Hong Kong 41% 22%
&8
Others 19% 5%

Htth




DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We value staff development as it plays a pivotal role in
cultivating a positive work environment and enhancing
productivity. To facilitate staff development, the Group provides
training programs, mentorship opportunities, regular
performance feedback, and creates a supportive work
environment that encourages continuous learning and skill-
building.

Annual performance reviews are conducted uniformly for all
employees to facilitate dialogue between employees and
department heads. These reviews are used to evaluate
compensation packages and identify promotion opportunities.
Eligible staff members are rewarded with promotions and
salary increases.

Experienced employees or supervisors guide and instruct new
or less experienced staff members while they perform their
regular job duties. This training method allows employees to
learn in a real-world environment, applying their skills directly
to their tasks and projects. New employees, especially those
who meet and provide services to our customers on the front
line, are required to attend an orientation training course on
their first day of work to familiarize themselves with the
Group’s objectives, culture, and employee rules and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, a series of internal and external
training programs were organized to ensure that staff received
adequate training tailored to their needs in various positions
and roles. The extensive array of training topics encompassed
various areas such as occupational health and safety
workshops, environmental materials in construction, and
customer services. Apart from training organized by the Group,
we provide training allowances for all work-related courses on
a discretionary basis to encourage staff to take initiative in their
personal development.

The Group has joined the “Y-WE” program organized by Child
Development Initiative Alliance (“CDIA") to provide a platform
for students to engage in field experience and explore their
career interests through meaningful and practical work
experience. The young bring fresh perspectives, innovative
ideas, and enthusiasm to the workplace.
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36%) E’\MEEE#%F*‘*PEJH  BREENF
IR B A Le4/ N (T2 "4 © 2.28

During the Reporting Period, a total of 57% (2022: 36%) of
employees were trained with average of 1.64 (2022:2.28)

training hours per employee. The breakdown is as shown below:

INEF) o BRARFITRINT ¢
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By gender 2023 2022 By employment category 2023 2022
1451 - o -3 2o CE (RRER —E-= - e
Male 49% 36% Senior level 21% 31%
B BREEAR
Female 68% 37% Middle level 56% 29%
g hREEAS
Entry level 66% 40%
BiEET
The average number of trainings taken per participated RIR&HIM > S8X238ESEZEIN
employee during the Reporting Period: TgREy .
By gender 2023 2022 By employment category 2023 2022
145 ot k- ZECCE (ERERN “EC=H ZECCE
Male 3.29 5.76 Senior level 1.66 4.46
B BREEAE
Female 244 7.04 Middle level 292 6.71
ey HREEAE
Entry level 294 6.55
EEET

REBEHE > ~EBRE—H82 EE
DIER ) BEHIERIE - HENERIBIEMR
MERREBEHEANOEER k.—;ﬂ
EMEREIERFAERBENGE
i%ﬁ)llﬁ%&mt—,ﬁﬁiﬁallE%*z((ﬁx‘ﬁl}%k_ﬁ
SRS (R LERSHIREEN) BRA
E4E - FFIMB1E - ZIFAIRIZHE BN IE
BT ZEBNARRG > BREEME
NIFREEREE

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a training
session titled “Psychology of Communication.” The objective is
to enhance colleagues’ ability to communicate effectively in
their daily work by understanding and applying psychological
theories related to communication. This session served as an
advanced continuation of the theory introduced in the previous
training course, the Effective Communication Skills Workshop,
which was held in the last reporting period. We believe that the
training session helps enhance staff interpersonal relationships,
which is essential in creating a harmonious working
environment.



HEALTH AND SAFETY

Employees are the Group’s most valuable assets, our main
objective is to ensure a safe and healthy work environment for
them. To achieve this objective, the Group implements the
following key strategies:

. Developed an occupational health and safety framework

. Conducted risk assessments to identify areas of risk in the
workplace and implement mitigation responses.

. Established operational procedures and policies to
provide guidelines for workflow in areas

. Addressed and rectified any identified risk conditions
promptly

Certain properties managed by Liu Chong Hing Property
Management & Agency Limited have obtained ISO 45001
certification for their occupational health and safety
management systems. This framework aids in preventing work-
related injuries, illnesses, and fatalities by identifying and
controlling occupational health and safety risks, promoting a
safe and healthy work environment, and continually improving
occupational health and safety performance.

For some specific examples of providing a safe and healthy
work environment, it includes the following:

. Adequately stocked first aid kits are provided in our hotel,
office, and commercial buildings.

. Safety training is conducted to familiarize responsible
staff with the use of first aid kits and reporting procedures.

. All property management staff are mandated to wear
safety boots for personal protection.

. Regular dissemination of safety tips to staff helps maintain
their safety awareness.

. Staff can easily access equipment operating guidelines
and safety handbook when needed.

. Number of portable fans are distributed to property
management staff to combat high temperatures during
the summer.
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During the Reporting Period, there were 31 (2022:386) lost days
due to work injuries. We have not experienced any work-related
fatalities in the past three years. In the event of a work injury,
thorough investigations are conducted. Additionally, ad hoc
training sessions are promptly arranged when necessary to
enhance staff awareness of relevant issues.

Work and health are closely related. Apart from the physical
well-being of employees, the Group also values staffs’ mental
health. The Group has joined the Joyful@Healthy Workplace
Programme organized by The Department of Health, Labour
Department, and the Occupational Safety and Health Council.
This program aims to promote employee well-being, health,
and happiness in the workplace. The Group participated in the
Zentangle Mindful Art Workshop under the mentioned
programme allowing employees to immerse themselves in a
state of relaxation and focus. Staff members have benefited
from a sense of peace of mind and reduced work pressure.

The Group will persist in refining its work procedures to
prioritize the health and safety of its staff, striving to establish a
safe and healthy work environment. For the Reporting Period,
the Group has not noticed any non-compliance in relation to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
laws of Hong Kong).

RBEHE > PRI EELXTEEH
A3B(ZTEZ- "4 :386H)  HMMN
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Opting for suppliers holds significant importance for the Group,
as they directly influence the quality, availability, and pricing of
our products or services. As of 31 December 2023, we
maintained connections with 795 (2022:968) approved
suppliers, of which 99% (2022:98%) are located in Hong Kong.
The Group has established standardized procurement policies,
which include guidelines and procedures for various aspects of
the procurement process, such as supplier selection, approval
processes, performance evaluation, and compliance
requirements.

The Group rigorously implements the screening procedure in its
supplier selection process. Initially, we conduct background
checks, including obtaining supplier company information and
verifying business registration, to ensure the legality of the
supplier’s operations. We prioritize understanding the supplier’s
manufacturing process, when needed, by requesting site visits
for a comprehensive overview of production procedures.
Furthermore, we require our suppliers and contractors to
disclose any violations of local laws, environmental regulations,
labour practices, and health and safety standards. We refrain
from engaging with any supplier that have a history of
questionable ESG practices.

Once the above criteria are met, suppliers are added to our
approved supplier list. Procurement is exclusively conducted
with these approved suppliers. Whenever possible, we typically
obtain three quotations for comparison, facilitating a thorough
product selection process. Attributes considered include the
quality and safety of goods, supplier experience and
qualifications, uniqueness of the goods supplied, emissions and
pollutants generated during the supply process, and the
traceability of goods. We provide staff with the opportunity to
participate in exhibitions or industry meetings to ensure that
they stay informed about the latest market supply and
developments, thus facilitating green procurement.
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Prior to procuring any materials or products, our procurement
staff assess the necessity of the product or service to prevent
unnecessary consumption. We promote green products and
carry out selection based on the functionality, biodegradability
and pathogenicity of the product. We also look into the toxicity
of products caused to the environment. The Group takes into
account the impact of our suppliers’ products on the
environment, and where possible, favours those who follow
environmentally sound practices, such as offering products with
greater durability and energy efficiency. We prioritize suppliers
with green factory certification or certifications related to ESG
practices, particularly local suppliers, to minimize our carbon
footprint by reducing the need for products that require long
shipping times. If there are quality issues or compliance
requirements, our inventory system facilitates traceability by
offering a comprehensive history of each inventory item,
detailing its origin, purchase date, and movement record.

Environmental and social risks across supply chains are
routinely assessed through ongoing monitoring in daily
operations, scrutiny of quality certificates, and, when feasible,
supplier audits. Regular performance reviews are conducted to
ensure that suppliers meet the Group’s requirements. These
reviews assess various aspects including the quality of work,
timeliness of performance, technical expertise, compliance, and
customer satisfaction. User departments are encouraged to
provide feedback from suppliers for procurement department
follow-up. If a supplier’s performance falls below our agreed
standard, improvement is expected. We do not tolerate
violations of our standards, requirements, or environmental and
social laws and regulations. Should such issues arise, business
relationships may be replaced or terminated.

ERBEAYHNERZA > KBAE
EERERIRFTEESLE  DUBRE
ARG ERHFE - HPIEREER
AR E mBIINEE ~ EVI I BREME R
AIEETIER - HATHRERBIRR
ERNEE FEREEZEHENER
HIRENEE > LEATERLT B%
EEFTANRRED WMRHEMAK
EEISEREm) BHER - ZFIBEZ R
ESEeIMUENIRR - HERER
BEERMDENHEERS > B 24 H
B UHERR HEERRERF
BIBEMBI TR » RAPRE MR DB
B MEEEEMEITRER > &M
NEFAASRHEBEEFEENTE
FESEsCER - sEAMlsRERE KR - BE R
KomEsseik o HEETIEM o
RAZEEHEEETHEER
HEFEE > UREHTERTETHE
BEZ > EHTEHEENIREREE
B - PG ERETENEE > UHE
REEEREEEENER - ZFEEE
AEEETIFEE  BRREN -~ B
BENE - GRERERREESSE
HHE - B SPIREEEE S @
R8> UERIBERPIERIE - B R
RENFMIBERIRE > BIZEMLARE -
BT ERTHEBRAEHERKM
HUIRE R E WIRIB AL B IR RRIER o
fisl IR ML SRR B - EFFRA R AR EVAEL
A1k o

8

AN —



PRODUCT AND SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has developed an extensive operational manual,
policies, and staff handbook that govern work procedures and
standards in our day-to-day activities. Each operational
department is led by individuals who are experienced and
experts in their respective fields.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

All employees are required to adhere to the procedures and
standards set by the Group. These standards delineate specific
quality criteria for our products or services. Employees receive
thorough training to ensure comprehension of these quality
standards and procedures. Department heads are tasked with
overseeing adherence to these standards through regular or
spot inspections of departmental performance. Should any
deviations from the quality standards be identified, employees
are expected to promptly take corrective actions under the
supervision of their department head. Detailed investigation
reports or documentation of such occurrences are maintained
for record-keeping purposes.

We foster a culture of continuous improvement by encouraging
employees to suggest and implement ways to enhance quality
processes. Regular refresher trainings, along with ad hoc topics,
are conducted to ensure that employees remain acquainted
with internal procedures and requirements. Additionally,
departmental operational meetings are held within
departments, while management meetings occur between the
Executive Committee and department heads, aimed at
monitoring departmental performance.
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At the hotels and properties under our management, we
maintain a humble approach while striving for excellence in
customer experience management. We ensure that barrier-free
access and facilities are available for those who require them.
Regular assessments of the condition and adequacy of our
facilities are conducted to meet the needs of our customers. In
the coming year, Hong Kong Government may implement strict
control measures on disposable plastic tableware and other
plastic products, prohibiting hotels from providing plastic
amenities such as toothbrushes with plastic handles, toothpaste
in plastic packaging and water in plastic bottles. The Group will
keep monitoring the development of regulations and ensure
that the Group adheres to the latest requirements.

Under our team'’s efforts, we are thrilled to announce that One-
Eight-One has been honored with the Tripadvisor 2023
Travellers’ Choice Award, recognizing the hotel’s position
among the top 1% of listings. Additionally, we are proud to
share that we have achieved the No. 20 ranking in the China
region on Tripadvisor.

Furthermore, Liu Chong Hing Property Management & Agency
Limited was recently awarded the Gold prize for the 2022
Security Services Best Training Award (Licensed Security
Company — Type 1). This award was organized by the
Vocational Training Council and the Hong Kong Police Force
(Crime Prevention Bureau) and supported by the Security and
Guarding Services Industry Authority. The Group will
continuously persist in its efforts to uphold quality assurance in
every work process.

COMPLAINT HANDLING PROCEDURES

We have established standardized complaint handling
guidelines and procedures. Customers and stakeholders can
lodge their complaints through various channels, including
instant communication messenger, email and the telephone
hotline provided on our website. Upon receiving customer
complaints, responsible staff are required to record the details
in the complaint log and pass them to the corresponding
department for prompt handling. After identifying the issue and
finding a solution, the responsible department, with
management involvement if needed, will respond to the
customer in a professional and timely manner.
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CONSUMER DATA PROTECTION AND PRIVACY

In the course of our operations, it is inevitable that we handle
customers’ personal data. Policies and guidelines are stipulated
to protect customer data and privacy. Employees must adhere
strictly to the policy and guidelines. All client communication
content must be kept confidential, and the Group prohibits staff
from transmitting or disclosing any personal data of customers.

A document management system with multiple access
permissions is implemented to ensure data protection and
security, thus preventing information leakage. Through different
security levels, access to information is limited to authorized
users only. Additionally, we have measures in place to monitor
data security. Any detected abnormal situations prompt
immediate notification to the responsible person.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS AND ADVERTISING

To preserve all intellectual property rights, the Group has
implemented appropriate security safeguards and will not
infringe any third-party interests. We ensure that licensed
software is adopted in our business operations, which is
procured by approved suppliers. Employees are reminded not
to infringe copyrighted works, and to be careful when using
computer software. Installation of pirated or unauthorised
software on company computers is prohibited.

Our advertisements are mainly conducted through our
corporate and hotel service website. Prior to posting any
information on our company website, employees are required
to adhere to our specified policy, undergoing proper review and
approval processes. The Group strictly prohibits the use of false
and misleading product descriptions on our website, and is
dedicated to maintaining clear, updated, and authentic content
at all times.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
notice of non-compliance in relation to health and safety,
advertising, labelling, and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided. Due to the nature of our business, recall
procedures and recall rates are not applicable to us.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has established policies and a staff code of conduct
to ensure that its operations are free from any form of
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering. All
employees are made aware of these policies on their first day
of duty. The Group regularly circulates anti-corruption materials
to ensure that directors and staff are fully informed of any
updates and remain compliant with relevant laws and
regulations.

According to the Group’s policy, any procurement exceeding a
specific amount must undergo the tendering procedure. This
process ensures fair competition and transparency in the
selection of suppliers. All tender documents are treated with
confidentiality, and access is restricted to the relevant
department to maintain the integrity of the procurement
process.

Stakeholders are encouraged to report any suspected
misconduct to the Group via our whistleblowing system.
Providing detailed information and evidence in the report is
helpful. Management will conduct investigations into any
suspicious or illegal activities in strict confidence. Further
actions, such as reporting to relevant regulators, may be taken
when unlawful behaviour is suspected.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees. Additionally, the Group has not received any
notices of non-compliance for the Group or any employee
regarding bribery, extortion, fraud, or money laundering.
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

It is our responsibility to care for the community and vulnerable
groups. The Group understands the importance of fulfilling
corporate social responsibility. We offer support through cash
donations and participation. The Group encourages its staff to
engage in fundraising campaigns to assist underprivileged
individuals in the community.

In June 2023, the Company and Gracefield East Kowloon
Christian Kindergarten collaborated to organize a CSR event
“Good Character Activities — Goodness.” The objective of the
event was to educate children about the positive impact and
contributions made by the hotel service industry to the
community. During the event, we employed situational stories
to impart lessons on kindness and empathy, encouraging
children to cultivate a compassionate mindset and offer
assistance to those in need. We introduced various hotel
facilities to the participating students, aiming to provide them
with insights into the operations and functions of the hotel
industry. This interactive approach broadened the children’s
understanding of different professions. Through these activities,
we sought to instill values of kindness and community
engagement, contributing to their development.

EliEL &

ARt ERBEHHERRMNEE &
EERFNBTEEMEEEINEE R -
BMERRERER2HENA X IRHIE
Blo AEBFBEST2HEREE
MEBNt & PRIS5EEEERS o

RTEBZ=ZFRA FRAKREBEHR
HRNAENEBRSHEXTEEEER
r#?nuﬂ%}ﬁib — RE BiBEFERYR
o 5 R TS 1T R B & R RE R
ENERM - FEHE > RMARAB=R
FHRERMEEONRE  XBH R
BECREZL REEFEHEREN
AT HFMBHRBENBIBEBEER
it EERMPIRAT BEBEETENE
ERIMEE - E—EBARNARYEHT
FERENTZ - KAERBBREEEES

mRERERMTESENEEE
Rl RV R o

o
c
=
z
m
wn
7
o
m
=
]
=
>
Zz
o
(a)
o
X
-l
(]
P
>
=}
m
(0]
o
<
m
]
4
>
z
0
m
b
#
o]
-]
&
5
oy
*
i

I3 SR ]

BEIEE=—&= |



[
N
o

€207 LHOd3Y TYNNNY | QILIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIE - EAE

/IZI:FEIZI =

In August 2023, the Group organized a cookie-making workshop
at Madam Hong’s Bakery, a professional bakery established by
Ngai Shing Workshop of Fu Hong Society. The bakery is
operated by a team of professional pastry chefs alongside
individuals with disabilities. By hosting this workshop, the Group
demonstrated its support for the bakery’s operations, which
provide opportunities for vocational training and employment
for individuals with intellectual disabilities. This event promotes
inclusion and diversity. Through participation in the workshop,
attendees not only learn baking skills but also contribute to the
social and economic inclusion of individuals with disabilities.
This aligns with the Group’s broader commitment to corporate
social responsibility and supporting initiatives that promote
inclusivity and equal opportunities for all members of the
community.

Later in November 2023, the Group made cash donations to
support Fu Hong Society’s inclusive event, the “Walk < In
Walkathon 2023. Funds raised from the Walkathon contribute
to the development and operation of the Society’s non-
subvented services, which encompass programs for children
with special needs, Family Care Homes for individuals with
intellectual disabilities, and community inclusive projects.

The Group will continue to seek opportunities to support
charitable organizations from time to time where appropriate,
through donations or participation in volunteering activities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTENT

INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,

Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix C2 to

the Rule Governing the Losting of Securities on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides

an overview on the general disclosures and key performance

indicators (“KP1”) of various aspects under each subject area,

which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of

the Report or supplementing the Report with additional

information.
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Description
fiid

Reference Remarks

2% st

A. Environmental
IR

Aspect AL: Emissions

BEAL: #H

General Disclosure

—RiKE

KPIAL1
RREIER

KPI AL2

RS EAIEIRAL2

KPIAL.3

RRSRAERIEIRALS

KPIA1.4

R ERIEIRALY
KPIALS

R EAIEIRALS
KPI AL6

FRSRAERIEIRALS

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

BRBERREE RN « mKRIHHEES BERES

BEMNELSN

() BUER;, R

) BFHETAREARENAMZRRAGNER o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BB RARRR B B

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse

gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

iz (&R 1) RecRMEE (BE ) RERBEHRE (Ut H)

B (WER) ZE MUSEBE( « BERMEH)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

FELASEEMEE ONHE) &k (ER) BE (s

E BBl « BERME)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

FELEEEEMES ONHE) &k (ER) BE (s

ESB « BERMHE)

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

WP L AHIR B B R R AEDEL B BRI B o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.
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Emissions
Waste Management

B BEYERE

Emissions

71354

Emissions

71354

Waste management

BEYWER

Waste management

BYER
Emissions

71354

Waste management
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Description Reference Remarks
fiid 2% fisk

A. Environmental (Continued)

1835 (18)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : BEHER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Energy saving
Materials usage

Water management
—fRIKE BUERER (IERR KR EMEME) AEER HifE
MKHER
KEER
KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Energy saving
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in'000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
PMRENIRAN]  RBREDNERRNEEER(NE - ek EEE (M ik
TETREHE) REE MUSERE « BERMSF)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Water management
production volume, per facility).
FRENIEIRAY  BFEKEREE MUSESE  BHERMHE) KiRER
KPIA2.3 Descnptlon of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Energy saving
taken to achieve them.
PR ENIEZAL3 ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ@ﬁ%iﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁE&%E?UEEEEFE%E&E’\J Hife
TR o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Water management We encounter no issue in
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps sourcing water that is fit
taken to achieve them. for our purpose.
MREMIERAL  HEKRBRAKE LT AEEEE > URFETINEAEE KRERE EREERERKELE
BRRk&ZHELBRAMRIASER o it AR o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A We do not generate
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit significant packaging
produced. material waste in our
operations.
MREMIERAS HNERFAEXMENEE UBHE) &k (NER) 84EE TEA AANEBLESREE
{48 o YIRIBORER o
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 | RERXAER
General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the  Protecting the
environment and natural resources. Environment
—fR iR HEZTAHRRRRABRERNEAR ZNHR RERE
KPIA3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Protecting the
environment and natural resources and the actions takento  Environment
manage them.
MRENIERM]  HEESEHNRERAAERNEAT EREFNEEES FERR

FENTD -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA: mIZEHL

General Disclosure

—RiKE

KPI A4.1

RS IRRIRALL

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant

climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which

may impact, the issuer.

WA REHEE KA EHETAEERENERRZIEH
EHMHR

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
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Climate change
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Climate change
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Description Reference Remarks
fiid 2% fisk
B. Social
HeE
Employment and Labour Practices
EERSIER
Aspect B1: Employment
[BEBI . EfE
General Disclosure  Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and Employee retention
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Development and
have a significant impact on the issuer training
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—fRiE BRI RE  BERSH « TERE - RE - TSH fEf?
g Zit « RERUREMFBREMNR : EEZE
() BR;K ZERRIE
b) EBFHETABEATZENHMEERRGINEY
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, Employment
full- or part- time), age group and geographical region.
REMIERBL] MR BEEE NEBIRE) « FRANMEINN  (EE

EEHREH
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

Employee retention

FIRENIEEBL2 MR FRANRMERSNEESREALE - EEERE
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB BEELE
General Disclosure  Information on: Health and Safety
(@) thepolicies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
—fRiKE ﬁ%%&g%lﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mi RREZS
(a) R, R
b) BFHETABEAFENBMEIRRRGINER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred ineach ~ Health and Safety
of the past three years including the reporting year.
MRENIERLL] BE=F (BEEREE) SFRITHMAZRILE RREZS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
MREWIEER. HIBIBLIERH - RREZS
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
FIRENIEREL  HAFMRANEERREZ2ER  ARERRTRERS RRERZ
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI -HHEARELBRSSE

Description Reference Remarks
fiid 2% fisk
B. Social (Continued)
#HE (4
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
ERERHIER (&)
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[BEB3 : BRERIE
General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Development and
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.  training
—fRiKE *ﬁi; R RERTIFBENMMRKANECR  #idigs  BRRIE
aE e
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle training
management).
FRENIEER]  BMAIRESERN MEREEE  PREER) J2NTH  ZERKSE
BEBAL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. training
MRENIERL BURRESERES  BRESTHTIIMNTIIRY - BEEE
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[BE B4 : HT#E
General Disclosure  Information on: Employment
(@) thepolicies; and — recruitment and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that dismissal
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—fR iR AR BT {EfE
() BUER, R —REREE
b) EBFHETABEAZENAMEERRGINEN o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practicesto ~ Employment
avoid child and forced labour. — recruitment and
dismissal
MREMIERBL]  Hidig BRER RN BRE T REHHT fEfE
—REREE
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when ~ Employment
discovered. — employment
R EIRR HHEERERBREERARRERARIE R o {EfE

—{EfE




Description Reference Remarks
fiid 2% fisk
B. Social (Continued)
e (4)
Operating Practices
EERR
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
BEBS | HEREE
General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply chain
supply chain. management
—fRiRE EERMRENIRG R ERBRHR HAEREIR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain
management
FRENIEIRES]  HotEEDHMERHE it EE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being management
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
FRENIEIRES.  HIREMERMUEENES > nERTERIERMNMRRE HREEE
B URBMEHNNTRERRE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmentaland ~ Supply chain
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are management
implemented and monitored.
FRENIERE  HAARMAIMLEESERTNNRRRAGRRNES N HEEEE
RERBITRERSE
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, management
and how they are implemented and monitored.
MRENIEIRES  HAEREHEEREESBRFRERRRBNES Uk  AREEEE

ERRTRERRE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BEBs : EmEF

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1

RS I51R86.1
KPI B6.2

R 1517 86.2
KPI B6.3

RS ERIIR1R 863

Information on;

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

BRfMRMERNRBNRREZSE « BE  RERLES

B R AR ER

() HR;R

() BFHETABEAXENBMEIRRRGINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEﬁEE%E&%ﬁ¢H§%@@@EEﬁ%@WWE%

Number of products and service related complaints received

and how they are dealt with.

RERRERRRBNRHABURBEHSE o

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

iR REA S EREMNOED -

Product and service

responsibility

EmEREEE

N/A There were no recalls
concerning the provision

TER REBEHBRBARIE
fm/REL o

N/A There were no material
complaints received
during the reporting
period.

TER REBEHBMRARIE
AR ©

Product and service Intellectual property

responsibility rights are immaterial the

— intellectual Group

property rights and

advertising

EmERHEE AN EFHRRENH

—HRERARE ERIEEATE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI -HHEARELBRSSE

Description
fiid

Reference Remarks

2% st

B. Social (Continued)
ie (&)
Operating Practices (Continued)

ZERA (8)

Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility (Continued)

BEB6 | ERES ()

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

FSERAIEIRE04  HHEEREBEREMERIER o

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

RISERIEIRE00 HUHEEERRERMLBER - URBHRITRERRE

Product and service  Recall procedures are
responsibility not relevant to our
— quality assurance operations
EmARBELE (o] W 32 S B FIRY R 5 b
_gé'fl\gﬁ Z:*Hga °

Product and service

responsibility

— consumer data

protection and

privacy

EmARBELE

— HEBEERMRE

K&

Aspect B7: Anti- corruption
EBEB ! RES
General Disclosure  Information on:
(@) thepolicies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—fRiKE BRAR LR « $1% « MEF RO R ERAY -

() HR;R

) BFHETABEARENBMEIRRRGINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
MRENIEEE] RERBANZTASEREREIBEENESHARY
BB RFRER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Anti-corruption

R&5

Anti-corruption

R&B

Anti-corruption

FRENIEIRET2 WP SERRRER » URERRTRERE R&®

KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors ~ Anti-corruption
and staff.

RENIEIRES  HiimEERE TRHENRESE - R&B

Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BEBS : HERE

General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the needs  Giving back to the
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure ~ community
its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—fR iR BRMHE2ARTREEMTHERENRFEEREY [HHHE
EERHEBN@AER o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Giving back to the
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). community

AR R BS.1 i%;ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ% MHE BRFE HIBR BFR b [EEHE

EIE o]
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.  Giving back to the
community
MRENIERR. GEIBBMBAER MERHERH) o [ElEEit &




CORPORATE INFORMATION AR E#

As at 14 March 2024 RZE-ME=F+MmA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston
(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung
Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl
Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian
Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher, BEs, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi Moses, GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming John, php, BB, J.P.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),
CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric, CA(Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

ol e

EE
St

(£/E ~ EFBEIERITRAEE)
(BIEFAAETE)

FRfRE

BEEXE

EEHRSE

EEgEE

FERITES

EF
7
NG

\*Eiﬁf

EFES R P EE BES M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA ARAIA MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
BIERITES
BRELER1E L 6BM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), JP.
E#IRTE
EIB#8 18 1 pho, 8BS, JP.

EB ﬁ}tﬁﬂ] QEEE Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CPA (Canada),

CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)
E%ﬁ?ﬁﬂf CA(Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2@ E&#

As at 14 March 2024 RZZE-ME=/+NA
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)

Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi Moses
Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming John

Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher
Dr. Ma Hung Ming John
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Ms. Tin Siu Kuen (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston (Chairman)

Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur
Dr. Ma Hung Ming John
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl
Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian

Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger

BEZEEY
BBERM ST (Z/F)
BREB/L
&R E
EERKE
FRIESE (HE)
RRZEET
BEVESRE (FF)
BERA S E
&iRRTE
BRHEL
EEREE
FRIBRE (HE)
FMEEE
BWREEL (Z/E)
BHREEtL
BEA S E
RMER T (F)
TEXERERY
BEEERE (2F)
&iRRSTE
BRI L
FREERE
HMITEEZE Y
BRNE L (Z/F)
FREERE
BEEXE
EEME
EEgEE



As at 14 March 2024 RZE-ME=F+MmA

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai Kim
Ms. Tin Siu Kuen
Mr. Wu Ka Wan

Ms. Lau Wan Ching

Mr. Tsang Wai Ka Ricky

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung Peter

Ms. Wong Yuk Man

Ms. Cavior Liu

Ms. Cheng Suet Kiu

Mr. Leung Kin Pong

Ms. Yip Hiu Ming

Head of Finance Management
and Information Technology

Head of Projects Management
Head of Human Resources
Head of Property Management

Head of Leasing and Asset
Management

Head of Facilities Management

Deputy Head of Projects and

Facilities Management

Deputy Head of Finance
Management

Senior Operation Manager

Manager of Finance
Management and
Information Technology

Project Manager

Accounting Manager

SBREEAS

BAEE
Rk E

EEExE
BMER L
ARBIRE
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BREmEE

fgig
ERMEE

EFE#HLL

E#HSet
BEH/UL
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2@ E&#

As at 14 March 2024 RZE_ME=F+MmA
SOLICITORS

Deacons

Gallant

P.C. Woo & Co.

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

BANKERS
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

China Citic Bank International Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

MUFG Bank, Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC (Hong Kong) Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
23rd Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax:(852) 2983 7723
Email: info@Llchi.com.hk

f2Em

RYMT1REMAT

B AR 1R BN B F5 P
L EEXESIES 1T
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SR 7 B RE 1% 2T

iR1T
BHIRIT

RIEIRTT (EIFR) BIR AR
BIERITARAF
EEBRIRITEBDT
REIRITERAF

ERIRIT (BB BRAR
1BERITAIRAT

B EH=B URRTEBDT
A EIRITERAR
EGIR1T (H8) BRAHE
BITIRTT (F8) BRAF

&8 LBESRTARAT
RERITARAF
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fEEE R s
BIESRITHRO =18

Bt . (852) 29837777 {8E :(852)29837723

BEL . info@lchi.com.hk



As at 14 March 2024 RZZ2-ME=A+MA
GUANGZHOU OFFICE

18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road

Yue Xiu District

Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 83758993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

Email: guangzhou@!lchi.com.cn

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC
Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

Email: shanghai@lchi.com.cn

FOSHAN NANHAI OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town

Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218

Email: foshan@!lchi.com.cn

FOSHAN SANSHUI OFFICE
Room 1638-1639, Block 3, Sanshui Square

9 Zhangbian Road, Xi Nan Street
Sanshui District, Foshan
Guandong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 8778 6929

Email: foshan@!lchi.com.cn

E R BE Y
FRE]E M

IRHRE==N5%

AMItE18A B

5 1 (8620) 83758993 f8H : (8620) 83758071
B . guangzhou@lchi.com.cn
LiEMEE

HhE ST

[Epabicl: Sy AVAN:
BIEERIA0 3105 F

F4% 1 (8621) 63591000 BE : (8621) 6327 6299
B TP : shanghai@lchi.com.cn
HILEEENER

PEERE

HLHmEEE
BiLLSRRR AT A & B R AR I PG & B
BIER—

BN TEE —HA

Bt 1 (86757)6386 0888 fHE . (86757) 6386 2218

EEHL © foshan@lchi.com.cn

#HLU=kENEE

PEIERE
FBLH=KE
PR HERIEER 95

=IKE¥% 3B 1638-1639
T3E : (86757) 8778 6929

B EP . foshan@lchi.com.cn
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSHREEBAEBAN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 84, is the Chairman of the Board of the Company since 9
August 2017. Mr. Liu has been serving as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 26 February
2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive Director of the Company
since its incorporation in 1970. Mr. Liu also serves as the
Chairman of Executive Management Committee and
Nomination Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a number of
other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the previous three years. Mr.
Liu is the uncle of Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston and grandfather of
Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian and Mr. Liu
Kwun Hung Tiger.

MR. LIU KAM FAI WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 57, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
since 1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu holds a Master
degree in Economics from the University of London, specialising
in Finance and Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees the
Company’s strategic development, project implementation and
business operations. Mr. Liu also served as the Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the Executive
Management Committee as well as director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu
did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Mr. Liu
Lit Chi and the uncle of Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu Chak
Hung Adrian and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger.

BITES

EZEkE

N+HE > BZE—tFE/\BNABAER
E$@E§$§Iﬁ°ﬁﬁ’%%$ﬁ
—E-NOE_At/NAEHEATA
RAEFACERTHES B—NtE
FHARTMILEECHBEATRITES °
BRETHEERATDNTEERZE TR
REZEEXTREUNETHBRARZE
F-BAEAEERREAZERHE B
AEZEBEBRAMBERBTZES iR
LHWEEIN > RIBE=ZFR > BXE
WREREFREMEHARAERERE
HEEHT BEREEESEREZM
R>BEERE - BEHRATEREER
FEZHK -

EEEkE

BA., MSc.

A+t B—NAAtFEEZEAE
REHATES > RZZEZENF/\BERE
EZEARRTRHESLERE - B4
FEMAKRBRBEBELTEN  TER/
BRAGKERE BEREREEARA
SEERE - HBERT - UKBAERE
B BRERBRTHERARGEE
BREEGZIE JITEEZESZE
URETFHBATZES - bR LIRE
B RBE=FR > BRELLER
FREM LT ARRBEEEAESH
BoMEBEINEREZER  BEEXL
b BEEHEERBEERREZMR



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LEE WAI HUNG

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA,

PgD in CRE

aged 60, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Management Committee
as well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Law degree, a Master of
Business Administration degree and Postgraduate Diploma in
Construction and Real Estate. He is also a fellow of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lee had worked
in an international accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee
has over thirty years of experience in corporate finance and
accounting. Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was
appointed as director in 1994. Mr. Lee is in charge of the
Company’s finance and secretarial matters. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lee did not hold any directorship in any other public
listed companies in the last three years.

MR. LIU KWUN BO DARRYL

aged 31, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
since 2023. Mr. Liu is also serving as a member of Executive
Management Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. He has held the position of
Director, The Rockpool Project (Team Lead) and Hospitality
Management (F&B Team Lead) since July 2021. Mr. Liu holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Hult
International Business School, London. Mr. Liu oversees The
Rockpool project and The Praya, a contemporary restaurant
located at our One-Eight-One Hotel. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is the grandson of Mr.
Liu Lit Chi, the nephew of Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston, the cousin of
Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian and the brother of Mr. Liu Kwun Hung
Tiger.

MITES (8)

FRERELE

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA,

PgD in CRE

TR AERERITESFTRABME °
FRETALEERZEGRWITERE
ZEEZEUKRLELRRTDETFTHEAR
BZER -FREHREREBM-IH
EEELTRURBREREMESRRENX
‘e NABTBIFMAEREAFTA
RESRAGERGE - FHREFEMA
ARER B EBEKRE Gt AT TIEEB
NE - FREFAEB=TFMBERE
SRR R—AAZFMAERAT LR
—HMNEFEEEAEZT - FAETE
EERQRBRUBRMEFS - R LK
BEN MBE=ZFRN > FERELRE
EERAEM LT ARABREEFNES
B o

BEEXRE

=t+—m B _=FHESEAN
NEAYITES - BRETALRATDRIT
EEREEURETHB AR ZES -
BRER_E-_—Ft AR EasE—
B> as5aBErEERBEEEMRER
BREFEABEGAERBERERRT
BEEBBELEG - BAETEEER
YEYS1E B KA A B E T One-Eight-One ;&
[ERYIRCE BB The Praya ° & £ XXFRiREE
B BEERBE=ZFELENEANH
AR LT RABDEEETMESTHE - B
REABISRENGZT BESEBLE
HNEF BEARENERKRBEEHEL
ERIRES o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhkaREBAEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU CHAK HUNG ADRIAN

aged 29, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
since 2023. Mr. Liu is also serving as a member of the Executive
Management Committee. He has held the position of Director
of Leasing Management and Hospitality Management
(Operation) since July 2021 and shifted to Director of Leasing
Management and Property Management since June 2023. Mr.
Liu has graduated from St. Michaels University School in
Canada. Mr. Liu is responsible for driving the leasing business of
the Company, particularly for The Rockpool and oversees the
property management business. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is the grandson of Mr.
Liu Lit Chi, the nephew of Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston, the cousin of
Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger.

MR. LIU KWUN HUNG TIGER

aged 26, was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
since 2023. Mr. Liu is also serving as a member of the Executive
Management Committee as well as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. He has held the position of
Director of Mainland China and Overseas Projects of the Group
since July 2021. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science degree with
First Class Honours in Mathematics with Business Management
from Queen Mary University of London. Mr. Liu is responsible
for initiating and leading the acquisition of various properties,
including commercial buildings, logistics centers, and resorts, as
well as developing the Group’s overseas investment business
through joint-venture projects. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu
did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the last three years. Mr. Liu is the grandson of Mr.
Liu Lit Chi, the nephew of Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston, the brother
of Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl and the cousin of Mr. Liu Chak Hung
Adrian.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MR. KHO ENG TJOAN CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect),

MHKIoD

aged 61, served as Non-executive Director of the Company
since May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
degree on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of
Architecture degree. He is an Authorized Person under the
Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect under the Architects
Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects, a corporate member of Royal Institute of British
Architects, an associate member of Royal Australian Institute of
Architects, a member of Royal Architectural Institute of Canada
and an associate member of American Institute of Architects.
Mr. Kho was an Executive Committee of the University of
Waterloo Alumni Association and a Committee Member of the
University of Manitoba Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990.
During the year from 1997 to 2003, he was a Director and
Council Member of the Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students
Association Limited. Mr. Kho is also a Committee Member of the
Professional Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed as
an Executive Committee Member of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce and Director of Hong Kong Fukien
Chamber of Commerce Education Fund Limited in 2017. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Kho did not hold any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhkaREBAEHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. THE HON. CHENG MO CHI MOSES

GBM, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 74, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 1999 and he is now serving
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is a
practising solicitor and the Senior Consultant of Messrs. P.C.
Woo & Co. after serving as its Senior Partner and Consultant
from 1994 to January 2023. Dr. Cheng was a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is a non-official member
of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region since 1st July 2022. Dr. Cheng was the Founder
Chairman of the Insurance Authority and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President
and Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of
International Alliance of Practising Lawyers. In addition to his
directorship in the Company, Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorship in The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited,
K. Wah International Holdings Limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited, Tian An China Investments Company Limited and
Towngas Smart Energy Company Limited, all being public listed
companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng'’s other directorship in
public listed companies in the last three years includes China
Mobile Limited and China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Cheng did not hold any
directorship, whether in Hong Kong or overseas, in any other
public listed companies in the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. AU KAM YUEN ARTHUR

aged 84, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Au
studied Law in Sydney and London respectively. He was
admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975 and in Hong Kong in
1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur Au & Co., a firm of
solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is a Notary Public and
was a member of the Notary Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel.
He is also a School Management Committee Member of the
Clementi Secondary School. He now serves as legal adviser to
the Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff (previously named
as the Association of Government Nursing Staff) and The New
Territories North District Manufacturers Association of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District
Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong Kong/
Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-1991. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Au did not hold any directorship in any other public listed
company in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhkaREBAEHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
DR. MA HUNG MING JOHN

PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 57, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2012 and he is serving as a
member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Dr. Ma is currently the Vice Chairman of Carrianna
Group Holdings Company Limited, a public company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive
experience in the catering industry, as well as property
management and development. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2003 and a Honorary
Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison University in 2004. As for
the community service, Dr. Ma was the Chairman of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals for the year 2002. He is the Chief President
of Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce, Qianhai. He also serves
as the Vice Chairman and Vice President of Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, the President of
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce and the
Chairman of Hong Kong and Kowloon Chiu Chow Public
Association. On 1 July 2015, Dr. Ma was appointed to Justices of
the Peace by The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not
hold any directorship in any other public listed companies in
the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA (Hons), CPA (Canada), CA, FCA,

FCPA, CPA (Practising)

aged 63, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 7 March 2014 and he is now serving as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science (Economics)
degree in Accounting and Finance from London School of
Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of
expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.
Mr. Cheng is currently an Independent Non- Executive Director of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
CPMC Holdings Limited, Top Spring International Holdings
Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited, Somerley Capital
Holdings Limited, Kidsland International Holdings Limited and
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited, all of the
abovementioned companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Cheng is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Chong
Hing Bank Limited and C.P. Pokphand Co. Limited, companies
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange which were privatised on
30 September 2021 and 18 January 2022 respectively. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorship in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

MR. TONG TSUN SUM ERIC

CA (Aust), CPA (Practising), CFE

aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit and the nomination
committee of the Company in March 2018. He obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from University of Sydney, Australia, a
Master of Commerce in Professional Accounting from
Macquarie University, Australia. He is a member of CPA
Australia, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand. He is also a member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, the Governance Institute of
Australia and the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Tong did not hold any directorship in
any other public listed company in the last three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGHREEBAEGBTN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, FCPA, MAEB

aged 56, Head of Finance Management and Information
Technology. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant. He holds a
Master Degree in Electronic Business and has over thirty years
of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk joined the
Company in 1995.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 55, Head of Projects Management. Mr. Jan is a
professional engineer with over thirty years of construction and
project management experience representing clients,
consultants and contractors in both private sector and
government funded projects in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Mr. Jan joined the Company in 2008.

MS. TIN SIU KUEN

aged 57, Head of Human Resources. Ms. Tin holds a Master
Degree in Human Resources Management of Macquarie
University, Australia and has over twenty years of experience in
human resources management in the banking sector. Ms. Tin
joined the Company in 2018.

MR. WU KA WAN

aged 56, Head of Property Management. Mr. Wu holds a Master
Degree in Housing Management of The University of Hong
Kong and has over thirty years of experience in property
management. Mr. Wu joined the Company in 2020.

MS. LAU WAN CHING

Msc(RE), MRICS

aged 59, Head of Leasing and Asset Management. Ms. Lau is a
professional surveyor. She holds a Master Degree in Real Estate
of University of Greenwich, The United Kingdom and has over
thirty years of experience in leasing, sales and marketing, and
asset management in Mainland China, Hong Kong and regional
markets. Ms. Lau joined the Company in 2021.

MR. TSANG WAI KA RICKY

CEng, MIMechE, CPEng, MIEAust,

APEC Engineer, IntPE(AUS)

aged 45, Head of Facilities Management. Mr. Tsang is a
professional engineer in mechanical engineering. He holds a
Bachelor Degree in Building Services Engineering of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and has over fifteen years of
experience in engineering of facilities management. Mr. Tsang
joined the Company in 2021.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
KRRBFERGES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the
year 2024 (“2024 AGM”) will be held at 27th Floor, Chong Hing
Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on
Thursday, 23 May 2024 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited consolidated financial
statements together with reports of the directors and of
the auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of
HK$0.17 per share for the year ended 31 December 2023
(“2023 Final Dividend”).

3. To re-elect (a) Mr. Lee Wai Hung, (b) Mr. Liu Kwun Bo
Darryl, (c) Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian and (d) Mr. Liu Kwun
Hung Tiger as directors of the Company.

4. To fix the directors’ remuneration for the year ending 31
December 2024.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
KRRBFERGES

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or

without modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
6. “THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (c) of this resolution) of all
the powers of the Company to buy-back shares of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock
exchange on which the shares of the Company may
be listed and which is recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other
stock exchange (as applicable) as amended from
time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the aggregate number of shares of the Company
which the Company is authorised to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and
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7.

(c) forthe purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:
(@) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the

directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (d) of this resolution) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares of the Company and to make
or grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and any securities
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such power(s) during or after
the end of the Relevant Period, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

7.

© BERHEMS -

TR A RS REER

ZBRETIIREAMLEZH

E

() FAATERRBEAR
GRS ;

() BEEEEOB2EA
AEASRAATZ AT
MERBURE > KA
TERRAFAEETE
THRERZE ; %

(i) FAFRRRBRAE L
EREE AR  E
AT AR R A5
ZERZE

B
@ ETFXOBZAMT » —Hi

REFREIESRBZERTR
ERE (EEREREBEN
B ITEERBZ—#ESN
M s FTREBEXRAFZ
BRIMNIRAD - URAEH SR it
BRI ARG RE
REHAEATERZSTENZ
2% -~ sk Rt (BHEES
wIREE ~ ARES S RiER
EREEEF AR A iR
RERBRNZES) ;

[a]
[}
=
o
2
=}
m
>
Z
O
(%]
I
>
X
m
I
[}
[
o
m
X
Cd
z
m
o
=
5
=
[}
=z
7
a
&
]
&
b
E

(=

EVHERTHWEE

=-&=- |

BEES



[
H
©

€207 LHOd3Y TYNNNY | QILIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
KRRBFERGES

(b)

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes
and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for
or are convertible into shares of the Company) which
would or might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate number of shares allotted, issued and
dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted, issued and dealt with (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights Issue (as defined in paragraph (d) of this
resolution); (ii) the exercise of any rights of
subscription or conversion under any warrants,
bonds, debentures, notes and any securities of the
Company which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company; (iii) an issue
of shares of the Company upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to any options granted
under any share option scheme adopted by the
Company; (iv) an issue of shares as scrip dividends or
similar arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company from time to
time; or (v) specific authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of
passing of this resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

(b)
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(d)

for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to the
holders of shares or any class of shares of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares as at
that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory applicable to the
Company).”

(d)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
KRRBFERGES

8.

“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 6 and 7
set out in the notice convening this meeting being passed,
the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company to exercise the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to Ordinary
Resolution No. 7 set out in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate number of
shares of the Company bought back by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary
Resolution No. 6 set out in the notice convening this
meeting, provided that such extended amount of shares so
bought back shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of
passing of this resolution.”

To transact any other business.

BRI AEBEMHFEORTIA
BiRRABRRERAR  BAEAT
EFERTFEARGBESTHERES
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By Order of the Board

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

Liu Lit Chi

Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 11 April 2024
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Notes:

1 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM is entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A member who is the
holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same
occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

3. Record dates of entitlements of the members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at
the 2024 AGM to be held on Thursday, 23 May 2024, whose name should be
recorded in the Company's shareholders book on Thursday, 23 May 2024. The
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 20 May 2024 to
Thursday, 23 May 2024, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2024 AGM, all share certificates with completed transfer forms either
overleaf or separately must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 May 2024.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2023 Final
Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders book on
Friday, 31 May 2024. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 29 May 2024 to Friday, 31 May 2024, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with completed transfer forms
either overleaf or separately must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 28 May 2024.

4 The registration for attending the above meeting will start at 10:30 a.m. on Thursday, 23
May 2024.
5. The Chinese translation of this notice is for reference only, and in case of any inconsistency,

the English version shall prevail.

6. If a Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted or a Black Rainstorm Warning Signal is in
force at or at any time after 8:00 a.m. on the date of the meeting, the meeting will be
postponed or adjourned. The Company will post an announcement on the Company website
(www.lchi.com.hk) and HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) to notify shareholders of the
date, time and place of the rescheduled meeting.

The meeting will be held as scheduled when an Amber or a Red Rainstorm Warning Signal
is in force. Shareholders should decide on their own whether they would attend the meeting
under bad weather condition bearing in mind their own situations.

7. A circular containing further information on the proposals regarding the (i) re-election of
the directors of the Company and (ii) general mandates for the buy back and issue of shares
of the Company for the Annual General Meeting will be sent to shareholders today along
with the Company’s 2023 Annual Report.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive Directors: Mr. Liu
Lit Chi (Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai Winston (Deputy
Managing Director), Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian and Mr.
Liu Kwun Hung Tiger; Non-executive Director: Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher; and Independent
Non-executive Directors: Dr. The Hon. Cheng Mo Chi Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung
Ming John, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Tong Tsun Sum Eric.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
TEEBRTEERE

i Closing Price Share ERUITHE
Last Trading Closing Price per Share Market C%pfgallzatlon e e
Date of Each Month ShiHE Bl WS BE -
SEBETER (HKS 1) (HKS in million
- ARERR) 10
31/1/2022 7.85 2,972
28/2/2022 7.69 2911 .
31/3/2022 7.38 2,794
29/4/2022 7.46 2,824 ;
31/5/2022 730 2,764
30/6/2022 7.38 2,794
)
29/7/2022 7.09 2,684
31/8/2022 710 2,688
2
30/9/2022 6.70 2537 2 Sl ELELE
31/10/2022 6,65 2518 : A ELELELE
0
30/11/2022 6.90 2,612

Market Capitalization H1&

March 2022 to December 2023
30/12/2022 7.25 2,745 o e
HK$ in Million BEEET

31/1/2023 733 2775 o
28/2/2023 717 2714
31/3/2023 652 2,468
3,000
28/4/2023 638 2415
31/5/2023 583 2,207
30/6/2023 6,00 2272
2,000
31/7/2023 617 2336
31/8/2023 579 2192
29/9/2023 538 2037 Lo
3 =1 = < 2 = = 3
31/10/2023 534 2022 - HHHE
30/11/2023 527 1,995 -~ . -  HHHE

29/12/2023 5.40 2,044




Property Investment

LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
Bl EEREGCREE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#E-Z-=F+"A=+—HILFE

ALBA HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEEEARAR

22.65%

LIU’S HOLDING LIMITED

EREBBRAR

*LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

BRIETERRAF

Hittie & &

42.40%

OTHER INVESTORS

MERE

Chong Hing Bank Center
BIEERITHIL

100%

The Rockpool

BiEY

100%

Fairview Court

EEH

100%

Chong Hing Square
BIEELR

100%

Chong Hing
Fianance Center

Shanghai
LisgIBERAL

100%

Overseas Investment

BINEE

UK London
Barratt House

B

Barratt House

100%

Japan Logistic
Centres

Bzl

50%

Australia Brishane

Office Building
RN R R AKIE

15%

Australia Sydney
Office Building

WNBEMAKIE

12.5%

Italy

Logistic Centres

BEAFARR

25%

Property Development

MELR

The Grand Riviera
Foshan Nanhai
B o) B
(AT

90%

Elegance Garden
Foshan Sanshui

FERE
(=)

90%

Property Management

MEEE

Liu Chong Hing
Property Management
& Agency Limited
ERIRMEEE
RAERRAR

100%

Guangzhou Wealth Good
Property Management
Company Limited
B TRF
MEEERRAR

100%

*Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited * ERZEEBH SR ZFERAT L

Trading & Manufacturing
BRARRE

Maanshan Gaoke
Magnetic Material
Company Limited
BESHEEME
BRAR

51.5%

Hotel Business

BT

ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel
& Serviced Residences
ONE-EIGHT-ONE;&E
RERBREE
(Hong Kong &#)

100%

Kimpton Kitalay Samui

(Thailand Z=E)

100%

[
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP &R FEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E-Z-_=F+_"A=+—HLIEE

Description

it

Interest in
the property
attributable
to the Group

HEEREZ
FUES 47

Approximate
site area

(sq. ft)
B R iR
(FAMR)

Total gross
floor area

(sq. ft.)
BREEEEA
(FHR)

Existing use

RERE

Investment properties
RENE
Hong Kong:

1. Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central
BIESRITHRO
EEE 2457

2. The Rockpool
402-404 Des Voeux Road West
B
1EHHIE P 402-404 57

3. Fairview Court
94 Repulse Bay Road
E=E
RKEIE 945

4, The Westwood
8 Belcher's Street
FAE
BEEHLR

100%

100%

100%

10%

7,100

32,400

30,000

110,000

42,000

26,000

221,900

c/pP

R/P

c/P

399,900

Kowloon and New Territories:

NEERHMIR .

5. Chong Hing Square
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
BB RS
FE TR E 601 57

6. Bonsun Industrial Building
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BRIEAE
FE7DIRIE 364-366 5

7. Chatham Place
388 Chatham Road North, Hung Hom
s
AL LB 36 388 51

100%

100%

10%

12,300

18,000

182,000

8,200

61,000

I/P

c/P

251,200




For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E-Z-=F+"A=+—HILFE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft) (sq. ft.) Existing use
HEEEEZ Bt EER BREREER
Bt WD (F5R) (F5R) bl

Investment properties
People’s Republic of China:
FEANELAE -

8. Chong Hing Finance Center 100% 55,000 103,000
No. 288 Nanjing Road West 413,000
Huang Pu District 180,000 P
Shanghai
BIEERPO
L&

HAE
7 m 798 288 5%

o n
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9. The Grand Riviera 90% - 174,000 C
West of Luocun 73,000 S
Luocun Social Management Office
Shishan Town
Nanhai District
Foshan
ENTEE
i
BaE
MUBEBENHEEERE
IHFEEHER

10.Elegance Garden 90% 362,300 16,000 C
Plot No.2, Nan Ce, Jianshe Dadao
Xinan Jiedao, Sanshui Qu
Foshan
FEHE
BUB=KE
e R N E L) b

959,000

United Kingdom:
] :

11.Barratt House 100% 8,244 0
341-349 Oxford Street 7,956 C
London W1C
Barratt House
341-3494 215
fRBW1C

[
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16,200
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP &R FEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#E-Z-=F+-A=+—HILFE

Interest in

the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft) (sq. ft.) Existing use
FEEEGZ W& RER BEEEER
it WD (F5R) (F5R) LA
Hotel land and building
BETHRIEF
Hong Kong:
12.ONE-EIGHT-ONE Hotel & 100% 10,800 184,000 H
Serviced Residences
181-183 Connaught Road West
ONE-EIGHT-ONEBE R IR EE
TFHEEF181-183 5%
Thailand:
2
13.Kimpton Kitalay Samui 100% 318,000 230,000 H

10/79 Moo 5, Bophut, Koh Samui,
Surat Thani 84320, Thailand
10/79 Moo 5, Bophut, 155,
Surat Thani 84320, REl

414,000




For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E-Z-=F+"A=+—HILFE

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft) (sq. ft.) Existing use
HEEREEZ AR miR BREEEEE
it MEEE (FAR) (FHR) RERE

Investment properties (Joint Ventures)
REYNE (RELF)
Japan:

A%:

14.Higashi Matsuyama Logistics Centre 50% 102,800 193,600 L
296-1, 294-1, 301-2, 301-1, 300-1,
299-1,302-1, 295-1,
Oaza Shingo, Higashi Matsuyama-shi,
Saitama Prefecture
EUNITEY ety
B ERHALLT Oaza Shingo,
296-1, 294-1, 301-2, 301-1, 300-1, 299-1, 302-1,
295-1
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15.Kakegawa Logistics Centre 50% 425,600 456,000 L
102, Shobugaike, Kakewawa-shi, Shizuoka
Prefecture
BRI
R 1|7 Shobugaike 1025%

16.Hadano Logistics Centre 50% 53,700 104,000 L
548-1, Aza Haihata, Soya, Hadano-Shi, Kanagawa
Prefecture
REYRPO
185 )|| 8% &= F 5 Soya, Aza Haihata, 548-1

17.Chitose Logistics Centre 50% 533,900 212,700 L
1007-281, Izumisawa, Chitose-shi, Hokkaido
TR
I6EEF % lzumisawa, 1007-281

966,300

Australia:

B

18.310 Ann Street, Brisbane QLD 4000, Australia 15% 24,000 196,400 0
310 Ann Street, 75 273 QLD 4000, M 1,200 C

19.309 & 321 Kent Street, Sydney, NSW, Australia 12.5% 60,000 493,300 0
309 & 321 Kent Street, Z&/E , M 14,500 C

705,400
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP &R FEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E-Z-_=F+_"A=+—HLIEE

Interest in

the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft) (sq. ft.) Existing use
FERELZ B BER MR EEEmER
731 MR (FEAR) (EAR) RRRR
Investment properties (Joint Ventures)
REY% (RELE)
Italy:
BAF:
20. Via dell'Artigianato 12, 25% 304,295 134,786 L
Carugate, Milan
REM% » KF
21. Via Ligabue snc, 25% 179,962 48,136 L
Campegine Reggio Emilia
WMER » RSB X EH =
22. Via Torricelli 49, 25% 202,749 112,612 L
Verona, Veneto
R AR
23. Via Longare 82/A, 25% 134,710 32,356 L
Torri di Quartesolo, Vicenza
REBSHRRE  #ER
24. Bologna Freight Terminal 13, 25% 47,533 45,887 L
Bentivoglio, Bologna
FEXNR > HRER
25. Via del Passatore 170, 25% 58,308 34,154 L
Campogalliano Modena
YR INFIZREE » BT
26. Corso Lombardia 61, 25% 215,439 89,276 L
San Mauro Torinese, Turin
DEZRRERNE  HE
1,142,996 497,207
C=Commercial 7% H=Hotel ;&5 |=Industrial T P=CarPark Efi  R=Residentiadl {fE  0=Office BF1&

S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities BFTR B4R L=Logistics Centre ¥R HL



SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION B& R & i}

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 14 March 2024

HEHFER-E-mE=HF+mH

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
FEQMH

Interim Results
for six-month ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZE_=—F,BA=+HLt
NMEBZHRAES

Annual Results
for year ended 31 December 2023
BE_ZT_=—F+_A=+—HL
FEZEFEE

Announced on 10 August 2023
ERZZE_=FN\A+HAM

Announced on 14 March 2024

ERZZE_NFE=A+MHERM

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
RRERAE

Annual General Meeting

RRBERE

Latest time to lodge transfer forms

BB R X REHAR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to attend and vote at the 2024 Annual
General Meeting)
HEIBERNBRELFE
(REERUE_ZS_NF
BRRBFEAGRIER)

To be held on 23 May 2024
B _E_NERB _+=H%17

4:30 pm on 17 May 2024
“_ECMERRA+EtATFOE=+S

From 20 May 2024 to 23 May 2024
(both days inclusive)

—ECNMERRA-+RAEZE_WNFRA+Z=H

(BERMXEHEER)

CASH DIVIDENDS
RElkR

Interim cash dividend

FHIRERE

Paid on

X{TEHE

Proposed final cash dividend

BRARIIRERE

Payable on

ANI=E

Ex-dividend date of final dividend
REIREMREHR

Latest time to lodge transfer forms
ERBR X4 RERAR

Closure of Register of Members
(for purpose of ascertaining
entitlements to receive
the final dividend)

BEIEERMNIBRELFE
(FEE B BRI B)

HK$0.11 per share
BRAEKI1T

15 September 2023
“E=FhnA+HH

HK$0.17 per Share

sREK17T

7 June 2024

—ZETMmESRBEH

27 May 2024

“_EMERAZ+tH

4:30 pm on 28 May 2024
—ENFERAZ+HN\BTFTFOE=+5

From 29 May 2024 to 31 May 2024
(both days inclusive)

—ENERB-_t+HhHAEE-_NFERBA=+—H
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION &R E K

Share Registrars and transfer office : Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,
Hong Kong

RN E R EE R BEPREFETHRAA
BREFERKER—/\=%
Bt tEE—t——EFE—t— 5

Share listing : The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

e TABRENREBMERZFERAE
HEEE

Stock Code : 00194

AR SR 00194

Board lot : 2,000 shares

BEE 2,000 f&

No. of issued ordinary share : 378,583,440 shares

BETEERRMNEUE 378,583,440 %

Company’s e-mail address : info@lchi.com.hk

‘ANEIEE AL info@Llchi.com.hk

Investors and Shareholders contact : Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Hilda Chan

23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.lchi.com.hk
KREERIRREE B ERERLE TREE/)VE

BAEHET T RRIERITR O+ =12

E&E ¢ (852) 2983 7779

f8H : (852) 2983 7723

#98 : http//www.lchi.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Bt 8z E &

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 168 to 280, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

=2

HERREREARAFMKRR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter as they represented 64% of the Group’s total
assets, combined with the judgements associated with
determining the fair value. As disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment properties
are located in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and the United Kingdom (the “UK”). The carrying
amounts of investment properties amounted to
HK$9,611,370,000 as at 31 December 2023.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuations performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (“Valuer”). Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. The
valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method and income capitalisation method, which are
dependent on certain key inputs and assumptions in respect of
prevailing market conditions such as unit sale rate, reversion
yield and monthly market rent.

S FEIE
HRBEFZESRBRMANFEHE
BAHSHGREMBERRNEFRAE
ENFR SEFEETHMASHER
rEMBRRKRE AT REETREE
AT EHELEEHREHERNER

REMEMLE
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=+—HWIREE A #19,611,370,000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Bt 8z E &

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process,
significant assumptions and critical judgement of the
Valuer to assess if the adopted approaches are consistent
with relevant accounting requirements and industry
norms;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation models
used based on our knowledge of the property markets in
Hong Kong, the PRC and the UK; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs, including
unit sale rate, reversion yield and monthly market rent by
comparing them against market data and entity-specific
information such as rental income and tenancy summary,
on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Bt 8z E &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tan Wei Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #&&1#Em &

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E-"Z-_=F+_"A=+—HLEE

2023

=22 8 C
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000
Mt BT BT
Revenue Wiz 5
Contracts with customers EREX 378,057 353,624
Rental income HERA 302,062 301,112
Interest and dividend income FIERAEEWA 52,192 60,504
732,311 715,240
Direct costs BENE (874,804) (325,509)
(142,493) 389,731
Other income HAth A 13914 24,818
Administrative and operating expenses THREERY (332,745) (257,403)
Other gains and losses Hit s k518 7 (307,232) 114,226
Finance costs EIp DTN 8 (138,495) (59,240)
Share of results of joint ventures Pt eEhEEE 22,095 (24127)
(Loss) profit before tax BREAD (518) & (884,956) 188,005
Income tax credit (expense) FriSfiE R () 9 11,869 (99,206)
(Loss) profit for the year KEE (518) 575 10 (873,087) 88,799
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: KEE (5518) a2 R
Owners of the Company KAFRR (814,937) 86,148
Non-controlling interests JEPERRRR SR g (58,150) 2651
(873,087) 88,799
Basic (loss) earnings per share SRER (B1E) BT 13 HKS$ &% (2.15) HKS % 0.23




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #GrEea#EmkEMEE W m R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 H#E-ZF-=4+"B=1+—HILFE =
>
2023 2022 P
—BC=E —2_C =
HK$'000 HK$'000 o
BBTR i 3
(Loss) profit for the year KEE (§518) &H (873,087) 88,799 ;‘:
Other comprehensive expense Hitt2EZ N -
Item that will not be reclassified to FEEHFEEREm k2B Y
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in equity BATEEFARMZEAREZ
instruments at fair value through other ERTAATEEESE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (3,364) (28,015)
Items that may be reclassified RN EEBAm ik
subsequently to profit or loss: ZEH:
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBIINEBMEEZERES
foreign operations (61,547) (445,800
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint it aEtEEM2ES
ventures (46) (5,358)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (net of tax) ZFEEHM2EX Y (FFH%E) (64,957) (479173)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEERE HEE (938,044) (390,374)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to: 2EXHAREIER
Owners of the Company KATRE (877,544) (373183)
Non-controlling interests JEERG RS R R (60,500) (17,191)
(938,044) (390374)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #& &M BikRHE

As at 31 December 2023 RZB-=#+_F=+—H
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2023 2022
—8§C= 22
NOTES HKS000 HKS'000
i3 BETT BETT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Investment properties BB 14 9,611,370 9,480,355
Property, plant and equipment M R Rt 15 1,762,836 1,821,467
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 1,769 2,307
Interests in joint ventures REtE#ER 18 635,080 571,262
Equity instruments at FVTOC BATEBEFAHMZEKEZ
B#IA 19 272,456 275,820
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE 27 20,809 16,898
12,304,320 12,168,109
Current assets REEE
Properties under development for sale FHERRDYE 17 865,772 1,474,233
Properties held for sale FHEME 17 409,861 355,918
Inventories 7E 20 32,418 32,994
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMERERR 21 168,554 148,474
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEFAEEZ
profit or loss (“FVTPL’) EMEE 19 14732 18,866
Fixed bank deposits with more than three FA=ER®%IHZ
months to maturity when raised EHRITER 22 45,085 37,264
Cash and cash equivalents RITEIREE 22 1,156,972 1,596,788
2,693,394 3,664,537
Current liabilities it =N
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEGRR 23 439,684 381,153
Lease liabilities HEAR 24 1122 2433
Contract liabilities BNaR 25 2,235 8,401
Borrowings — due within one year B — R—FREIH 26 1,774,569 992,230
Taxation payable FE{FIR TR 138,425 140,691
2,356,035 1,524,908
Net current assets RENBEFE 337,359 2,139,629
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSEE 12,641,679 14,307,738
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Other payables HAFE(TIRR 23 109,890 106,385
Lease liabilities HEAR 24 731 71
Borrowings — due after one year B — R—ER 3 26 628,783 1,216,090
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 27 297,691 325,203
1,037,095 1,647,749

11,604,584

12,659,989




2023 2022 F

ZEI=F ZFZC =

NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000 o

i BB il S

Equity R £

Share capital gz 28 381,535 381,535 §

Reserves f 11,185,255 12,217,838 ﬁ

Equity attributable to: RRIEDECR

Owners of the Company KATIRER 11,566,790 12,599,373
Non-controlling interests IR RS 37,794 60,616
Total equity ReHEAREE 11,604,584 12,659,989

The consolidated financial statements on pages 168 to 280 N 168 E280 EZ A MBHRIREMN
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Z“ZZHNF=A+MHHESEESHER

Directors on 14 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: WHERT > WHTIALTRARE
MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
BEEE BRI E
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AUDIT COMMITTEE
EE - BRI R TR BEREZEEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY G efmEs R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E-"Z-_=F+_"A=+—HLEE

At1 January 2023 R-E-_=%—H—H
Loss for the year FEEFE

Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures

Other comprehensive expense for the year

BRATEEARMEENZ #x TRAATEERR
MEBINEBRELZER AL
FitEECREMEES T

FEEHMEE L

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

TEEREXHBE

W — R E AR R ERIMER
HREEN BT AERINERE
ERRBADKZKRS (EE12)

At 31 December 2023

RZEZ=5+"B=1+—H




z
>
Attributable to owners of the Company ‘;f:
FATRRER %
Property Investment Statutory Non- 8
Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling 3
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total g
MEE RESM EERR E[3204 -
2.3 ki 1] 1] ERfE 1] RREd st RRED st b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT BETT BT BB BT BT
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (5,658) 69,192 89,639 9,093,933 12,599,373 60,616 12,659,989
5 = 5 5 5 - (814937)  (814937)  (58150)  (873,087)
- - - (3,364) - - - (3364) - (3364)
- - - - (59,197) - - (59,197) (2350)  (61,547)
- - = s (46) - - (46) - (46)
- - - (3364)  (59,243) - - (62,607) (2350)  (64957)
5 = 5 (3364)  (59,243) - (814937)  (877544)  (60,500)  (938,044)
- (37,678) - - - - - (37,678) 37,678 -
5 = 5 5 = 373 (373) 5 5 =
5 = 5 5 = - (7361  (117361) - (117361
381,535 (23,763) 2,956,817 (9,022) 9,949 90,012 8161,262 11,566,790 37,794 11,604,584
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY G efmEs R

At1 January 2022 R-ZE-_"_&—B—H
Profit for the year FEE R

Fair value loss on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

BRATEESAHMEENZ  #n TREATEERR

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations BEBINEBMEEZERERE
Share of other comprehensive expense of joint ventures FrtEEtEHEME A<
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEEMEESH

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year AEERE (RH) WERE

Investment revaluation reserve reclassified to accumulated profits upon
disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI

Transferred from accumulated profits to statutory surplus reserve

Dividends recognised as distribution (note 12)

Dividend to non-controlling interests

HERATEEFAHMZERGE 2 B TRE
EMNEE RN 2 REEMRHE
HRBENEE AT RIRHE
EREIADRZRS (Mz12)

I FEERERERZRE

At 31 December 2022

R=B=—#+-A=+-H




2
>
Attributable to owners of the Company é
AATREREL =
Property Investment Statutory Non- §
Share Special revaluation revaluation Exchange surplus Accumulated controlling =
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total g
MEE(E REE EERER El22 E
[z kGG i 1 ERHE 1 B3yt st Rt st L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
(note a) (note b) (note )
(Mizta) (HizED) (MfzEc)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 23,059 500,508 88,539 9182331 13,146,704 87,707 13234411
- - - - - - 86,148 86,148 2,651 88,799
- - - (28,015) - - - (28,015) - (28,015)
- - - - (425958) - - (425958)  (19842)  (445800)
- - - - (5,358) - - (5,358) - (5,358)
- - - (28015  (431316) - - (459331)  (19842)  (479.173)
- - - (28015)  (431316) - 86148  (373183)  (17.191)  (390,374)
- - - (702) - - 702 - - -
- - - - - 1,100 (1,100) - - -
- - - - - - (174148)  (174,148) - (174148)
- - - - - - - - (9,900) (9,900)
381,535 13,915 2,956,817 (5,658) 69,192 89,639 9,093933 12,599,373 60,616 12,659,989

(@) Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the
additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during the years ended 31 December 2004, 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2023.

(b) Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon transfer to investment
properties in previous years.

(© The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR") is an appropriation from accumulated profits by subsidiaries of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). In
accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the
Company Law of the PRC.

HisE :

@ HEEEEAIEEREECSENG+_AZ+-A 22"+ A=+-BR-ZEZF+ A=+ -HEFERNBARMZ TN EREGZY
BAREMEE Z EMEERARREEZESR

(b) MEEGHEEATEERYE  BERRBEETZNEBRARENERMEL Z6#E
(© EEBSHEEEEATNTERBABDNRBENER - REFEARE  ARANTEHBARD AL BN10%REENEREECBRHE B
EZREENZHBARTMERN0% AL o REPEARFEELRHT  AEBREETEAMLESL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &F&REMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z-_ZE-=F+_-A=1+—HILEE

2023

8= 22
HKS000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Operating Activities TS
(Loss) profit before tax BRARAT (B518) B (884,956) 188,005
Adjustments for: S
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of KREMEATEEEHHE(WE)
investment properties 297,478 (236,530)
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of financial RATEBESIABGZSHEE
assets at FVTPL ATEEEHESE (K 4134 (1,246)
Dividend income from investments BREREBA (13,128) (17,381)
Interest income FIEWA (39,064) (43123)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HHEMEZ A EFERD
properties held for sale 53,425 15,794
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FHESERYEZ RERERER
properties under development for sale 545,267 -
Share of results of joint ventures b=t Eis (22,095) 24127
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BRERREINE 102,016 99,301
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEERE 2,639 3,041
Finance costs BT RS 138,495 59,240
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE « BERREESRE 3,456 6,460
Operating cash flows before movements in KB EESEE I CEHERE
working capital 187,667 97,688
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 REMERERI 2 (18,718) (20,477)
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEMEZED 41,011 63,737
Increase in properties under development for sale FHESRETYEZIEM (69,587) (226,126)
Decrease (increase) in inventories HEE R (8m) 157 (276)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMEFRRZ R (5,186) (94,239)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHNEBZRHLD (6,046) (471)
Cash from (used in) operations REERRE (FrR) Be 129,298 (180,164)
Income tax paid BIFER (12,367) (108,092)
Dividend received from investments BKIRERE 13128 17,381
Interest received BUFIR 39,064 43123
Net cash from (used in) operating activities RETEFRE (FrA) 2ZIRE 38 169,123 (227,752)




z
z
2023 2022 =)
8= St 3
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000 =
BifzE BETT BETT z
Investing Activities REER :
Proceed from disposal of equity instruments at HERA T EET AR 2 ENE %
FVTOC ZE=RTH - 804 B
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEEY% « BEKR®ZE (42,295) (42,419)
Advance to a joint venture et (61,375) (279131)
Repayments from joint ventures BELEER 15,888 101,952
Dividend received from joint ventures HEELERERZRR 3,718 5,986
Net cash outflows on acquisition of subsidiaries YEEHIBA T 2R <7 Hi3EE 34 (425,286) -
Addition of investment properties REYE 2 (19,348) (7,078)
Proceeds from disposal of investment property HEREYEFTSZIE 4181 1,882
Placement of fixed bank deposits with BEAZEB#%&IMZ
more than three months to maturity TEHIRITER
when raised (45,085) (37,264)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more than HH={ER%&ZIEZ
three months to maturity when raised EHIRTTER 37,176 126,976
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFAZREFE (532,426) (128,292)
Financing Activities RMEEE
New borrowings raised HESER 499,922 772,000
Repayments of borrowings BEMEM (308,142) (406,944)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHESRE (2,750) (3,106)
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE (67) (106)
Dividends paid BRE (117,361) (184,048)
Interest paid on borrowings BAERFE (133,744) (52,438)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities RUEEE (FRA) PRS2 R B8 (62,142) 125,358
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HERRELEERRLPE (425,445) (230,686)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —B—HAZzRERAEZEER 1,596,788 1,875,619
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SpisifREg S8 (14371) (48,145)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +ZB=+—HZHRER
R&¥EER 1,156,972 1,596,788
Represented by: Bp
Bank balances and cash RITERRRE 1,156,972 1,596,788
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZZ=5+"A=1+—HI-5E

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is disclosed in the
Corporate Information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment
and investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 40 and 18,
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
AND CHANGE IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction
International Tax Reform-

Pillar Two model Rules
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

AR E B IR MY EE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
AND CHANGE IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(CONTINUED)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies
The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is
amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is
itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set
out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. ERWMIREEITEEMBRS
BEUREREMEBERESE (8)
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FEBRHEN (&)

EREREHENBIRRERME
BEENBEBHRESF 2R (B5T4) &
AR ZRBZREE
AERRBRSHERNE RERILER -
BB ERIE 15 (IBT4) MBHRERZ
REAU THARGHBERER MAFAA
R TEE2GHHR —AZE - AE5t
HREMAHNERMBHRRAZEAM
BR—HZER  JERAEXESE
BENMBREZTEERAERNZSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
AND CHANGE IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture!

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Lack of Exchangeability?

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

AR E B IR MY EE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
AND CHANGE IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES

AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT AND RELATED

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 (2020)

(THE “2020 AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS (THE “2022

AMENDMENTS”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional

guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at

least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

. clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

. Specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
AND CHANGE IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES

AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT AND RELATED

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 (2020)

(THE “2020 AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS (THE “2022

AMENDMENTS”) (CONTINUED)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure

requirements about information that enables users of financial

statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together
with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early
application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
Amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the 2022
Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022

Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and no further assessment is needed.

AR E B IR MY EE

3. BRNREMBBEREERIES
stECR (48)

3.2 EXEHHRER (&

RERE(E)
EHRGEEUAREMEERE 2 S8 9
BERAATRRRIFERRRE
MEASZEZEWBERBIRNEAT
REKRIFERRRED > BIEILREE
IR RS EE R TR o

MEFTE > GHWBRARZMBHRERE
HEEE > UWERESHBRASERT
HE— -
ERTERRRZENMEEEAREE
REfE- f#w s WA - AXKRRERE
G ERER2E A o

MEABRIFERERD BAEENED
THZY  ARZFETAREFAEA
RBRAERILODEARMREAT
R P EENRAPIA R o

BEWE
BEEMERER

FEETUEEUEBARZAEERA
EEUEPERNS > AFEMMKEZ—
B REERE TS EHFRHERIT
fie SFANBBEEZBRBOANE
BEEFR—EHARDEEL—HEBELU
BE INEEPREAR - ZAHATZ
MEETCLRERERREFEY  BIL

B2 -MRFEEREAR > AIEEZME
EHNEERABRES  BERE—DT
fig o



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Asset acquisitions (Continued)
Asset acquisitions
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by allocating the purchase price first to financial
assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to
the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction
does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

3.2

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in notes 5 and 25.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 Leases or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance

or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as

a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to
be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

3.2

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or
loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial
disposal of the Group'’s interests in joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

3.2

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

3.2

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing

transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use

assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements
to the lease liabilities and the related assets separately. The
Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than freehold land as described
below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is not depreciated and is measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than freehold land less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-

3.2

use assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and
is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

3.2

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale/properties for sale
Properties under development for sale which are intended to
be sold upon completion of development and properties for
sale are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold
land element which is measured at cost model in accordance
with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development for sale/properties for sale are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property to
earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale
in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
inception of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is

probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3.2

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected

credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade

receivables, deposit paid and other receivables, loans advanced
to joint ventures, fixed bank deposits with more than three
months to maturity when raised and bank balances and lease
receivables) which are subject to impairment assessment under

HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date

to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and lease receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3.2

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

(ii)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an

Definition of default

event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3.2

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of

Measurement and recognition of ECL

default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or
credit-impaired which are assessed individually, lifetime ECL for
remaining debtors are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration of grouping of internal credit rating by
reference to past due information and relevant credit
information, and forward-looking macroeconomic information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.
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3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or

loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying

amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the

corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated

in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and

translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

Specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item (note 7) as part of the net
exchange losses;

For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and
losses’ line item (note 7) as part of the net exchange
losses. As the foreign currency element recognised in
profit or loss is the same as if it was measured at amortised
cost, the residual foreign currency element based on the
translation of the carrying amount (at fair value) is
recognised in other comprehensive income in the fair
value through other comprehensive income/revaluation
reserve;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3.2

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Foreign exchange gains and losses (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

. For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and
losses’ line item as part of the gain/(loss) from changes in
fair value of financial assets (note 7);

. For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the fair value through other comprehensive income/
revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit
or loss, but is transferred to accumulated profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are

classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3.2

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
‘Other gains and losses’ line item in profit or loss (note 7).

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios in Hong Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom (the
“UK”) and concluded that (a) the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, (b)
the Group’s investment properties in the PRC and the UK are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties in Hong
Kong, the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. The presumption that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s investment properties situated in the PRC and the UK
are recovered entirely through sale has been rebutted and the
deferred tax on the changes in fair value of those investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2023 at their fair value,
details of which are disclosed in note 14. The fair value of the
investment properties was determined by reference to
valuations conducted on these properties by an independent
qualified professional valuer using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions of prevailing
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding adjustments
to the changes in fair value reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the carrying amount of these
properties included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2023 is approximately
HK$9,611,370,000 (2022: HK$9,480,355,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2023, a deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$229,655,000 (2022:
HK$191,067,000) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$819,145,000 (2022: HK$765,927,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal takes place.

AR E B IR MY EE

4. EEGFAERMESFRABRER
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st HRZEERBERE > AIAEE

BEERBRZRAER T —MEEER

WREARBZER > smMT

BREMEZATEE

BEMENR _E_=%+_-_B=+—
BEASHMBERRIREBEEZAFER
GIRR > RBP4 EE - REWEZ
NREBENDSERIGEREXEGERN
D EGBERMTHZEMEMETZME
BETE - MEMERINTRHIREFTS
BRNETERSK ZEBIRZ2BEMNHR
NMESHERNERERRENELTFE
B> AMEEAERGESEZRERZ
NEEEEE > UK AESHERR
RANZEMEZREE RS =F
+ZRA=+—H8B ' xEEREMEZR
E{E4%A8159,611,370,000 T (ZE -
£ @ 781 9,480,355,0007T) °

FRiS#R

A ZE=F+ZHA=+—H ' Xx#H
TR IEES 84978 229,655,000 0 (T -
F A 191,067,000 7T) RAEBLR SR
BRRARABRABELEREESEE - R
FOETRRIR ARG F R » B R FIRIE
548497815 819,145,000 (Z B - & :
B 765,927,000 7T) FEERIRIEIRIB L & ©
FEREBEEENAEREEFTERUAR
HEREBEREBHREK RN HEFMY
RIER - MEBREENRFEFDINTE
Hi > B5IMERNBRERBEEERRE > &
eI A R L HAR R 1B AR ST ©



5. REVENUE 5. W&

() DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS (i) RERFITSANBARE
WITH CUSTOMERS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and the reconciliation of the ZAEBEWRAM ST KEARTE SLOMNKE

revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts EDEPERIFFIRESEIEIRINT :

disclosed in the segment information is as follows:
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2023 2022
ot Y 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Property development MELE 66,741 82,795
Property management MEERE 31,114 25,763
Trading and manufacturing BHRE 82,939 92,112
Hotel operation AR 197,263 152,954
Revenue from contracts with customers HER SO 378,057 353,624
Property investment (note) YR E (IiE) 302,062 301,112
Treasury investment MHRE
— Interest income —HMEWA 39,064 43123
— Dividend income —REBA 13,128 17,381
Total revenue Has 732,311 715,240

Wiz RERNARTIBEREESHE - BOZHBHNES
A—ETE(CE_E —ERH)ASAETHE -

note:  Operating lease payments mainly includes base rental. Leases are negotiated for terms

ranging from one to ten years (2022: one to five years) with monthly fixed rental.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. Uz (88)
() DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS (i) REREITARNKWASE (B)
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—F-_=H+-"RA=1+—HLEE
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment  manufacturing operation Total
MERE MERE MEER BHRE BRRRE BEEE EEH
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BB AR BB
Property development ~ #)%3& - 66,741 - - - - 66,741
Property management ~ ¥j% &8 - - 31,114 - - - 31114
Trading and B REE
manufacturing - - - - 82,939 - 82,939
Hotel operation RS - - - - - 197263 197,263
Revenue from contracts 1% B &AM
with customers - 66,741 31114 - 82,939 197,263 378,057
Property investment ~ #)¥§& 302,062 - - - - - 302,062
Interest income FIBMA - - - 39,064 - - 39,064
Dividend income g B A - - - 13,128 - - 13,128
Segment revenue HENE 302,062 66,741 31114 52,192 82,939 197,263 732,311
Trading
Property Property and Hotel
development management manufacturing operation Total
MERE MEER BRRRE BERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRTT BT BETT BT BT
Geographical markets HET
Hong Kong &8 - 31,114 - 89,187 120,301
PRC e 66,741 - 82,939 11,779 161,459
Thailand &E - - - 96,297 96,297
Total st 66,741 31,114 82,939 197,263 378,057
Timing of revenue recognition  FEERINZS I
A point in time F—RER 66,741 82,939 35,815 185,495

Over time BEERFR = 31,114 - 161,448 192,562

Total 4t 66,741 31114 82,939 197,263 378,057




5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

5. Wz (48)
(i) BEREFITSANWASE (BF)

BE_E-__F#+-"RA=+—HLEE

Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development management investment  manufacturing operation Total
MERE MERRE MEERE BHRE BRRE BELE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BT BETT BETT
Property development ~ #)%3& - 82,795 - - - - 82,795
Property management ~ ¥J% &R - - 25,763 - - - 25,763
Trading and B RS
manufacturing - - - - 92112 - 92112
Hotel operation R - - - - - 152954 152954
Revenue from contracts 1% RS4RI
with customers - 82,795 25,763 - 92112 152,954 353,624
Property investment 4] ¥§& 301,112 - - - - - 301112
Interest income FEIBA - - - 43123 - - 43123
Dividend income =N - - - 17,381 - - 17,381
Segment revenue parll 6 301,112 82,795 25,763 60,504 92112 152954 715240
Trading
Property Property and Hotel
development management manufacturing operation Total
MEER MEEE B RHE BERE a5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT BT BT BT
Geographical markets Ul
Hong Kong &8 - 25,763 - 99,296 125,059
PRC e 82,795 - 92,112 6,439 181,346
Thailand ZH - - - 47,219 47,219
Total Hast 82,795 25,763 92112 152954 353624
Timing of revenue recognition  FEERUNZS I
A point in time H—FfRt 82,795 - 92,112 17,100 192,007
Over time MEE RS - 25,763 - 135,854 161,617
Total st 82,795 25,763 92,112 152,954 353,624

(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES
Property development
For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties,
the relevant properties specified in the contracts are based on
customer’s specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the Group concluded
that the Group does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from sales of properties is therefore recognised at a
point in time when the completed property is transferred to
customers, being at the point that the customer obtains the
control of the completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

(i) EREHNEHEEMKRAESR
B 3R
MEHR
MEEMEREZERITUNGHOMS > &
WIS AERYENDERETRER
WEHMERRR - KZBHEMSAIEF
M RRRIERAERERLS > &R
oAy EERARYMETERA > &
I8 3 45 L A R B BT S B AT AR o
I HEMENRTR BRI REE
FTERHNEBMES  IERERSER
T W2 B9+ ) 1 T 4 &= B ¥ A3 WK B A 7K
Z BB RER e PJ BE U ER (R B RO BF R B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(ii) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property development (Continued)
The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the
payment terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Such
advance payment results in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as the contracts are for
periods of one year or less.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out
collections, which consist of payments in respect of the
operation of the properties which are payable by the tenants,
are recognised over time using output method when the
services and facilities are provided. The Group elected to apply
the practical expedient by recognising revenue in the amount
to which the Group has right to invoice, since the Group is
entitled to bill a fixed amount in advance for each month
according to the terms of the relevant lease. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Trading and manufacturing

For sales of magnetic products, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred to customers, being when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following the delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as the contracts are
for periods of one year or less.

AR E B IR MY EE

5. W= (48)
(i) ERANNBHEEMRATESR
B R (48)
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FEBRBEEHZNARIERRAZ A
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Hotel operation

Hotel room revenue from customers is recognised over time

using output method when the service and facilities are

provided. All the hotel operation services are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Revenue from food and beverages is recognised when the food
and beverage are delivered to the customers.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”"), for the
purposes of resources allocation or assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods and services delivered
or provided. During the current year, the CODM identified a
new geographical property investment segment located in the
UK which is aggregated in property investment segment. No
operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Property investment — investment and letting of
properties

2. Property development — development and sale of
properties

3. Property management — provision of property
management services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in
securities and other financial instruments

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of
magnetic products

6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotel
and food & beverage business

5. Wz (48)
(i) EFREHNENTEMKRAHT
B R (48)

BIEEE

B I 2 B W S 12 14 AR 355 T o it s 5 AR
BREZE—BRFEEAES - REEEE
ERFBIMERA—FHNERE - RIEFE
ISR EERBISSRARE > DECFR
TEREHNRZERTIKE °

B o EREHEI WA TE R B A A BRI S A
MR P BFRESD ©

6. SHEHEHN

KTABEWITES > BIEBEERRA
MERDEHAZDBEREMELRZS
FEK DIREEBEFRENHEN
RBUEFEADNBE - REFE > TE
RERRARDRE AT EYERE
D RDEERRYERBENDE -
FTERERRARBEREBZAER
DR BERERNNEMNEESE
EEHEEE o

REBMHREERFREENHLE
BZEHBRERDENOT :

1. YERE —YEKREREE

2. MEER —MEERKMHE

3. YEEE — REMEEERS

4. WMHKRE —EFkAEMERMTAN
RHERKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable segments.

6. SEEN(E)
SERERESR

ES VL

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Segment revenue
Comprising:
— revenue from customers
— inter-segment transactions (note)
Operating expenses
Loss on changes in fair value of investment properties
Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

H§E-_E-_=H+-A=1+—HLEE

Nk

25

— BRIl

—£ERRS (i)

HiEMY

REMEATEBEZEHSE
BATEEFABEZENEEATBEEEEE

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME « BEIREZER
Net exchange gains (losses) R (8518)

Segment (loss) profit 748 (B548) a7

Finance costs BB

Share of results of joint ventures FridaEtERE

Loss before tax PRI

note:  Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices.

Mzt EEARZERITHEBRR -

AR E B IR MY EE

UTARERKREZDRZAERRT



Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
LES ] MEER b/ES -3 HERE BARNE BRERE SR | &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT bt bidich BB it bt bidich bt ch it
307,022 66,741 46,046 52,192 82,939 197,950 752,890 (20,579) 732,311
302,062 66,741 31114 52,192 82,939 197,263
4,960 - 14,932 - - 687
(172,908) (653,389) (33,498) (33,734) (76,805) (243880)  (1,214,214) 20579  (1,193,635)
(297,478) - - - - - (297,478) - (297,478)
- - - (4134) - - (4,134) - (4,134)
(63) (274) = = (90) (3,029) (3,456) - (3,456)
10903 (6,189) 78 (8,290) - 1334 (2.164) - (2164)
(152524)  (593111) 12,626 6,034 6,044 (47,625) (768,556) - (768,556)
(138,495)
22,095
(884,956)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEBEHE (B
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) DHEWMERELS (8)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results WU TFTARERKIEF B2 AAEB RS

N
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by reportable segments.

ES VL

For the year ended 31 December 2022
Segment revenue
Comprising:

— revenue from customers

— inter-segment transactions (note)

Operating expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HE-_E-__F+-A=+—-HIEE

Nk

25

— BRIl

—£ERRS (i)

gAY

REVMELATEBEEFKRE
WATEEFABEZ EHEEATBEEHKE
HEVE BERREZEHE

Net exchange gains (losses) RS (§518)
Segment profit (Loss) iR (518)
Finance costs R

Share of results of joint ventures Friaa gt ¥R

Profit before tax

BRRA&RR
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Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel Segment
investment development management investment manufacturing operation total Eliminations Consolidated
MERE MEER MEER MBRE BRRNE BERE DR 3] 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
307,031 82,795 40,830 60,504 92,112 153,519 736,791 (21,551) 715,240
301,112 82,795 25,763 60,504 92,112 152,954
5919 - 15,067 - - 565
(137,937) (87,749) (29,495) (34,891) (87,970) (201,603) (579,645) 21,551 (558,094)
236,530 - - - - - 236,530 - 236,530
- - - 1,246 - - 1,246 - 1,246
- - - - - (6,460) (6,460) - (6,460)
4024 (40,795) 488 (76,191) - (4,616) (117,090) - (117,090)
409,648 (45,749) 11,823 (49,332) 4142 (59,160) 271,372 - 271,372
(59,240)
(24127)
188,005
note: Inter-segment transactions are charged at prevailing market prices. izt : ERARZRETHERE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the 2B GtEBREKNIEE 3Rz 48
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. EEstERMER - DEEEF (F18) 57
Segment (loss) profit represents the loss incurred from/profit Rt AFMGEEEEXERABEREZ
earned by each segment without allocation of share of results BN TR DEABIRZEF 226
of joint ventures and finance costs. In addition, the Group’s 38 lt4h ) AR E D EEHMER S
administrative costs are allocated to respective operating $EC{TFRH KR 21T 24 B 12 1B Bl 2 75
segments on the basis of revenue earned by individual SDEBINZIWEENRERISENE -
operating segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM AEBBEUSEHEZRFERKESRE
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance AZE#H > UWHEEE RS R &FEZDFER
assessment. B/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. NEEFR (&
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NHEEEREHE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities WU TAREHRVEZAEBEEREE

N
N
o
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by reportable segments: ST
Segment assets DEEE
2023 2022
—B-=f ZECCE
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT
Property investment MERE 9,899,344 9,722,856
Property development YR 1,487,817 2,310,707
Property management MEERE 18,540 10,741
Treasury investment IERE 1,133,876 1,356,980
Trading and manufacturing BARNE 115,984 110,481
Hotel operation BELE 1,686,264 1732721
Total segment assets NEEERRE 14,341,825 15,244,486
Interests in joint ventures BEhERER 635,080 571,262
Deferred tax assets RIERIEEE 20,809 16,898
Consolidated assets REBE 14,997,714 15,832,646
Segment liabilities HEEE
2023 2022
ZE_=R S
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Property investment YIERLE 225,591 198,718
Property development vy e 242,860 227,535
Property management YEEE 2,877 2,829
Treasury investment MHRE 4,986 2,524
Trading and manufacturing B 5 RS 14,361 13,941
Hotel operation BIELE 62,987 52,896
Total segment liabilities NEaRER 553,662 498,443
Taxation payable FEFAR TR 138,425 140,691
Borrowings RN 2,403,352 2,208,320
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 297,691 325,203
Consolidated liabilities Le8fR 3,393,130 3,172,657

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and ZAERHSERBENDEROEER
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated [REEPENESRBEERIBEESI)
to operating segments other than interests in joint venturesand FRrEBEMNDEEXEEDLE > MGEN
deferred tax assets. All liabilities are allocated to operating Rz~ (ERIRIERIEEGREIN > FIEE
segments other than taxation payable, borrowings and deferred (&9 ECEX£FF 48 o

tax liabilities.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEER(8]\) ;fg
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hih 3 EEH 2
-l

o

Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel e

investment development management investment manufacturing operation Consolidated b

LUES NEER LUES 3 MBRE BARNE BERE e o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 -

BT BB BB BB BB BB BETr b

Amounts included inthe ~ BESHENEEER
measure of segment PEBEZSE.

results and segment

assets:

2023 k- S

Additions to non-current  JERENEELL M

assets (note) ik 457,547 24 - - 457 30785 489,013
Depreciation i 9,404 218 148 - 3,484 91401 104655

Impairment loss recognised FHENE 2

in respect of properties  F{ERSERED

held for sale - 53,425 - - - - 53,425
Impairment loss recognised &S BRYE 7

in respect of properties  JR{ER5 IR

under development for
sale - 545,267 - - - - 545,267
Loss on disposal of property, HE#E « BiE K
plant and equipment REZER (63) (274) - - (90) (3,029) (3,456)
2022 —E-C
Additions to non-current  JEREIEBEIEM
assets (note) (Fit=) 17318 618 123 - 4,900 26,538 49497
Depreciation iE] 8,236 966 511 - 3447 89,182 102,342
Impairment loss recognised FHENE 2
in respect of properties B ERERR
held for sale - 15,794 - - - - 15,794
note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred Mzt : FRBBEEFDIESE L ERET BHRENELR
tax assets. Included in additions to non-current assets related to property investment BEE o MME34FRE > BYERERANIERS
operation is acquisition of investment property of HK$425,248,000 through acquisition of a BEEN SERAKE—HRBATDNKEBREY
subsidiary as disclosed in note 34. %781 425,248,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, other parts
of the PRC, Thailand and the UK.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on the
location of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-

6. SDEEH (&)
HithHEH ()
EE R

AEFEHUNER FEEMME

RE R o

ERAERFECEIIRERZWHE
B EREFRMEZ R - AL
ERFRBEENENAIREEREN

current assets is presented based on the geographical location &Z#R o
of the assets.
Non-current
Revenue assets (note)
Wiz JERBEE ()
2023 2022 2023 2022
k- - 3 =St k- et 3 k=S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETT
Hong Kong BE 339,524 360,956 7,391,202 7,604,677
PRC HE 276,250 307,025 3,035,531 3,150,907
Thailand & 96,417 47,259 526,690 548,545
UK HE 20,120 - 422,552 -
732,311 715,240 11,375,975 11,304,129

note:  Non-current assets exclude interests in joint ventures, financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 31 December 2022 contributing over 10%

of the total operating revenue of the Group.

Wiz FRBEEFBESECEELD ERMIARBER

HHE
FEEXREH

BE_Z_=—F+_RA=+—HK=%
“THE+ZR=+—HIEFE > HER
BERZBmGAEEEESERDER

10% °
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HitWzmKkESE
2023 2022
ot e
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value RENELATEESD (B518) Wa
of investment properties (297,478) 236,530
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value BATEBESABRZEHEELT
of financial assets at FVTPL BEZ#HEE (kx) (4134) 1,246
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME « BE KR EFE (3,456) (6,460)
Net exchange losses ERFEE (2164) (117,090)
(307,232) 114,226




E
>
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBHZ &
2023 2022 =
—g-=% ke 5
HKS000 HKS'000 o
BETT BT ;
Interest on bank borrowings EEAEIRSS 136,978 57,728 g
Interest on lease liabilities HEaRENE 67 106 "
Other interest expense Hitif 8%t 1,450 1,406
138,495 59,240
9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 9. FRGM (%) X
2023 2022
-B-=% Stk
HKS000 HKS'000
BETT BT
The (credit) charge comprises: (%) T HEE
Current tax: AEERE !
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMNER 6,090 6,660
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") FE{ EFR1ER 2,610 3,757
UK Corporation Tax HEAEMR 3,466 -
12,166 10,417
Dividend withholding tax REFEINR - 5136
Overprovision in prior years: B FEBERE .
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEHNER (30) (148)
PRCEIT RERERRSR (3513) (27,199)
(3,543) (27,347)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT") FE L i R 3,516 89,996
Deferred taxation (note 27) IEIERRIE (M 27) (24,008) 21,004
(11,869) 99,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the

(loss) profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit

iR e B S R AR MY 5

9. FRieit (IE%R) 2 (&)

FEEZRE(ER) THRRGEDE

FRmBRHAD (R518) A 2 BERIT -

=

or loss as follows:

2023

s - Sl
HIS000 HES00
R BT

(Loss) profit before tax BRI (5518) B (884956) 188,005
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) BIRR165% (TR ZF  165%) HEZEBAEH (146,018) 3101
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures ibaghEER Ry E (3646) 3981
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose FfRERZ G 2 161,086 35761
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERRMAZ R 2 (25133) (54847)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREEE (3,543) (27347)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FHIREEEZ Y2 10397 25251
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised EREARRINRBER (607) (560)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERTENERYEEZ B2

differences not recognised 2,009 1981
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMAZREEE  HBATFERE ¥ 2

operating in other jurisdictions (9350) 7582
PRC LAT TEIT R 3516 89,99
Tax effect of PRC LAT hE T ER T (580) (14849)
Dividend withholding tax REFENH - 123
Tax (credit) charge for the year REERE (%) it (11,869) 99,206
notes: Mgk
()  Thedirectors of the Company considered the amount involved upon implementation of the ~ (a)  AATEZ:RA > BENEBNEREIEMIRNEE

two-tiered profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both
years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.

The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to
the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for
LAT is calculated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group commenced the procedures for
settlement of LAT for the Group’s completed residential project in Foshan, Guangdong
Province with the relevant tax authority. In determining the actual LAT liabilities with the
tax authorities, the basis on which LAT is calculated has to be revised.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, LAT liabilities of approximately HK$3,516,000
(2022: HK$89,996,000) was provided in the profit or loss for the remaining phases of the
residential project in Foshan, Guangdong Province.

The applicable UK corporation tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2023 is 25%.

(d)

B AMBRRIEEAMNG EENGREMELE
Bt RERREN I 16.5% 518 ©

BHEAREMECERERE TRERSRE) K
TEREREZSHMAL  FENBADRHAEEN
MRE A 25% o

REPERERFINAMRTE  2EHERRETE
TR ER - RELMBEEREARRBRENE
RERENZRIREMNE  REEUEFIREEE
HImREREBENFAEEE

BHE_Z_—F+_A=+—HFN > FEEERK
EFEEREHUDERTNETEE REMKREH
BB EREEFE EARBREERLMER
REBER > YAEHTEERFEER o

HE_Z--F+-A=+—HIEEE BAHRE
REBUTHNETERRIMEEREGBEOBIE
3,516,0007% (ZBEZ 24 : ##89,996,0007T) °
HE_S_-Ft+_A=t+—HLEEERNEHR
EREA 25% o



10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. EFE (FHE)EH
2023 2022
- i3 ZEIC
HKS'000 HKS 000
BRI BT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after A& (E518) BFIEIRR (FTA) FHIRIE

charging (crediting):

Staff costs BTImA 140,372 136,330
Staff retirement schemes contributions, net of ETRMHREFMR  MbRR U T AR

HK$125,000 (2022: HK$860,000) forfeited 12500075 (ZBZ 24 : %#860,0007T)

contributions 4,679 4,464
Total staff costs (including directors' emoluments) BT FA4t (AIEESEMS) 145,051 140,794
Auditor's remuneration ZE S

— audit services — BERH% 3,542 3,720

— non-audit services — FFEHRH 3,974 536
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment V¥ BERREBIRTE 102,016 99,301
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 2639 3,041
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties & EYIE 7 H{E R ERD

held for sale (included in “direct costs”) (B1E7E TEHBRA)) 53,425 15,794
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties &1 & & BHYI¥ 7 BB

under development for sale (EUHETE TERRMA)

(included in “direct costs”) 545,267 -
Government grants (included in “other income”) BB (2457 TE A L) (2,428) (6129)
Selling expenses (included in “administrativeand ~ $§&M% (B1F#% 1THRSEMY))

operating expenses’) 4,367 2111
Gross rental income from investment properties LEVEERSWA (302,062) (301,112)
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that i : ERELHEWAZRENLERZER

generated rental income during the year 27171 34,164

(274,891) (266,948)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately HK$2,428,000
from the local authority for the purpose of encouraging the
development of the group entity engaged in new and high
technology sector. The grants received are in substance a kind
of immediate financial support to the group entity with no
future related obligations and are recognised as income when
the approval of the local authority has been obtained. There
are no other conditions attached to these grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately HK$6,129,000
in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, of which approximately
HK$4,204,000 relates to Employment Support Scheme provided
by the Hong Kong government.

BE_E_=—F+_-_A=1+—HLEE>
ERERATHRERRESMEMNE
MBI - AREE RS M A AT /HEIA
A& 2,428,0007T ° WEIRVMHBEIEE LE
HEBERN —REBEEMEBEXRF 258
RIRMMERERTS » W 7E 1Tt 5 BUFHE
ERERAWA o SE/mBIEZEMM
R E MR o

BE_ZT__F+"HA=+—H8 &%
| 7 £ 2019 7 7 775 5 A8 B BV BT /B 49
B 1 6,129,0007T » H A48 4,204,000
TR BB R MM EZIEEIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 12 (2022: 9)

directors were as follows:

11. EF -~ THAHK(ESM

&

ENSHENFLRE(ZE__F:98)

ERZME=NT

Other emoluments

HitiE
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note ) contributions emoluments
ES ([
HHR g BtkigH)
ik HtniE# (Mizte) SRR L E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2023 —g-=
Executive Directors (note a) BITEE (Meta)
Liu Lit Chi BIIE 300 9,850 - 559 10,709
Liu Kam Fai Winston B 200 6,194 - 418 6,812
Lee Wai Hung TR 200 4,163 - 416 4,779
Liu Kwun Bo Darryl (note g) BEERE (Mg - 2,051 - 162 2,213
Liu Chak Hung Adrian (note g) ~ BE:Z#t& 4 (Mitstg) - 1918 - 156 2,074
Liu Kwun Hung Tiger (noteg) ~ EEEMfE4E (st g) - 2,248 - 129 2377
Non-executive Director (note b)  JEH{TEE (ffizEh)
Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher R 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BUERTES (M)
Directors (note c)
Cheng Mo Chi Moses R 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen Arthur BiRR 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming John B 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo ERAT 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum Eric EEH 300 - - - 300
Total st 2,500 26,424 - 1,840 30,764




11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EF - THAZRESME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Other emoluments
Hitil
Performance
related
Salaries incentive Retirement
and other payment scheme Total
Fees benefits (note ) contributions emoluments
HiERmN
R BEE by =l
ik Hitnia# (Mizte) SRR aME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT BT
2022 —E_C
Executive Directors (note a) BITES (Mftsta)
Liu Lit Chi BIIE 300 9,926 - 559 10,785
Liu Kam Fai Winston BE&fE 200 6,418 - 403 7,021
Lee Wai Hung ER1 200 3,981 - 398 4579
Non-executive Director (note b)  JEH{TEE (ffizEh)
Kho Eng Tjoan Christopher SRR 300 - - - 300
Independent Non-executive BUERTES (e
Directors (note c)
Cheng Mo Chi Moses RS 300 - - - 300
Au Kam Yuen Arthur EiRE 300 - - - 300
Ma Hung Ming John Joop 5 300 - - - 300
Cheng Yuk Wo ERERAN 300 - - - 300
Tong Tsun Sum Eric EX 300 - - - 300
Total 45t 2,500 20,325 - 1,360 24,185
notes: MifaE
(@  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection  (a)  LIRTEZEZHEHHEBANTREEDZHZ
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. PRFEER
(b)  The non-executive director’s emoluments shown above was for his services as a director of (b)) ~ LFFERITEZZMEEEHEATATHMBATE
the Company. EZIREAER
(©  Theindependent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services  (c) ~ LIBUFRATEZ I MEREEATARNES 2R
as directors of the Company. BHEE o
(d)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five ~ (d) ~ FR AEEHEREINEZIREEREFAL (B
highest paid individuals (including directors) as an inducement to join or upon joining the B3) SEAME  (FAMARERRMARERR
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a ZREGEREE HE-TE-=F+-A=1+—H
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December RZEZZHEF+ZA=+—HLRBEFE LRER
2023 and 31 December 2022. REEAREZREN SO
() The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the individual ~ (¢) #HE-Z_=&+-B=+—-HAR-Z__%+_H
performance of the directors and approved by the remuneration committee of the Group =S+-HERBEEARREMZRBEESNER
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. RRET > LRSEEFHZEEHE -
() The Group has been providing accommodation to the directors at no charge. The estimated () ~ AEE—BEEERERREEE - WA ENETS
money value of the benefit in kind is HK$4,318,000 (2022: HK$4,348,000). FEABI£43180007T (B ZF © #814,348,0007T) ©
(€  Mr. Liu Kwun Bo Darryl, Mr. Liu Chak Hung Adrian, and Mr. Liu Kwun Hung Tiger were  (g) EES%X4%  EEHEEREEREEN_S_=&

appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 10 August 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three directors (2022: three directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out as above. Details of the remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2023 of the remaining two
(2022: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

AR E B IR MY EE

11. EF - THHAHERESM = (&

FRATERLGRESHEBQE=RE
B(ZEZZHF ZREE) » HFb
BHEIME - BE_ST_=F+_H
=t+—BLEEENGBRTRI(ZEZZ
F.MB) ZeHES (LEEARITES
SRITEUAREL) FOSRBNE BN T -

2023

—E-= —E-C
HK$000 HKS'000
AT BT
Salaries and other benefits TEMEMEF 4,684 4411
Retirement scheme contributions RIKEFI TR 395 377
5,079 4,788

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FERBEFHN RS HMBE T AEM
T EFMENTEER :

No. of employee

BEIAY
2023 2022
ot S —F-=f
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 72 000,001 752 78 2,500,000 75 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 72 500,001 752 781 3,000,000 75 1 -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
2023 202
=oEE bt S
HKS'000 HKS 000
BETT BETT
Dividends recognised as distribution FARRDRZES
during the year:
Interim dividend paid for 2023 — ZECCEERPEREERERILLT
HK$0.11 per share (2022: interim dividend paid ~ (ZBEZZ& : BiR_EZZEFHKE
for 2022 — HK$0.18 per share) SiREE0187T) 41,644 68,145
Final dividend paid for 2022 — ZEEEBRREREEKRER020T
HK$0.20 per share (2022: final dividend paid for ~ (ZBEZZ%& : BiR—_EZ—EXHKE
2021 — HK$0.28 per share) SiEE0.287T) 75,717 106,003
117,361 174,148

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK$0.17
(2022: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022 of HK$0.20) per share, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$64,359,000 (2022: HK$75,717,000) has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EHRBEHERE BEZT =
+ZA=+—HUEFEZXRERESK
BRI/ T (CEZIZF  BE_E_-_
F+ZA=+—HLEEEZXRERES
A2 B 0.207T) » H#497# 164,359,000 7T
(ZZT-_F : #¥75717,0007T) > &H
EFEgERE LANEERRAERE
LB ERHLE o



13. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$814,937,000 (2022: profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$86,148,000) and on 378,583,440 (2022: 378,583,440) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units and retail stores under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to ten years (2022: one to five years), with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held
by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease

13. SREX (HFE)EBA
BATIRRELESRER (B518) BRI
RIBAFEERATRREGZEELNE
814,937,000 T (ZE 225 | ARFK
BRFE(L 2 EF 49 7B 1 86,148,000 7T) K 4
FEE#TZIER378583440 (=%
% :378,583,4400%) 5tH o

BE_ZT_=F+"_HB=+—HBK_-Z
__HFE+-A=+—HLEFEERGEE
ABELSER > FL#BESRBAHRE
i

14. BREME
AEBBRBELSSHEUAAEAHES
EHEE > BEMIEBMUKRZTERE o
HEEEA—FI+E( 2=
—FHREF) TEEESFEEMNZEE
IEREERAEARFERIBRALSN o

HRFTAREIUERBERES BHINEE
ERFE > WEAEBRAEEBENZ
MmAZINERE - HESEAF I RER
BEERNHAEAZEE AR
EREMERNERE -

term.

HKS 000

BT
FAIR VALUE ATEE
At 1 January 2022 R-_E__&—HF—H 9,525,573
Currency realignment ERAE (279,733)
Additions 121m 7,078
Disposal HE (1,882)
Adjustments to construction costs B A (7,211)
Gain on changes in fair value ATEEEHNE 236,530
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+-A=1+—H 9,480,355
Currency realignment S (33,581)
Additions 1 19,348
Reclassify from completed properties held for sale BRTHHENEENIE 21,659
Acquired on an acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) R eI B ARMERS (5t 34) 425,248
Disposal HE (4,181)
Loss on changes in fair value AT EELEEE (297,478)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+"A=+—H 9,611,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the unrealised loss on property revaluation
amounting to HK$297,774,000 (2022: gain on property
revaluation amounting to HK$235,689,000) is included in profit
or loss.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the
Group’s policy to engage independent qualified professional
valuer, which is not connected to the Group which has
appropriate professional qualifications and recent experience
in the valuations of similar properties in the relevant locations,
to perform the valuations. The management works closely with
the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation model or
techniques and inputs to the model. The fair value of the
completed investment properties in Hong Kong and outside
Hong Kong at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and at the
date of transfer have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on those dates by the following Valuers:

AR E B IR MY EE

14. EWME (&

FR AEBERYVWEEHESEEBE
297,774,000 (B ZF : YESEFHR
7 B 1% 235,689,000 7T) B BIEEIEE IR
A o

EHEMELTFEER > NEBMERK
THEREIL S EREEGEMETEE
% {5 B B A 5 [ 3 SR B 3 » 3 TEAE R
MU EETHEREEENE X
BRI AR - EEE B EME Y]
B BUBENGERMTAGEER
WMAYE SEREBIRIINNEEME
A B _=F+"H=+—H -ZF
T+ ZA=t+—HEEZEHHNR
TEELRBUTEHEMRZEBRE
THHERY :

Location of the investment properties Valuers Qualification

REMERTE {4 (EED

HK/PRC Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd. Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
&E/HE BB EMEERARAR HHAEMEEES

UK Cushman & Wakefield Limited Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

BifE] BERT HEERFTAEMEE

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in the same locations and conditions or,
where appropriate, by capitalising the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the
valuer for the similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

HENEREBUED 2 ZEREME KK
ENELUMENTRERHZET LM
BZEREEURMBEELYEHE
RERUE YR B B EIRY
mISTHE (RERE) SH - EFFAN
BRELERDESZEEMMZ M ER
BLUMEBRRASHONR=E > BERE
HEMAAMAANEYEERNEER
RABEREA -

EEFAMEATEER  MENRER
RIEAESEBRIAR -

TRINGLERKREVENATEENM
EENER (EREREPANMGER
MRBAEE) » UREATEESESR
MEAZHAIUERNEE > BT E
B ENPEEATEERBPHRG (5
—EFE=MRA)



14.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
SEESERRENES)
REEHMBRAR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
TEBEHNRENES
REaRBTRRR

14. I EWME (&)

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EXTARRGHNEY

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREFHNEY
BATFEEMNRR

Investment properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$207,000,000 (2022: HK$773,230,000)
(note)

EEBNRENXERAEEE
20700000070 (B "% :
HH773,2300007T) (HizE)

Direct comparison method

BRLEE

The key input is
IBEES

(1) Unitsalerate
(1) EIHEER

Unit sale rate, taking into account the
time, location, and individual factors, such
as frontage and size, between the
comparable and the property, ranging
from HK$92 to HK$11,300 (2022: HK$97 to
HK$28,329) per square feet for properties
and ranging from HK$1,500,000 to
HK$2,600,000 (2022: HK$1,500,000 to

HK$2,300,000) per unit for car park spaces.

ZREIERE AR ERNERNELS
ZBENERNEE > NhEKkEE %8

An increase in the unit sale rate used
would result in an increase in the fair
value measurement of the investment
properties by the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.
FrRMEBHEER—B tf &2
REMENATEBEN2RARNE
DI K28R
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BHEBREABTARAARR2TE
E11300T (ZBZZF BB TE
BI283297T) » FEIGH DA FE(IRE
#1,500,000 7o E % 2,600,0007% (ZF

Z T AE1,500,000 T E B 2,300,000
7o) °

Investment properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$5,973,460,000 (2022:
HK$5,601,600,000) (note)
EEBNRENZBRAESRE
5973460,00070 (ZB__%F !

7 5,601,600,0007) (Ff3E)

Income capitalisation method
WEEHL
The key inputs are

TERHA

(1) Reversion yield

(1) EHEOEER

—

(2)  Monthly market rent
and unit sale rate

2 SATEEE

Reversion yield, taking into account of the

capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property and prevailing
market condition, ranging from 2.4% to
3.5% (2022: 2.5% to 3.5%).
ZRIBETHTUAERNE - MELER
REmR > RRENEREEA24%E
35% (ZBZ2F 1 25%E35%) 0

Monthly market rents and unit sale rate,
taking into account of time, location and
individual factors such as frontage and
size, between the comparable and the
property, ranging from HK$42 to HK$214

Asslight increase in the reversion yield
used would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

PN ENER=EFEH L7
BYRENENATEEHEEEX
T8 RZTHA o

Aslight increase in the monthly market
rent used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties, and vice
versa.

235
(2022: HKS40 to HKS199) per square feet ~ FrAMEREmBREEREM LT @
per month and HK$27,153 (2022 nil) per B4 REBENENATEEHAEREX =
square feet per month, respectively. IH o RZIAAR o
ZREIE MR RBRYEEYELS #
ZEHEREE > mARREE  §AH S
GHREITASTARABEQTERE o
2470 (ZB-ZF  BEAOTEBHLY
7o) REUHEBRTEASTARBYE .

21537 (CEZZ&  &)o
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14.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
SEEBHNRENES
REERBRLE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
EEASHNRENRS
REEMBRRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

14. I EWME (&)

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EARTRREHNEY

Relationship

of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREFHNEY
BRTREENRR

Investment properties in the PRC

with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$484,633,000 (2022: HK$484,905,000)
ERENREY R EREERE
4846330007 (ZE-"F !

71 484,905,000 7T)

Investment properties in the PRC with
an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,523,725,000 (2022:
HK$2,620,620,000)
T‘EPIEIE’J&%%%JEEE%%
252372500075 (ZF==

71 2,620,620,0007T)

Direct comparison method

ERLERE

The key input is
ITBEHA

(1)  Unitsalerate
(1) E{HEES

Income capitalisation method

W E AL

The key inputs are
TELYA

(1) Reversion yield
(1) HEAENCRE

(2)  Monthly market rent
2 SRAmSGHEE

Unit sale rate, taking into account the
time, location, and individual factors, such
as frontage and size, between the
comparable and the property, ranging
from Renminbi (“RMB”) 13,300 to
RMB20,000 (2022: RMB14,250 to
RMB21,100) per square meter for
properties.

ZRERE M HERBRYEENELS
ZBNENER > MAmkRE > B
EEREASTARBARBEIZ00EA
RE200007T (ZBZ2F | ARKE14250
EARE211007T) °

Reversion yield, taking into account of the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property and prevailing
market condition, ranging from 4.6% to
5.0% (2022: 4.6% to 5.0%).
ZRIECHEWAERRE  MELER
RETR BBRNEHREEA46%E
5.0% (ZBZZHF 1 46%E50%)

Monthly market rents, taking into account
of time, location and individual factors
such as frontage and size, between the
comparable and the property, ranging
from RMB264 to RMB600 (2022: RMB241
to RMB650) per square meter per month.
ZREGHE  HHERBRYMEENZELS
ZBENEREE > WARkAE > 8AH
iﬂﬁéﬁ%?ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ#’é?ﬁwﬂ)\
R 264nEARK6007T (ZEZZ
AEB 21 TEARE60TT) ©

An increase in the unit sale rate used
would result in an increase in the fair
value measurement of the investment
properties by the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.

PR E(HEBE—BLH > 8%
REMENATEEFERAKNE
DI > RZ T o

Asslight increase in the reversion yield
used would result in a significant
decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

PN ENER=EFEH £
BYRENENATEEHEREX
T RZMHA o

Asslight increase in the monthly market
rent used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties, and vice
versa.
FANSAmREEEREM LA
BYRENENATEEHEEEX
I R2H%A
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. IREWE (E) ‘;f:
Investment properties ;
held by the Group in the Relationship 3
consolidated statement Valuation technique(s) Significant of unobservable 8
of financial position and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value =
FEEFANRENES) FEGANRENES) FABRGHNEY ks
REFAHBRRR REAHBRRR EXTARREHNEY BATRENRR g
Investment property in the UK with Income capitalisation method L
an aggregate carrying amount of KB
HK$422,552,000.
ERENREYERIREEER The key inputs are
422,552,007 © ITBEHA
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of the  Asslight increase in the reversion yield
(1) TREEAERE capitalisation of rental income potential,  used would result in a significant
nature of the property and prevailing decrease in the fair value
market condition, at 4.03%. measurement of the investment

ZRIEEHSWAERLE  MERER  properties, and vice versa.
BRI ABENEREERTEA403% o FANRBENEREEEEM R »
BOREMENATEENEREX

TH o K2R o
(2)  Monthly market rent Monthly market rent, taking into account A sslight increase in the monthly market
2 SBEmEHE of time, location and individual factors rent used would result in a significant
such as frontage and size, between the increase in the fair value measurement
comparable and the property, at GBP9 per  of the investment properties, and vice
square meter per month. versa.

ZREIRRE HERERNEZANEELS FMANSATHESEREMLT
ZBENENER  IFRKkAE  8AT SYREVENATEEHEREX

BHEASTARIRER LA RZ7HR
note:  As at 31 December 2023, following the current use of the investment properties, valuation izt BEZSZ=F+ZA=1—H REKEMEEH
techniques for investment properties in Hong Kong with carrying amount of approximately HBRE BREBEENAE548760,000T(Z 222
HK$548,760,000 (2022: HK$914,900,000) have been changed from direct comparison F : B1%914,900,000 70) NE B R EYE » HEAMER
method to income capitalisation method in deriving a more representative fair value. fEHEBLEBREiNAREER % WEHEAR
RUMRFEE -

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December —E-=H+-"HB=+—HEZZE=-—

2023 and 31 December 2022 were measured using valuation F+_-_HB=+—HFFEREWMENAT

techniques with significant unobservable inputs and hence EEAFNEERNAIERENE KA S

were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. ZEERM WO BEARTFEEREES
=KAo

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FERREEBANEBHE=4RF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Hotel
land and

VA
w3

A 75 W R Bt 5E

15. M%E - BER#RHE

Other
leasehold
land and

Plant and

Furniture,
fixtures,
motor vehicles
and computer

buildings buildings machinery equipment Total
EEth  EfEELH B 28
e kg BERME  SERENSE (g

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

BT BET BB BT BT
cosT K&
At1 January 2022 RZE-_&—A—H 1,589,082 105,136 55197 444294 2193709
Currency realignment EXxER (27,700) - (4333) (6,110) (38,143)
Additions 110 12919 = 4900 24,600 42419
Disposals HE - - (323) (9.792) (10115)
At 31 December 2022 RZB__&#+-A=1+—H 1,574,301 105,136 55,441 452,992 2,187,870
Currency realignment EXER 3981 - (731) 807 4057
Additions Hm 409 - 457 41,429 42295
Disposals HE - - (542) (8,282) (8,824)
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=F+"A=1+—H 1,578,691 105,136 54,625 486,946 2,225,398
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION  $fE Rithss
At1 January 2022 RZE--f#—-HA—-H 68,862 24,542 34423 147,748 275,575
Currency realignment ExpE 27) - (2,756) (2,035) (4,818)
Charge for the year FEESH 44353 2,385 3447 49116 99,301
Eliminated on disposals R E R - - (270) (3,385) (3,655)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=1—H 113,188 26927 34,844 191,444 366,403
Currency realignment ERpE 126 - (469) (146) (489)
Charge for the year KEEYH 44,538 2371 3,484 51,617 102,016
Eliminated on disposals P E R - - (452) (4916) (5,368)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+-B=1+-H 157,852 29,304 37,407 237,999 462,562
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=F+"A=1+—H 1,420,839 75,832 17218 248,947 1,762,836
At 31 December 2022 RZB-__F+-A=1+—H 1,461,113 78,209 20,597 261,548 1,821,467




15.

notes:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:

Hotel land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease or 2% to 3%
Other leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or
2% t0 3%
Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures, motor vehiclesand ~ 10-20%

computer equipment

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The management of the Group concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property, plant and
equipment relating to hotel operation in Hong Kong and Thailand with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$1,119,081,000 (2022: HK$1,154,123,000) and HK$437,483,000
(2022: HK$444,888,000) respectively. The management of the Group estimated the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units (‘CGUs") to which the assets belong
based on fair value less costs of disposal. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group engaged an independent qualified professional valuers to perform
the valuation. The hotel in Hong Kong was measured using residual approach on a
redevelopment basis. The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation included the gross
development value on completion status and estimated project redevelopment cost. While
the other hotel in Thailand was measured using income approach and discounted cash flow
projections with 3% growth rate and pre-tax discount rate of 10%.

Based on the results of the assessment, management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of the respective CGUs based on the fair value less cost of disposal
was higher than its carrying amount. No impairment is recognised for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

15.
st

ME - BER=RMHE (&)

LM% BERRBRADEEREEUTIER
e -

EE L RIEF BEEz ANERSR
2% % 3%

HifAE D RIET BB 2 B E I
2% E 3%

[ Rt 28 10%

R B Bk 10-20%

B R

KA RINE -

AEAEERAAEEARNENS  TAMHKREE
# A B 1119081000 ( Z T - ZF: B
1,154,123,00070) K % 1 437,483,000 5 (Z B4 :
444,888,000 7T) WA RBE B RGEEEE sz
¥ BERRBETTRETE FEEEEERE
ATBEREERASETEEMBNREEEEMMN
FREE - cREHERNENATEER  AEEAZ
BEIAERSEEAEMETIEMGE BBAEER
BREEGTEEEER - ARGEERYENEER
IBEEHAESEE T RENERREENGER
BEMD BEREEESERRAZNBERRSR
EREEN > BRERRA3%  RABRRA10% o

REFEER  AEAEBERT  RATFEERE
HEMAHE  HRREELEBMZAKEEESH
HEEEE BE-_Z_=ER-_E-__#+_A
=t+—BLEEEBERIRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

AR E B IR MY EE

16. EFHEEE

Leased
properties

AANE
HK$'000
BETT
As at 31 December 2023 RZE2-=%+"A=+—-H
Carrying amount fREE 1,769
As at 31 December 2022 RZE2_"&+"A=+—-H
Carrying amount fREE 2,307
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_Z-_=H+-A=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge FE 2,639
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_F-__E+"A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge FE 3,041
2023 2022
-g-=¢ —E--
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Expenses relating to short-term leases HTHEERMNER 4,072 3912
Total cash outflow for leases HERE LA 6,889 7124
Additions to right-of-use assets EREBEEM 2,122 -

The Group leases various offices, director and staff quarters for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
one to two years (2022: one to fifteen years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices, director and staff quarters. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the expense relating to
short-term leases recognised above.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, lease liabilities of
HK$2,122,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$2,122,000.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

FEEAREXEBHERNMRE -ES
MEIES HESANEEEHA—
FI_F(ZTBE-_—F:.—E+HFE)-H
ERMERBENBLGEEEN > B
FEEEBRRMNGRAGEGE - AER
7 B2 7€ 72 & HA PR A 511y R =Y A8 AY HA IR
B RASRNERILEE S F B8
MATRVHAR o

rEETHAZSHEE EEKRETHE
B URHEESR - #HLEZT =
RZIEZZHF+ZR=+—H &EH
HEASEE P BRHATEEERANE
Bz AR EHASHE M -
BIE—E—_=fF+_"_FB=+—H M8
BEAE2122,000 cEERIFEREEE
182,122,000 T E FHERD ©

BT HEARENHAEEEPRIERE
mIh > MEBBEREMNEAEMATE o
HENEENSREEEIERGS



17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of properties under

development for sale of approximately HK$865,772,000 (2022:

HK$1,474,233,000), net of accumulated impairment of

HK$545,267,000 (2022: nil), was expected to be realised after

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of properties held
for sale of approximately HK$398,147,000 (2022:
HK$344,204,000), net of accumulated impairment of
HK$111,148,000 (2022: HK$60,901,000), and HK$11,714,000
(2022: HK$11,714,000) are located in the PRC and Hong Kong,
respectively.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense
during the year amounted to approximately HK$94,436,000
(2022: HK$81,755,000).

The impairment loss on properties under development for sale
and properties held for sale recognised as an expense during
the year amounted to approximately HK$545,267,000 and
HK$53,425,000 (2022: nil and HK$15,794,000), respectively.

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. FHEZRDPME FHEME

RZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H > FHE
ERPYEIREEL A B 865,772,000
TT(ZTE T4 ¢ #851,474,233,0007T) »
NP R sHR B RSB 545,267,000 75 (=
TTTF IR ARERSHERTZE
B&EIR o
AZE=F+ZHA=+—H > FHE
VI EIREEL A B 1398147,000 7T (=
T T4 A¥344,204,0007T) AR R
SR EREE1 111,148,000 T (ZE ==
. A ¥60,901,0007T ) R A A B KK
11,7140007c( —Z & Z Z &£ B &
11,714,000 7T) A AU HERE#E °
TR BRIARIZEHEMERE
KA BIEI4436000 T (ZE-_Z_F : B
81,755,000 7T) ©
RUHEERPYMERFTHEME ZRE
BEREAFARRASZHARNNA B
545,267,000 7T Kz A 1 53,425,000 7T (ZF
T RN 15,794,000 7T) ©

18. SELEHEH

2023 2022
-g-= ot nbd
HKS 000 HKS 000
BT BETT
Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted ¥ ERAE ¥ HA—JELH 90,660 90,660
Loans advanced to joint ventures (note e) BERTAELE (Mte) 409,756 364,268
Share of post-acquisition results and other Fral iR R EREM2 ERE
comprehensive income, net of dividends IREKRERE
received 134,664 116,334
635,080 571,262
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

18. A& EER (])
T AXRERBNR _SE_=%+="8
=t+—HBKrR-E-__F+"-HA=+—H

BEXESSHE .
Place of Proportion Proportion
incorporation/ Class of of ownership of voting
Name of company Notes operations shares held interest power held Principal activities
RELERR Mt AL EEH FRisERIAER FEH LA BHERERZILH TEER
2023 2022 2023 2022
- k3 ZECC Z8C= T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BBt BETR AETR BT
Value Investing Group (a) HongKong/Japan  Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
Company Limited (‘Value &8/ A% Ligk S
Investing”)
BEREEEBRAF
Clear Miles Hong Kong Limited  (b) Hong Kong/Australia Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
(‘Clear Miles") &8/ =M L@k e
AM 310 Ann Street Investor Unit  (c) Australia Ordinary 15% 15% 15% 15%  Property investment
Trust ("Ann Street Unit B LiEkk MERE
Trust’)
Golden Partners Investment (d) Hong Kong/Italy Ordinary 50% - 50% - Property investment
Limited BB/ AN gk nERE

The Group and the other joint venturers are contractually
agreed sharing of control and have rights to the net assets of
these entities. The decisions about the relevant activities of
these entities required unanimous consent of the Group and the
other joint venturers. Accordingly, these investments are
accounted for as joint ventures.

notes:

(@) In November 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value
Partners Group Limited (“Value Partners”) to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in
Value Investing which in turn through a wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the trust
beneficial interests in the properties located in Japan, held under operating leases to earn
rentals.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Value Investing and the financial
results and financial positions of Value Investing is incorporated in the Group's consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

FEERAMEEERGVNEDZEE
g TEAENELEERINFEENE
Mo ARELEERNEMESHINRER
EXAEENMHEMEESHN—RET - E
I EREERAEREARK-

M

@ RIB—tE+—A FEEAREEREFRAR(TSE
B)iJuBEHR > BABERAERERAR50%
WEETRE  WEBHZEMBEARR » FH100% 8
HNEAME > RECEROMURRAS o

ReEME > AERBEEREEEARARRML
EEHNED MEEREEEERADNHYHEEXE
MMBRR > KU AT AT EBNGRSHBRE
Ho



18.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(b)

In September 2018, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Value
Partners to acquire 50% of the issued share capital in Clear Miles which in turn through a
wholly-owned subsidiary holds 100% of the beneficial interests in the properties located in
Australia, held under operating leases to earn rentals.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Clear Miles and the financial
results and financial positions of Clear Miles is incorporated in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

On 21 December 2021, the Group and Value Partners have agreed with Clear Miles under a
contribution agreement (“Contribution Agreement”) that each of the shareholders will
inject by way of interest-free and unsecured shareholder loan with no fixed repayment date
of Australian dollar (“AUD") 55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$307,340,000) pro
rata to their respective equity interest in Clear Miles.

Such contribution is to enable Clear Miles to acquire 25% attributable interest in a property
situated at Kent Street, Sydney (“Property”) (with each of the Group and Value Partners
acquiring 12.5% attributable interest in the Property) through the subscription of an
aggregate of 110,000,000 units in the AM Kent Street Investor Trust at an issue price of
AUDL1 per unit at a total consideration of AUD110,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$614,680,000). 11,000,000 units are to be subscribed on or before 21 December 2021
while the remaining 99,000,000 units are to be subscribed on 31 March 2022. Advances of
the shareholders loan under the Contribution Agreement are to be made by the Group and
Value Partners in tranches as required by Clear Miles to meet its subscription payment
obligations. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made an advance of
shareholder loan to Clear Miles amounting to AUD49,500,000 (approximately
HK$279,131,000) under the Contribution Agreement.

In February 2021, the Group entered into a unit holder deed with Valuer Partners and AM
310 Ann Street Equity Pty Ltd to establish Ann Street Unit Trust which holds 100% of the
trust beneficial interests the land and buildings located at 310 Ann Street, Brisbane in
Queensland, held under operating leases to earn rentals, at a consideration of
approximately AUD15,000,000 (approximately HK$90,660,000).

Upon establishment of Ann Street, the Group exercises joint control over Ann Street Unit
Trust and the financial results and financial positions of Ann Street Unit Trust is
incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting.

On 10 July 2023, the Group and Value Partners, formed a joint venture, namely Golden
Partners Investment Limited (“Golden Partners"), which is held as to 50% by the Group and
50% by Value Partners. Upon establishment of Golden Partners, each party agreed to
contribute shareholder loan of Euro (“EUR") 7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$61,375,000) to acquire 50% of the total issued units of the Cromwell Italy Urban Logistic
Fund, which owns seven logistics assets in northern Italy, at the aggregate consideration of
EUR13,084,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$112,297,000). The completion of the
acquisition of the units was on 27 July 2023.

Upon completion, the Group exercises joint control over Golden Partners and the financial
results and financial positions of Golden Partners is incorporated in the Group's
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Loans advanced to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment
terms. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the loans are considered as part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures.

SERE#EE (8)

RIE-—N\ENA  FERAEETTEERS B
AClear Miles 50% BB # 1Tk TBBHZEME
A FE100% BmEMYE  REGEBNUER
BillE o

RZTHE > NEEY Clear Miles B Hi £ R 519 #
712 fiClear Miles AT £ BB HMA » B UER
Rt ASEENGEMERRS o

RZE-_—F+-A-+—H'c&EEREEEH
Clear Miles ER—BH & & (THERZ) » SR
R HER BT Clear Miles IRIELLE] » UGBS« &
48 R E T 1B 7 B AR AR 3R & RUR 55,000,000 7T
(FRE R 481 307,340,000 ) AR HE o

ZEHEZThE Clear MilesBLUEBREE IR
ToH T ER S %155 5 ££ 110,000,000 18 B i A9 /5 10
i B — 1B i 12 2B JE Kent Street UM 2 (T2 %) K9
25% FEMLER (FERNBEE BB ZMEN12.5%
FEfE1ER) » A BAR 110,000,000 7T (FBERK S
#614,680,00075) © 11,000,000BEMER B = —
F+ZBZ+—BHZAIRE ; RERT 99,000,000
BUER-E__E=-A=1+—H3I% - LBEHZE
TRRERERNWBTE RS ERRIERE Clear Miles
MERMLEL  UBTEABARET -BEZZ
ZIE+ZR=1+—H cEEREHERER Clear
Miles® {F i& R & X & #49,500,0007z ( 49 & &
279,131,0007%) °

RZEZ—FZRF > AEERFEHNAM 310 Ann
Street Equity Pty Ltd 3T B E AZ4 > RILAnn
Street Unit Trust » &5t A (it B LRI 28I
310 Ann StreetB AT IR 100% (5 5E Bt
IR QSR UBRRES » {EL4R115000,000
7T (4977 90,660,000 7T)

RZ5eHiE » EEEH Ann Street Unit Trust BifR
£EEIA#EH > T Ann Street Unit Trust BYBA75 2 4& 181
Bkl > SRR ASEBNG SRR T o

RIEZ=F+tA+H ' cxEARZERIEGELF
Golden Partners Investment Limited (TGolden
Partners)) » H 7% % B 5 B2 50% > 5 3 #5 B2 50% ©
Golden Partnersf L% €5 AEHERRER
7,000,000 % 7T (18 & 52 49 7 1 61,375,000 75 ) b Ui 6
Cromwell Italy Urban Logistic Fund B % 17 B {il 48 &1
#50% » ZESERAFIEDEE LEMRPLEE
R 1B#%13,084,0008 7T (HER E#112,297,0007T) °
BLEANKER-_E_=FtA+tHERRK

TR % » AEEH Golden Partners B i 12 5
5 » B Golden Partners MBI TS £ EM BTN »
BB A ASEBNG M BRERD o

mEELRRENERARER  REEEEEER
R s AREEIAZERRERTELXREN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. SE T EETD (&)

The consolidated financial information of Value Investing, T3IABEIKEEEREFREASRERK
which is prepared in accordance with International Financial BAFIREZERFERIZEESHTFZER ¢
Reporting Standards, is set out below:

2023 202
ZEI=F bt S
HKS'000 HKS 000
BETT AT
Current assets REEE 636 1,058
Non-current assets ERBEE 445,856 431,265
Current liabilities nPaR 102,452 112,634
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEEER 399 1,058
Current financial liabilities (excluding other TN BEEE (FEEEtREMRTM R
payables and provisions) 102,328 112,525
2023 2022
ZEI=F =S
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BT
Profit for the year KEE R 24,166 16,364
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEERT 186 273
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZEKGALE 24,352 16,637

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial WU E{EBEXRSEBERABE 2GS
information of Value Investing to the carrying amount of the BiFBER AN EiES MBI ARTESD
interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated Z &S hXEREE .

financial statements:

2023 2022
—g-= k-

HKS000 HKS'000

BETT BETT

Net assets BESH 344,040 319,689

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestin ~ AEBFGEEREERRRATZ

Value Investing FEER 28D 50% 50%

172,020 159,845

Deemed investments WRARER A 64,667 66,052

Pre-acquisition profits WEE R A (5,080) (5,080)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Value AEEREBEEEERERATZ
Investing ERREE 231,607 220,817




18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18. A& EER (8)

The summarised financial information below represents the LU TF#fit Z B #EERHERE BN ERIE
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually BEAZ&&P¥ I EZE4EEE .
material:
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2023 2022
ZEI=F ZEIC
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
The Group's share of profit (loss) for the year AEERERFLER (518) 10,012 (32,309)
The Group's share of other comprehensive AEEFEREMGEMZES S
expense for the year (139) (5,495)
The Group's share of total comprehensive AEEAEEMGERERS ()
income (expense) for the year 9,873 (37,804)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEERZEEREZ ELIREERE
interests in these joint ventures 403,473 350,445
19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI AND FINANCIAL 19. BRAFEEFAARMEAWEZ
ASSETS AT FVTPL EETAREBAFEEFA#E=
ZEMEE
Financial Equity
assets instruments
at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BATHEHA
BATEETA Ht2EREZ
BiEZEMEE ERIA ot
notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E BETT BETT BETT
2023 —E_=
Listed equity securities LR (a) 14,732 227 14,959
Unlisted equity securities I EmlRAES (b) - 227,113 227,113
Perpetual capital securities BRPERES (© - 45,116 45,116
14,732 272,456 287,188
Analysed as: nEEA
Listed in Hong Kong R&E#E LT 14732 45,343 60,075
Unlisted L - 227113 227113
14,732 272,456 287,188
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  LUERRE 2 D44
Non-current assets FREEE 272,456
Current assets REBEE 14,732
287,188
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19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI AND FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED)

19. BAFEEAAEZEANREZ
B TARBAFEEFAET

ZEMEE (&)
Financial Equity
assets instruments
at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
BATEEHA
BATEEHA  Ht2ENGEZ
BHZEMEE BHIA Bz
notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BT BETT BETT
2022 —E-C
Listed equity securities Nalyil 7N @a) 18,866 259 19,125
Unlisted equity securities JE ETRRAE (b) - 233,966 233,966
Perpetual capital securities ERIAEAGE (0 - 41,595 41,595
18,866 275,820 294,686
Analysed as: NEEA .
Listed in Hong Kong REBLS 18,866 41,854 60,720
Unlisted JEETE - 233,966 233,966
18,866 275,820 294,686
Analysed for reporting purpose as: ~ M{ERE 2 B4
Non-current assets ERBEE 275,820
Current assets mEEE 18,866
294,686

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets
at FVTPL that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity are set out

AEELERERBRINEGEUINT
BEZRATEEFAHMEERE 2 #E
mTARBATFEEFABREZZERE

below: BT
Denominated
in United States
dollars (‘US$")
ETIE
HKS'000
BETT
As at 31 December 2023 BE_Z-_=f+"A=1+—H 65,242
As at 31 December 2022 BE_Z_"H+°A=1+—H 61,074
notes: sk

(@) As at 31 December 2023, listed equity securities classified as financial instruments at
FVTOCI held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$227,000 (2022: HK$259,000) are

carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2023, unlisted equity securities classified as financial instruments at
FVTOCI held by the Group amounting to approximately HK$227,113,000 (2022:

HK$233,966,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

(© As at 31 December 2023, the Group held perpetual capital securities amounting to
approximately HK$45,116,000 (2022: HK$41,595,000) which are carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Such investments are issued in August 2020 and July 2019 with
a fixed distribution rate of 5.5% and 5.7% per annum payable semi-annually for the first five
years and reset to the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury plus the initial margin every five years

thereafter.

(@) RIBZ=E+"A=+—-H cEEMFEURE
HANATEENE P BARATEEFALMS
Al Ez EE TAN EHRAESAAE227,0007T
(ZZZZF @ BK259,0007T) ©

(b) RIBZI=E+ZA=+-—H FEEMFEURSE
HANATEENE  HEARATEEFALM2
ARE G TENFETREAZENBEBE
227,113,000 70 (ZEZ "5 © ¥ 233,966,0007T) ©

(0 RIBZ=F+"A=+—H’FEBRFEURE
HANATEESE  PEAEERBESESN2
451160007 (ZEZ 24 | 1 41,595,0007T) °
ZEEN_E_SEN\ARZE-NELBAET K
EREAEASESSHRST% BEESEERE—
R HESRERENEREEREREERMBEME
BXEE .



20. INVENTORIES 20. 8

2023 2022
& =R S
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT
The Group's inventories comprise: rEREFESEEE:

Raw materials [EME 2,545 2,078
Work in progress R m 10,370 8,240
Finished goods A 16,854 19,560
Other inventories Hitz& 2,649 3,116
32,418 32,994

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the
year amounted to approximately HK$67,429,000 (2022:
HK$75,687,000).

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

REEERRBASTHZEERETLNAE
W67,429000c( —_ B —_F: B I§

75,687,000 7T) °

21. BB RHEMEUIRR

2023 2022

—EC=E —E-C
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT
Trade receivables B RER 32,103 39,138
Lease receivables AERKH 5,825 5,673
37928 44,811
Deposits paid BiffEE 9,712 15323
Other receivables and prepayments HiEUER TR TR TIR 65,039 42,147
VAT receivables FEIE B 55,875 46,193
168,554 148,474

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$37,562,000.
notes:

(@) Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the
terms of the sale and purchase agreements. There is no credit period given on billing for
rental of properties. Monthly rent are payable in advance by the tenants. Trade customers
or tenants settle their accounts with an average credit period of 30 to 90 days. The aged
analysis of trade receivables and lease receivables of approximately HK$37,928,000 (2022:

R-IE__F#—B—H'ZTFREHZE
5 FEWRBR TN 2 7 18 37,562,000 7T ©

st

@) BRBEBSVEAABMHEENEZAE  mANE
MRERAREEN HEFRVBH - BFERHA

RAIRF530-90BZEE

HER - REREHR

REZAMHHAAESEEERRAERKRABE
37,928,0007C (ZE = 4 : #144,811,0007T) Z B

HK$44,811,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as BRI
follows:
2023 2022
k- et —2°C

HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTR BETT
Within 30 days 308HA 18,765 16,775
Between 31 days to 90 days 31E90H 14,822 18,677
Over 90 days BiB0H 4341 9,359
37,928 44,811
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(b)  Asat31 December 2023, included in the trade receivable and lease receivables balance are  (b)
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$9,294,000 (2022: HK$10,620,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, debtors with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,505,000 (2022: HK$2,906,000) were past due and
aged over 90 days at the end of reporting period but the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. Debtors that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
customers that have a good track record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit
history, the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

(© All of the Group's trade receivables and lease receivables are denominated in the  (c)

functional currency of the individual entities within the Group.

(d) Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note 36B.

22. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 2.55% (2022: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum. The fixed
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.35% to 5.60%

(2022:1.06% to 5.37%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency

21. B 5 R H iU ER=R (48
izt : ()

RZBZ=F+"A=+—R’ s AERRKER
EERENER R SRR 2 AR REAES
189,294,000 7C (ZEZ 24 © #1£10,620,0007T)
RBREREaH AHBRED RAGEABE
2,505,000 TTRIFEIRER =R (Z B = Z 4 : #%1#£2,906,000
7)  HERBRBEHAEAHRBB0R  AEET
ERZEER 2 AERENREE ARFERATR
BENERZZERT  BREABMHNEBERDER
EEE BREBENEERR BEEIALEREN
NEEERREEANE  BRBENRAATR2K
b RAIEERZSERTRERRE AEBLER
ZEEREEEMERY

FEBA B 7 REUERAAE B RUCRR U A ER A
BRI EREZ AR ETIE -

@ ARESREMEKERNAETE  $ERRNE
36B °
FAZERERIMZEMRITE
MRTERRRSE

22.

IRITERMABUTSZIERAENFE
NEEF00I%E25% (Z T ==
0.01%%0.5%) o EHIEARMBERBEEF LS
NFEEIIBNES560%(ZFE -
1.06% ZE5.37%) ©

AEBLOFEMEBRBERNINEG B 5
BENRITEMREMRTER > T3/

of the relevant group entity are set out below: R
Denominated in
Denominated Japanese Yen Denominated Denominated Denominated
in AUD (“JPY") in HK$ in RMB in US$
bimTsliE NEE5E LksIE HAR¥%SIE EIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BETT
As at 31 December 2023 BE_Z_=£+"A=1+—H 26,921 73,297 297 477,964 160,161
As at 31 December 2022 BE_Z_"_E+°A=1+—H = 77,658 408 616,561 185,516

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 36B.

BB ST sF E L HIEE 36B ©



23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. BB RHEMMEGIKRR

2023 2022
& =R S
HKS'000 HKS 000
BETT BT
Trade payables B AR 10,908 9,599
Construction costs and retention payables EARERARELRES 135,804 136,570
Deposits received in respect of rental of REMERSZEWEE
investment properties 139,156 130,582
Rentals receipt in advance Sl Gtk 8,613 11,597
Deposits received (note) BUsiRE (st 151,249 153,433
Other payables HARE R 103,844 45,757
549,574 487,538
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 3 : R+ _{ERREINRE AR
shown under current liabilities (439,684) (381,153)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ZER&IMIIERB AR
shown under non-current liabilities 109,890 106,385

note:  The amounts represent refundable deposits received from subcontractors for the purpose
of securing their performance in respect of construction contracts in favour of the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on

Mz SBARNDOBEERRNTRERE  UERER
RENRAEENERESRMNET o

B 5B IRMAVIRE LA Z AN

the invoice date. T
2023 2022
—E_=HF k- St
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRTR BT
Within 30 days 30HA 10,908 9,599

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

BEEYMZT9EEHA308 - 7&H
ERERBEREEERE > URERAE
FEASBRARIE BRI SZ A o

24, THEGTE

203 202
—E-=H k=S
HKS 000 HKS 000
BETT BT
Lease liabilities payable: ERHEEER:
Within one year —&FR 1122 2433
Within a period of more than one year but —FRETBAME
not more than two years 731 71
1,853 2,504
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months & : ¥+ =188 A EIHAKREI&E
shown under current liabilities (1,122) (2,433)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+_ER %Iz IEREaE
shown under non-current liabilities 731 71
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

25. A &EaE

2023 2022
ZE=F - St
note HK$'000 HKS'000
HizE BETR BT
Sales of properties MEHE (a) 2,235 8,401
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRETAEEHIHNKEZFTEZ /DA
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. #LESNEERR o
Sales of properties
EIHE
2023 2022
—E-=H ka3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Revenue recognised that was included RENRREIEENEE
in the contract liabilities balance at the BREER AR
beginning of the year 8,401 9,693

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$9,693,000.

notes:

(@)  Sales of properties

The Group receives deposits from customers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement. The deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised until the customer
obtains control of the completed property.

(b) Contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period are expected to be recognised as
revenue in subsequent year.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

RZE__F—HF—H’ aNaBEEsE
7 71£9,693,000 7T °

(i

(a) e

FEBAREEEHAENRREME R NESE - KEE
RANaERED  EEXRNEETIMEMZH
o

(b) SERSBERNGHNREEFRE T —ERBAKA

SNAREAEERERERKBAE RRESEE
HIE) MAERZE R B ARARBNERE

A—aHNENERBIEARRES o



z
>
26. BORROWINGS 26. &3 &
2023 2022 =
—g-=% kSt 3
notes HKS'000 HKS000 g
B 5E BETT BETT ;
Secured bank borrowings BIERRITER 1,550,694 1,301,793 %
Unsecured bank borrowings EIERIRITER 850,000 900,000 b
Amounts due to non-controlling EREEA e TR
shareholders (@) 2,658 6,527
2,403,352 2,208,320
The carrying amounts of the secured bank it B IEiR(EAEBIREME :
borrowings that are repayable: (b)
Within one year —FR 921,911 85,703
Within a period of more than oneyear ~ —FHEBRBBRME
but not exceeding two years 28,508 918,370
Within a period of more than two years ~ MEBERBBAEE
but not exceeding five years 454,243 108,336
More than five years BRRE 146,032 189,384
1,550,694 1,301,793
The carrying amounts of unsecured bank  EIFRITERMNRABEES
borrowings that contain a repayable on  EERERZREM (BTERE
demand clause (shown under current &8fET) > BREE:
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —&ER 850,000 900,000
The carrying amounts of other borrowings EfttEHMREBEESEX
that contain a repayable on demand BIg15Eh
clause 2,658 6,527
2,403,352 2,208,320
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & : EREBAET—FAN
under current liabilities BB EEE (1,774,569) (992,230)
628,783 1,216,090
notes: s
(@  These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2023 and ~ (a) EEERABRAREREREE -R_T_=&FR
2022, the entire amount is non-interest bearing. ZRIZEFZRAZTB 2UBEERHFE o
(b)  Theamounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. (b)  BRAXTREDGEFEHETEDRE BT
(9  Asat 31 December 2023, HKS denominated secured bank borrowings of approximately () RIZEZZ&+"B=+—H  UBEIEZHIKE
HK$1,204,909,000 (2022: HK$945,800,000) and unsecured borrowings of approximately RITETAB1,204909,000T (ZE-ZF : B
HK$850,000,000 (2022: HK$900,000,000), RMB denominated secured bank borrowings of 945,800,00075) K A 1R & R4 415 850,000,000 75 (=
approximately HK$22,088,000 (2022: HK$22,411,000) and Thai Bahts (‘THB") denominated F T #1$900,000,0007T) 0 MAREFIEZ R
secured bank loans of approximately HK$323,697,000 (2022: HK$333,582,000) are variable- TEROBIE208800T(ZE__F: #i
rate bank borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus a margin of 0.9% to 1.25% (2022: 22,411,000 75) MU R HFEZ BIRIPRITERQ B
0.9% to 1.25%) per annum, 100% (2022: 100%) of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") 323,697,0007c (Z T Z 24 © B ¥333,582,0007T) 2
prescribed interest rate per annum and Minimum Loan Rate announced by the Bank of AAUSBRTREREAESM09%EL25% (ZF
Thailand (“MLR”) minus 1.5%, respectively. ZIEI09%EL5%) MERENIEMEHR KU 252
100% (Z B4 1 100%) 2PEARBAREAE  §
B Z B ERREERITAGNREERFERML.5% 2
The effective interest rates ranged from 4.50% to 6.57% (2022: 4.5% to 5.6%) per annum. BEAENTEEASRECSTS (CEZ2E I 45%F if
Details of assets pledged are set out in note 30. 5.6%) - BEREEFBHNME30 &
»
ol
1
L]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

AR E B IR MY EE

1R S 75 IE
MEIFEEHHBRARMS » EFIEL
MEBEREBEEEE - LTAMME
FR¥R B B Z IEAERR TRAS BR 04

2023 2022

ZE-= —E-CF

HK$000 HKS'000

AT BT

Deferred tax assets EIERMIBEE 20,809 16,898
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE (297,691) (325,203)
(276,882) (308,305)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years.

UTARERREEERNEEEDHE
B> TBRERES N (EE) URELE
B o

Difference Revaluation
of accounting of investment Dividend
and tax properties withholding
depreciation in the PRC tax Tax losses Total
BHARE BffERE
EZER ZREME REENR HRIEwHE a5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BlTR BlTR BB BlTr
At1 January 2022 RZEZ"F—-HA—-H 50,062 280,918 3,900 (30,534) 304,346
Charge (credit) to profit or loss PAEZIRPARR (GTA) 3475 22421 (3900) (992) 21,004
Currency realignment ExAE - (17,045) - - (17,045)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZR=1+—H 53,537 286,294 - (31,526) 308,305
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REBREEPIR GIA) 4207 (21,848) - (6,367) (24,008)
Currency realignment EXHER - (7,415) - - (7,415)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=+-H 57,744 257,031 - (37,893) 276,882

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$1,048,800,000 (2022:
HK$956,994,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$229,655,000 (2022: HK$191,067,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax loss of approximately HK$819,145,000 (2022:
HK$765,927,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2023 are tax losses of approximately HK$73,946,000 (2022:
HK$2,407,000) that will expire within 5 years from the year of
originating. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

RESHR 2&EBHBAENEE

1,048,800000C( Z E = Z F . B I&
956,994,000 7T) Z KRB B IEEE T FBHE

MR KREF o B A B 229,655,000
FT(ZEZ 5 : #¥191,067,0007T) B
R AIRIERIBEEE - AR EIATRRIER
IR ia F KR HERAY 15 819,145,000 7T
(ZZE -4 : #B%765927,0007T) Z#H
HEBIRERAREREBEESE - N
EC-F+"A=+—H > KERIRE
EETEEELEFERIENIHRNR
TEE51E497815 73,946,000 0 (- —
712,407,000 7T) ° HiRIBEEIIRERE
(REFEEET—FE o



27. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$77,895,000 (2022: HK$76,209,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$523,801,000 (2022:
HK$511,625,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

27. BIEMIE (8
REBEFETCEMSREZ BZSEZTN\E
—B—H#E » PEMEA S BEBUEF
k2 EEBMTAING - BRNEAEHE
RESNPEH O TR E R 2 R > AR
R EERE AR A RigRER > &
HARGEMBRRAPEHNBATR
Bz EhERAB77,8950007T (=
T T4 #8 76,209,000 7T) 1EH IEIE
MIEEE o

RIBERR > AEETIRINERERS
7 1%523,801,000c(ZEZZF . B
511,625,000 7T) ° EAARKEIAER FERIR
A AR ZE IR R ER
B L% S R IR0 G R E B RIE
IEMIBEE ©

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. Ig&
Number
of shares HK$'000
RiHHE BT
Issued and fully paid: BETRERRAE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 W-_E__%#—-F—-R8"
and 31 December 2023 “ECZFE+ZRA=t—HEK
“ET=F+ZHA=1+—H
Ordinary shares of no par HEEEZZER 378,583,440 381,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2012, for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees, and expired on 24 April 2022. Under the
2012 Scheme, the Company could grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at HK$10
per option. Additionally, the Company could, from time to time,
grant share options to outside eligible third parties at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted under the 2012 Scheme was not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
The number of shares in respect of which options could be
granted to any individual was not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price was to be determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of
the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2012 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2012 Scheme expired on 24 April 2022.

AR E B IR MY EE

R 53 #A ¥ 51 21

ZIS’AﬂffETFB‘\_ —HHWAZ+AH

BBZRBERRMWROIBAESE (2T
——F58)) > TEBNRANBRE
ERAERES > ZFFER_F—Z
FHOA—t+IAER - RE-_ZZT_F
itEl ) AT EEERES (BEELQ
BIREMBABRZHITES) R
NS HEARBE 10 TRBARB RN
L5t s AT AIKERERE > BEFE
NEREFRSERIMARE=ZFRERG
HAtE o

ERESEARBRRSBIHAET > RIB
_ﬁ—_ﬁ 5181 BT 4% H HA#E 2 B 10 4R 8K

FBRUHARBREFMFEAEETRGS
210% > MEERENA LRI
RPBEFAFSBEEARATNREMREHEE
BITRINZ1% °

R 3 HR A BT $B th B AR B T 48 PO 4
BRI - (TREMA AT EEREE
W RMER A ATRIA R B B v -
R IE BB B R 5 B 2RI
g 7 (B o4 2 B IR 1 U B B
B o

ZE— T FETEE SR LR E IR IR
HE#E . _E——FHEN_S -
OB —_+mHEm °



30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. EEEH

At the end of the reporting period, the equity interest of certain R IREHAFK » XEEMB AT S TR
subsidiaries of the Group and the assets shown as below were K TFIIEEEIRIFFIRIT > UWELEH
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made B F—fIRITRIE o
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available to the Group.

2023 2022
—8-= ZEICE
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Freehold land under hotel land and buildings E AR R TR KA E R LT 493,598 552,112
Leasehold land and buildings HE L RIEF 52,717 54,211
Investment properties REYE 4,781,625 4,986,720
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EXKIE
2023 2022
k- St S
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BENEBRRGEMBHERR LEEZ
provided in the consolidated financial BREY
statements in respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment/ — W% BRERSRE/RENE
investment properties 12,155 5,049
— Capital commitment to unlisted equity — JE ETIREE SR B A EH
security 20,317 20,317
32. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 32. BREHLKE
THE GROUP AS LESSOR EEMEAHAA
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next FREYXEHREEA—F+FEMTALY
one to ten years (2022: one to five years). (B —F:—FHHE) o
The Group as lessor had contracted with tenants for the Z&NEBEALHEABIKZUTRKEEME
following future minimum lease payments: S HEAEETL
2023 202
—8-= ZEICE
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Within one year —&FR 269,325 279,097
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZERFERN (BEERRE) 682,986 334,819
Over five years LE#% 7,452 -
959,763 613,916
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a
defined contribution schemes registered under the MPF
Scheme.

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective
schemes and are charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employees contribute 5% of the relevant
payroll to the MPF Scheme while the Group contributes 5% of
the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefits schemes. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these retirement
benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

AR E B IR MY EE

33. BIREFIETE
FEBATBZAEREERT ER
EMRETE > WAERRE st TaEM -

AEBRBFBTEEE ZEBRAURE
HEERMZMHER > R BEGASIRERINR -
BETFEHEEAREAURETTIE
# > RAEBEZEEDHERE - RiIRHE
BEstE > BTRBHBMASMRS%
REBREE A > MAEETFRZER
BT ABB5% m5RIEE T BIHR o

LS s AEBERABERIIZBBARZ
ETEREABRREBERKRENE Z MK
B -ZFEMBARARENESETES
EE @) iR R A8 F 58I /F th (R - LU A
ER - AEEHZFRAEMNEZ
ME—BETEHEE R -



34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 6 April 2023, Premium Reality Company Limited and Bliss
Alliance Global Limited, both indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company (collectively referred to as the
“Purchasers”), entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Ascot Real Estate Investments GP LLP, Aviva Life & Pensions UK
Limited and PSP Jessica Trustee Limited (collectively referred to
as the “Sellers”). Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
the Sellers agreed to sell, and the Purchasers agreed to
purchase, the entire interest of Barratt House Unit Trust, Barratt
House Nominee 1 Limited and Barratt House Nominee 2
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Subsidiaries”), which
holds the legal ownership of the property situated at Barratt
House, 341-349 Oxford Street, London W1, UK at a
consideration of Great British Pound 44,000,520 (equivalent to
approximately HK$426,805,000).

On 6 April 2023, completion of the acquisition had taken place
immediately following the entering into of the sale and
purchase agreement. Upon completion, the Company, through
the Purchasers, hold 100% equity interest in the Subsidiaries.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test in
accordance with HKFRS 3 and considered the property as a
single identifiable asset. Consequently, the Group determined
that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
(excluding cash and cash equivalents) acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset and concluded that the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RECOGNISED AT THE DATE OF
ACQUISITION

34. ULREIMIE A E)
RZE_=FWMARH > AREHES
& [ff B 2 & Premium Reality Company
Limited 5z Bliss Alliance Global Limited
(T AT EH 1) BAscot Real Estate
Investments GP LLP, Aviva Life & Pensions
UK Limited £2 PSP Jessica Trustee Limited
(s TERHSTILEE WS - RIEE
B  BARARLE EARAERE
Barratt House Unit Trust ~ Barratt House
Nominee 1 Limited #1 Barratt House
Nominee 2 Limited (4278 MtBAR1) B9
it MR UREE G WG
5341-3495% Barratt House ¥ 2 89 % &
R 8444000520 EE (HERK
& 426,805,000 7T) °

—E-FMANRH AR EEHR
%> WHBIEISTEH RZTHE > &R
BIEBE A RANE QT 100%BIARE o

FEREZRBEEBMBREERF 35
FERAEEMEDRIE > BTAMWE - K
BRsER A — B #AIEE - Fit
FEEBREWENGEE (FREHREEM
REFEER) WEFREATEERHE
RE—BAHREETR > LT HERD
7 WRRNEBNEEFR —BER

EWBARINEENMAR

HK$'000

BETT
Investment property KEME 425,248
Other receivables HthFEsR 2,723
Cash and cash equivalents HEMREEEIER 1,519
Other payables HitFE AR (2,685)
426,805

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition of subsidiaries: WEHBATIEENIRS AL 358 .
Consideration paid in cash DBREZAAE 426,805
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired wRTERERENES (1,519)
425,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which
includes the borrowings, net of bank deposits and cash, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
36A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AR E B IR MY EE

35. BEXAERER
FEBHAEBARETEERE  URFREE
EE TS ERIEERIETEEEREL
2 RARRNERHRREZBERT
&> BRREREAEE - FEFZE
FESRBR AKX HEE o

FEEZENEBRPRE (BEER
HRIRITERKRIRE) RAE QB RREM
#m (BREERITREREIEMHRE) ERK

FABDEFREMRABELERE - (FR1R
ANZ—8k7 EREREAMARBIL
EEZHEBARRE REBEEFZEH &
EEREBZARE - BITHMRURE
THEERNEOREERESE SN TEHE
EREBEREE -

36. EMTH
36A. TR THYEE
2023

ZEC=F bt St
HKS'000 HKS 000
BRTR BETT
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEESABZZERHEE 14732 18,866
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BATEESARMEZERGEZEEZ TR 272,456 275,820
Financial assets at amortised cost DR A A RN EHEE 1,720,233 2,097,071
Financial liabilities EREE
Amortised cost HEp A 2,939,876 2,671,603
36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36B. HFEAIGEEBREREE

POLICIES

Details of the Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), liquidity risk, and credit risk and impairment
assessment. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

ZETMIRZFRNZBERAMERR
E-AnFEsRIABAMZAREED
SRR (R P RERREER
®) ~ RBEEZ AR - E8RRREET
it o ARAMAREZST AR ZBERET!
mT - EEEHZRTARETEERSE
o UEREHRERENE S BV
Jitt
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. ERIT A (& ;%
36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36B. MFAMEEEHFERBE () =
POLICIES (CONTINUED) :
Market risk h 15 A B& -
(i) Currency risk (i) EEEE ﬁ

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in ZANEBBHEEMNR Z AN EIEIT > Fr
foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate MUEZERFHNFE o
fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and R¥R&EHI®R > AEB LB SEREINES
monetary liabilities, including intra-group balances at the end ¥UIINEZEREEREKEGE > &
of the reporting period that are denominated in currencies {EEBATEHRAEFHIREENT :
other than the functional currency of the relevant entities are

as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE f
2023 2022 2023 2022
—B==f —®-C —E==f o ok
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BT AR BETT
Group &8
HKS against RMB BEGARE 297 408 - -
JPY against HK$ AERZAE 73,297 77,658 - -
AUD against HK$ REG B 26,921 - - -
US$ against HK$ ETREE 225,403 246,590 - -
RMB against HK$ ARER B 477,964 616,561 - -
Intra-group balances KBARERER
HKS$ against RMB BESARE 102,306 103,784 1,206,307 1,204,395
THB against HK$ RF DB 122,285 110,616 - -
GBP against HKS HER A 469,332 - - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging  7s £ [ B Ail i 28 51 FE ¥ Sh B 5K o SAT »
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors BIEEBTERFASMNINERE > RS 1E
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging AEERZEEHPETEINERGHKIR o
significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arises.

2

59
wa
=3
B
>
He
ot
&
]
o

=-&C

BEES



N
[~
o

€207 LHOd3Y TYNNNY | QILIWIT INJWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% (2022:

1%) increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and 10% (2022:

10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against JPY, RMB, THB and

GBP. The respective percentages are the sensitivity rates used

when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key

management personnel and represent management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign

exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding

foreign currency denominated monetary items and also intra-

group balances denominated in foreign currencies and adjusts

their translation at the year end for the respective percentages

change in the exchange rates.

A positive number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss
or increase in equity (2022: an increase in post-tax profit or
equity) where HK$ weaken 1% (2022: 1%) against US$ and HK$
weaken 10% (2022: 10%) against JPY, RMB, THB and GBP. For a
1% (2022: 1%) strengthening of the HK$ against US$ and HK$
strengthening 10% (2022: 10%) against RMB, THB and GBP,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit or

AR E B IR MY EE

36. &M T A (&
36B. AR EIE B IR REK (48)

hi5m B (48)

() BEEERE (&

BRE D
TRHEFSLTEEHBERETEER LFH
BTFE1% (ZEBEZZF © 1%) URBER
HE - ARM - BN AFEER EA K
TREL10% (T4 : 10%) SURLE
REESEHREATRNEEEEAS
ERFEFTANSRELE  KXTEE
B EXRESE AN EE N E R T
e IRAEDTEFBELSIMNESERNRF
HEBEERMIMNESIENEBARE
Rk THMEXRZENEDLLNEE
FERAE o

TRAPEHRTEBERETEELS (Z
ZTTF 1% KREBAE - AR ~ Rk
MTEFEEZE10% ("5 : 10%) Ba
MR - ERAERETHMELR(Z
TITF 1% REARE - REBRMELE
FHE10% (T4 : 10%) BF > ¥i5F
FETEERBEEERFENEE M

equity, and the balances below would be negative. TotisE 2 8% o
2023 202
k- et ZEICE
HK$'000 HKS 000
BT BETT
Profit or loss i
HKS against RMB BERARKE (25) (34)
US$ against HK$ ETRABE 1337 1,549
AUD against HK$ R B 2,248 -
RMB against HK$ ARERBE 39,910 51,483
JPY against HK$ HEIR B 6,120 6,484
Other comprehensive income Hihn2mEksE
HK$ against RMB BEIARE 110,400 110,061
USS$ against HK$ ETRABE 652 611
THB against HK$ RFRABE (12,229) (11,062)
GBP against HK$ HER A 46,933 -

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

REEEENER  SRKESHTHEAR
HYSNEE B M R B AR M 0 B2 F 48K
ZHYE BRI 7 R AR Z R R ©



36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows

of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Group currently does not have an

interest rate hedging policy. However, the management

monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate fixed perpetual capital securities, bank deposits,
lease liabilities and borrowings (see notes 19, 22, 24 and 26 for
details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to its variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings (see notes 22 and 26 for details). The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly attributable to fluctuation of
HIBOR and prevailing interest rates offered by the PBOC and
MLR. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rates of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk. The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

36. EMT A (&
36B. MBEAIGEEEEREE ()

h iz BB (48)

(ii) FUFEE
RERENERARAETMTRAZREKIR
B EREH ST EESMmES 2 R o
265 [E B A B SRE PSR o 2AT
EEEGERMIMNFERRE > TEE
BEREREZEEPEEFNERAMKR

FEERESTHERPELES IR
TER HEaBREREKZATFET
KA GEBERMEEL19 22~ 24 % 26) ©
REBNTREFBRITERRERET
ReEREMEARK  GFBERMF2R
26) e AEBMMRERENXRERETESR
AR EBRITEAZERFE - HPEARIR
TRENRTEERZERBEERFE
HIEE) o ANEEBIBUR A R ERAIE
2E URERLVATFEBENERR
FEERNEHEBEMASHMNERR
HBEENAMEN RS ESRAREE—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on

the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative and

non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period.

The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments

outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding

for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis points)

fluctuation is used when reporting interest rate risk internally

to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

2023

36. &M T A (&
36B. AR EIE B IR REK (48)

i B (48)

(ii) FIFREE (&)

BRE D
TYXHHERERHIREAERMETE
RIEFTETAERSHRAZNFER
ST - MUDSTFBRNBERERK
AN EMTAEEEFAMKRIEE A
BHFEEEASERNERRFEA L
SORFEMMNEE (TS T T4 (508
F) o RREEBHMEXESIEAERE
B BNV T o

2022

—B-=f ZTICE
Change in basis points Change in basis points
B2 B2
+50 -50 +50 -50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETRT BETT BETT
Profit or loss (net of tax) A E (FH%) (5,995) 5,995 (2,529) 2,529

Numbers in bracket mean decrease in profit or increase in loss.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

BT AR o

REEEENER  SNESHHESR
ROF R E R IE R B AR FAF&K
B9 ELRR I A 2 BREE PO 7K R BY RLER o



36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTPL and

FVTOCI, and perpetual capital securities measured at FVTOCI.

For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock

Exchange, the management manages this exposure by

maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In

addition, the Group also invested in certain listed equity

securities and unquoted equity securities for long term strategic

purposes which had been designated as FVTOCI. The

management will closely monitor the price movement of the

securities and regularly review the performance and asset

allocation of the portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments and
perpetual capital securities had been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/
lower:

. the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2023 would decrease by approximately HK$1,473,000
(2022: post-tax profit would increase by approximately
HK$1,575,000) or increase by approximately HK$1,473,000
(2022: post-tax profit would decrease by approximately
HK$1,575,000), respectively, as a result of the changes in
fair value of listed equity securities classified as financial
assets at FVTPL; and

. the Group’s investment revaluation reserve would increase
by approximately HK$4,534,000 (2022: HK$4,185,000) or
decrease by approximately HK$4,534,000 (2022:
HK$4,185,000), respectively, as a result of changes in fair
value of listed equity securities and perpetual capital
securities measured at FVTOCI.

36. EFT A (&)
36B. MBEAIGEEEEREE ()

i BB (48)

(iii) &1 /3 B
FEESFSBEUAFEES ARG RIZ
ATEBEFAEMZAKESEZ LS
BAZSHNRATEBEFAEMEEUK
M EZERAERETS ZRERER
BRRE MRXZARERUARFEE
STABRENRAESTS > SEE
BBERABTERBHNREHEASRKE
IR o thoh > REBTRENRET
%%ﬁ%ammﬁtmﬁmﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁ
EABRATEESAEMEZENE °
ﬁ@%ﬁm%ﬁzﬁu#Zﬁ%ﬁ@’
WERS BREES 2 REKREENT

BRE D
TXHHERESRDRERS BRAAR
HERERRERE °

EXELTRATANERSH T’
10% (ZZB =4 :10%) » 8 :

- FKEEBBE_ZT_=%+7"AH8
=t+—HIEFENREB SN ONE
N4 B 11,473,000t (ZE ==
& A1,5750007T) SR DA E
#1,473,000c (Z B - _F : B
1,575,0007C) » RER A EAUA
FEEFABENEMEEN LS
RAFBSHSZ AT EEES ; &

s AEENKREGERZED GG
) BHEA4534000c(ZEZ_F ©
7 16 4,185,0007T ) 3R DA B
4534000C( Z B - —F . B
4,185,0007%) » RER LT R AE
FHNERATEES AHMEZAEA WS
HEPRAIE 485 2 AT EEEES) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and

maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance its operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The

management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$1,391,510,000 (2022: HK$121,285,000). Details of the
amounts utilised at the end of the reporting period are set out
in note 26.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the
contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial liabilities
and lease liabilities including interest that will accrue, with
reference to their respective contractual interest rate, and for
those variable-rate instruments, by using the appropriate
prevailing market rates at the end of the reporting period as
stated in their contracts.

AR E B IR MY EE

36. &M T A (&
36B. AR EIE B IR REK (48)

MEE & A

TEERESRER > SEBEEER
REEEERSEHNRERREEE
HEKY  AHEHFSEREES IR
KRS RENINTE - EEEEER
ITEMZERIR T R R E T BR324 o

NEBKBIRTEREARIEEZE
BERFE -M_B_=F+"A=+—8>
NEBBEAHAMERIENRZIEITER
%8 7 497 %1,391,510,000 c (Z & — =
F : A¥£121,285,0007T) ° MEREHEAREL
HHE RS ZFBERMNMIEE26 ©

FEBRITTEEZREBEREEGER
BREIHIE IR TR - TREREBARR
RemafNiiEafeiRiRmfEn
BHNEHEMHEET > MESHNTBENEG
EFERIBHFHNETR  HBREARS
HAR BRI TISHERME ©



36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

36. EMT A (&
36B. MBEAIGEEEEREE ()
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Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & B (58)
Within More than Total
Weighted 1yearor 1year hut undiscounted
average repayable less than More than financial Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years 5 years liabilities amounts
—ERE —FHE RASRE
IREFSHIE EEREE LERRE REHEE EHARLE RE(E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BETR
2023 - St}
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfTE &G E
and lease liabilities RHEEAE
Trade and other payables B A REMEMRE - 426634 109890 - 536524 536524
Lease liabilities fgak 494 1187 744 - 1931 1,853
Bank borrowings (note) ReTfam () 625 1885436 623733 160,640 2669809 2400694
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ FEfIFEIRRRIRER
shareholders - 2,658 - - 2,658 2,658
Total ek 2,315,915 734,367 160,640 3210922 2941729
2022 —s_
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfTESFEE
and lease liabilities RilEafE
Trade and other payables B A REMEMRE - 357,072 106,211 - 463283 463283
Lease liabilities HEafR 269 2,833 800 - 3,633 2,504
Bank borrowings (note) SRITTERR (L) 534 1050501 1115768 209261 2375530 2,201,793
Amounts due to non-controlling  FESIEIRRRIRER
shareholders - 6,527 - - 6,527 6,527
Total fag 1416933 1222779 209261 2848973 2674107
note:  The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are subject to change if ~ Mizsf: LRzt AT SHEEIEIEZSE ) BN I

changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “within 1 year or repayable on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$850,000,000 (2022: HK$900,000,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary

M=z SRR R RELEARE 2 G FIXEH

EEERELEY .
FREIEASNP > HFEETERERN
IRITERESE TREXRK—FREE
B R-Z=F+"H=+—H">
ZERTEFRNKRBDREABK
850,000,000 ( —Z & = Z— £ : B &
900,000,0007T) ° & & X & & 89 BF #5 4K
T BEEMRARITAKAETERD

rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the ER#EERIIAERE - AATEEMAE 2%;
Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid within ZFRITEFBNRBEHERE—FEARAR
one year after the end of the reporting period in accordance EEMiIFEMSZTETERNHHEE - §
with the scheduled repayment dates set outintheloan X EIE W T R H 4B 5 & B & Eﬂ
agreements, and the total undiscounted cash outflows 903,827,000tc( — & — — &F: & & -
amounted to HK$903,827,000 (2022: HK$948,871,000). 948,871,000 JT) °© .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties

default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial

losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are

primarily attributable to trade receivables, leases receivables,

deposits paid and other receivables, loans advanced to joint

ventures and bank deposits. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks

associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables and lease receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 29% (2022: 34%)
and 66% (2022: 68%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the trading and manufacturing
business segment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group also has policies in place to ensure
the new customers/tenants are with sound credit quality.

In addition, the Group performs ECL assessment on debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired individually.
The remaining debtors are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration of grouping of internal credit rating
by reference to past due information and relevant credit
information, and forward-looking macroeconomic information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

AR E B IR MY EE

36. &M T A (&
36B. AR EIE B IR REK (48)

15 & /B B3R B ik (B 5T (i
FERRERFTEENIZHFENH
BREHMGESERENMBREINAE
R AEENERRRMOTERER
BZRWM - HERKWNR  ENfRESR
MEMBUR  BXFREREURIR
THEM - AEB L EFA EAER AN
Hits EA &GN LUBREESHEE
RN EE R -

B S REIKRZ R HE KT
AEBEREERR ) LTEREES
RYEXEFEHBH > BFKAERRAE
ERAREENEZEWERFARZED 5
#229% (ZBZZ4F 1 34%) R 66% (Z &
T 68%) o

~ABLOERNEERRE  cAEEEER
EZKEBREEEEGEREKREES
Zo REMERFERERA > ~ER
ERREEEND R LGHEEES
FHfEEER -

5 > ZEBBER/EFEEARKRMERE
HEARENEBAETHEREEHRER
atih o BR FEBAEGRSEZEHNER
LZEBEABEHTRNDE > 2EE
HESMERERER  UKERBE
RS20 55 BN Al 1T BRI R M R R A
EE BEEEEHEEZDE  UHERF
HHER R 7 4 BB A AN E R R RS
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Deposits paid and other receivables

The management of the Group regularly review and assess the

credit quality of the counterparties. The Group uses 12m ECL to

assess the loss allowance of deposits paid and other receivables

since these amounts are neither past due nor with fixed

repayment terms, and there has not been a significant increase

in credit risk since initial recognition. In this regard, the

directors of the Company consider that the Group'’s credit risk is

not significant.

Loans advanced to joint ventures

The Group regularly monitors the business performance of joint
ventures. The Group’s credit risks in these balances are
mitigated through the value of the assets held by these entities
and the power to jointly control the relevant activities of these
entities. The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition.
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
assessed the ECL for loans advanced to joint ventures are
insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

Bank balances (including fixed bank deposits)

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The Group assessed
12m ECL for bank balances by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

36. EMT A (&
36B. MBEAIGEEEEREE ()

15 & b Ko i B 5T 1 (48)

E 1 1R:& = f1 2 fth &K AR 7%
FEBEEEE RS MTEHF T
FEER BHRZEFRUERREE AR
TEEEEMFER > BEERKRBEMR
fESREN AR N - AEEER121E
B TaHRE B 5 18 UET 5 H th FE UL AR R BY
BRI - Rt ZRABRERRATE
EREERRILEREK

BEFEELE
AEETHERSELENEHRR
AEETELEREPNERRERBAE
EERFANEENEEMERZESIE
L ERNAEREENNE R - BIE
EBR#%A > BYBRERE ZESENE
ARBIEEBZEM  BRBEEZS
=+ "HA=+—HMZZEZ=-H
+ZB=1+—BLEE > mEEFEA
BYFEETENTEREESEREX
F LR IEE R o

RITFE (BIFIRTTE R 7 7%)
HRRZHFIIREEREETREE
ERSEETRNIRIT > ELLRITHER
NEERRAR - ~EBSZHINEE
FB AT AR 1 48 25 R RO AR FE 15 A ST AR AR BY
BOMERNBRIGENBRBRNGES
fER 1218 B TR E B R IEH IRITERRIF
¥ o
BREERBRETREABEEIRNE
FIRITHORBERS > FEFELHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AR E B IR MY EE

36. &M T A (&
36B. AR EIE B IR REK (48)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

15 & B B% R ik (B 5F 1 (48)

FEBNASEERRTREEUATS

ym .
8

Internal credit rating Description Trade and lease receivables Other financial assets
PEMEETR fiid B A RIBERYIRR HitSmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
90 HEFNENRRE  BEXREFMAHRE SHEMEERE — LERRHNEESHE
tEESRE
Watch list Debtor usually settle after due date Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
BERRE EHEARERAREES 2HRHEERE — LERRHEEEHE
tEESRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL—
initial recognition through information developed internally credit-impaired not credit-impaired
or external resources
a2 FEREEEBRNNANMIERELNERGEDEAR 20RBEEEE— LHEREEHE
1 tEESRE TEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL—
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B BTEERREERENEE SHEMEERE — 2IREBEEHE—
E8RE FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off  Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
6] BRREBAERREMBRENER  AAEETEERK  SERNH SRR

[EIBYATAE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. AT A (&) ;f;
36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36B. MFAMEEEHFERBE () =
o
POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEERBES G (&) g
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s T&RFHJIAEEASHEEAHNEER |
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: [ » B2 TEER(E BR80T ¢
External 2023 2022
credit Internal 12mor —ECCE “ECCF
Notes  rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
Wi SMBEETR AERETAR RERN2BEBEEEE HRRE(E ARE(E
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

BRI ABTn ARTR BT

Financial assets at amortised cost

MBERSARNEREE
Trade receivables and 21 N/A (note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 16,320 14952
lease receivables @R (i) 2HBHEERE (B5:T)
BARYERT K N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 21,263 26,789
R FER  GAR 2EBRGEER(ENNG)
N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 345 37,928 3070 44811
&R BzeE LHBBEEHE (ERHE)
Deposits paid and 21 NA (note 1) 12m ECL 70,494 53,940
other receivables TER (HzE1) REAEHEEHE
BiREEH
H AR
Loans advanced to 18 NA (note 1) 12m ECL 409,754 364,268
joint ventures TER (FffE1) REREHEESSE
BIFRELE
Bank halances 22 AaltoAa3 N/A 12m ECL 349,157 281,376
RITHER Aal EAa3 B LERFHEESR
AltoA3 N/A 12m ECL 827,691 690,279
AMEM B LERFHEESR
BaaltoBaal  N/A 12m ECL 24697 1,201,545 661739 16333%
BaalZBaa3 L ER REREHEESE
notes: BifeE
1 For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past due information 1. RANESRREETRS  ALEGEEARER TG
to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. EERBESBEVEREIRE—EARLEH o
Not past due/No fixed repayment terms
mBH BEEERER
2023 2022
ZEC=F St
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Deposits paid and other receivables B R S E AR 70,494 53,940
Loans advanced to joint ventures BEFEERE 409,754 364268
"
B
S
He
a
5
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Ll



N
N
o

€207 LHOd3Y TYNNNY | QILIWIT INJWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NIl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
36B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
notes: (Continued)

2. For trade and lease receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
accordance with HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the
expected credit losses on those balances by using a collective assessment, grouped by
internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit rating for
its customers. The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and leases receivables which are assessed based on collective assessment
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). As at 31 December 2023, debtors with significant
outstanding balances with gross carrying amount of HK$32,103,000 (2022: HK$29,859,000)
was assessed individually.

36. M I A (&)
36B. AR EIE B IR REK (48)

15 & Ja B3 B iR B ¥ 1 (48)

it : (&)

2 REAREEEWERTE  REEEHBREEN
g3t AEMRAML S At B2 BBRNELSR
NEREE - REAKEEGRAETAAENEHA
S > AEBERESTEREUABEL IR EN
BERBNRBERSA

EAXEANEEAREEZ B0 AEFAEY
EEBANEETR - TRIZEEME S RLERT K
HERKIKRTEERRNEN  ZEE R EBRIK
HERKRDNREZPBRHEEFBANMA ST
(E\EERE) FHIG - RZSEZ=F+=H
—t+-HEGEAFXEREHRRAREEAB
32,103,0007C (ZE = Z 4 : #129,859,0007%) A&

BAEERTMG -
Gross carrying amount MEIRE(E
Trade receivables
B R REWERRR
2023 2022
ZEC-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Internal credit rating A EETR
Low risk BRR 7186 9,553
Watch list BryE 6,629 3144
Doubtful 7R 2,505 2,255
16,320 14,952

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated. No loss allowance was
recognised in the profit or loss as the management considers the amount is immaterial.

36C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified professional valuers or other service
providers to perform the valuations. The management works
closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The management reports
the findings to the Board of Directors of the Company regularly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets and liabilities.

L BERDERREARRRERNBERERE
MEQRMEE  WRBRTEEBSMERZ NG
AN ERBEE - YR HEEEEREY » MUE
REMEERBANERERGUEN BN EER
BATBLAEX > A BRI RER o

36C. TR TREAFEEHE

ATFEEFEMGERE
EEEBETERERURESENGKE
RMMAFEEFENBARE -

EAFEENERNATEER > &
EEFEERATRAIHRNE - HES
—RABARE  ~AEBZEBEIGE
BEEGEMSE MR HERETH
B BEEEAGLEMERSE  HEE
RABUSENGEESNMBAZER -
EEEEHRAREEERETAEGER
mREENaRATEERSNRE -



36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

36. &R T A (48
36C. TR T AATFEENE (48)

AT EE B ERE (8
TXREEMANEESESREER
& BN AT EENGES ERBARH
BOETRL o

FEBEFTTHMEEREHBEUSEK
SHARNATEESE TRIEEHEH
THEEZATERESANEH (B
Mms > BfEERERRANEAZE -
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Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various financial assets and
liabilities is disclosed below.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
2023

-g-=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—4A BRA BRI ]
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFEEHABLEZ
EREE
Listed equity securities LHREARES 14732 - - 14,732
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRATEESARM
2HEMEZEZTR
Listed equity securities LHRRARES 227 - - 227
Unlisted equity securities JE LR AES - - 227113 227113
Perpetual capital securities HRHRERES - 45116 - 45,116
Total aze 14,959 45,116 227,113 287,188
2022
k=St
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R5 FRA B=RA k]
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEHARZZ
EREE
Listed equity securities LHRAES 18,866 - - 18,866
Equity instruments at FVTOCI ¥ ATEE A HA
PENEZEGTR
Listed equity securities LHRAES 259 - - 259
Unlisted equity securities JEEmRAES - - 233,966 233,966
Perpetual capital securities mRAEARE S - 41,595 - 4159
Total ] 19,125 41,595 233,966 294,686

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 duringthe FR>» F— F-RFE =K ZRHE
year. B (EMEE o

LEHRAEFHSEEEBARX SRS
SN ARTISEABEE A TEE -

BrHEsExXIHEE N

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with

&= |

reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock

exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
36C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)
The fair values of perpetual capital securities are determined
based on indicative prices provided by the dealers and brokers.
In addition, the Group makes comparison of the indicative
prices with the prices obtained from pricing services providers
to substantiate the indicative prices of these securities. The key
inputs used in the valuation models are the interest rate data,
which are observable at the end of the reporting period. The
objective of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value
estimation that reflects the price of the financial instrument at
the reporting date, which would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly
comprise investment properties located in Hong Kong held by
the investees and take into account the discount for lack of
marketability. The valuation of the properties was principally
arrived at using the comparison method, in which property is
valued on the assumption that the property can be sold with
the benefit of vacant possession. Comparison based on prices
realised on actual sales of comparable properties is made for
similar properties in the similar location.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets

AR E B IR MY EE

36. EMTH (&
36C. EMTAAFEEAE (48)

ATFEEFEMGERE (8)
BEAFTHHERBENKABERESFH
AT EERBEHE RELAPTRHE
BT ERERE - I > sEBRIET
MERATEERFHEDF LESH
EMMUELEER > UL XKABERESFHIIE
THERBETRE HEEXANEE
WA RHYE > ZHBEREH
REFAIUHASE - HEEANBERRE
ENARREMTAERSAHEFHS
BHENURATEEMSERNATEE
& o

EEFLHTRAESHNATEEESE
HREENTISEE  TECEMRRE
AEFENEBREVMENTIREE
REBHERZHIGEMEL TN - ¥%
HETEZERLERE  BRZIMERS
HEEFNMEHOYEGE - ERER
AR LY E RN EEEUN
UEBRNERHEESRME -

FABZEEZRAEEERGEMBR
RALBHERSARNEMEREER
TRBEZIREERZEQATEEES -

EMEEF=RNATEFENHER

Equity

instruments

at FVTOC]

HAFEEHA

Hitn2Ez

2HEETA

HKS 000

BETT

Balance at 1 January 2022 RZEZ"F—R—B#% 256,212
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income R EM2EINE R ER 2 3518 (22,246)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+_A=1+—H%&H 233,966
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income ~ REt2E NG AR 2 F 4518 (6,853)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZEB-_=F+_A=+—A%&& 227113




36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

36C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets (Continued)

Included in other comprehensive income is loss of

approximately HK$6,853,000 (2022: HK$22,246,000) related to

unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of the

reporting period.

The majority of the Group’s investments are valued based on
quoted market information or observable market data. A small
percentage, 1.5% (2022: 1.5%), of total assets of the Group, is
based on estimates and recorded as financial assets with Level
3 fair value measurements. Whilst such valuations are sensitive
to estimates, it is believed that changing one or more of the
assumptions to reasonably possible alternative assumptions
would not have a big impact on the Group'’s financial positions.

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

36. &R T A (48
36C. TR T AATFEENE (48)

EHMEEF=RNATEHSENRALE
(£8)

Hith 2 mE = N B854 E 86,853,000 7T
MEBE(ZS Z ZF: #%22246,000
7o) > MR EHRGEBRAENRAT
EBEAHEMEEREZIFLTEET
BER -

NEBMAIBONIEERRERETIHE
ERAERNTHBBRETEHEEN - &
REBEBEEMRNLER1.5% (ZTEZZ
F115%) > HIRBEARERFE=RANEE
EERAR - IHEEH G RIZEER
B> EE—EXZERILBEELESER
AREMNHKERRT > HEFATHEAER
MR REREARTE °

37. MEGRBHEENARZHIR

TREFDLTHAEERETHEENEGR
21> AERSMIFRSEE - BMEF
BEENERERPERERE » HRK
WHREERE  RELEENGEERER
ERPERDESRMETINESRM -

(2]

Lease Dividend Interest

Borrowings liabilities payable payable Total

f&m HEARH FEfIRRS ERFIS el

HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

At1 January 2022 RZE__%—F—-H 1,859,222 5916 - 1728 1,866,866
Financing cash flows MERER 365,056 (3212)  (184,048) (52438) 125358
Finance costs I 0N - 106 - 57,728 57,834
Dividends recognised as distribution ERZADRZKE = = 184,048 = 184,048
Currency realignment EXAE (15,958) (306) - - (16,264)
At 31 December 2022 RZE__#+”_RB=+-H 2208320 2504 - 7018 2217842
Financing cash flows MERER 191,780 (2817)  (117361) (133744 (62,142)
Finance costs 7B Im - 67 - 136978 137,045
New lease entered k) - 2122 - - 2122
Dividends recognised as distribution ERDADRZKE - - 117,361 - 117,361
Currency realignment XA 3252 (23) - - 3229
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+"B=+—-H 2,403,352 1,853 - 10,252 2415457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 38. ZATIMBIRRARKHG

OF THE COMPANY

2023

ZE-= 22
HKS'000 HKS 000
BT BETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEM= 2,257,900 2,366,100
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BRERZRE 496,532 507,157
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,769 793
Investments in subsidiaries MBRBEZEKE 1,003,716 790,943
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEESTARMEZERGEZEE TR 67,707 63,539
Amounts due from subsidiaries P B /A B BR R 5,245,724 5,296,810
Deferred tax assets IEERBEE 20,809 16,898
9,094,157 9,042,240
Current assets MENEE
Properties held for sale FHENE 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H MR 4910 3,940
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFABGEZEHMEE 14732 18,866
Fixed bank deposits with more than BFAZERBIH 2 EHRITER
three months to maturity when raised 26,877 31,107
Cash and cash equivalents RITERERE 736,843 939,343
786,170 996,064
Current liabilities mEafR
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMIRN 21,184 10,802
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,052 800
Borrowings — due within one year B — R—ENEH 1,747,680 950,000
1,769,916 961,602
Net current (liabilities) assets NEEE (BR) FHE (983,746) 34462
Total assets less current liabilities wEERTEEE 8,110,411 9,076,702
Non-current liabilities EREAR
Other payables HAFE(IIR 42,790 52,727
Lease liabilities HEaE 731 -
Borrowings — due after one year ER—R—FRIH 307,228 895,800
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries MiBATZ REBH 339,731 277,345
690,480 1,225,872
7,419,931 7,850,830
Capital and reserves B REE
Share capital iz 381,535 381,535
Reserves B 7,038,396 7,469,295
7,419,931 7,850,830
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for Bf#EsRRENVN-_E-_WE=/+MHE
issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2024 and are EEEHERESERT THTHAL

signed on its behalf by: RS
CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AUDIT COMMITTEE
FE - BRI TR BRZZEETE
MR. LIU LIT CHI MR. CHENG YUK WO
BB %L ERERA L



38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 38. AT MFEIRRARKEHE (B
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
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MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVES EATEEZEE
Property Investment
revaluation revaluation Accumulated
reserve reserve profits Total
MESGEHE REB(GHE REEf 4t
HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT T BT BT T
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—#—HF—H 448 (40074) 7547584 7,507,958
Profit for the year KEEHF - - 147,703 147,703
Fair value losses on investments in AT EEAEMZ ARG
equity instruments at FVTOC ZEHETRZ ATEESE - (12,218) - (12,218)
Total comprehensive (expense) FEERE (RH) WEeEE
income for the year - (12,218) 147,703 135,485

Investment revaluation reserve HERATEESAHMZE
reclassified to accumulated profits Wz T EBEHDEE
upon disposal of equity instruments  ERsHEF 2 R EE GG

at FvTOC - (702) 702 .
Dividends recognised as distribution BERRAKZRZE = - (174,148) (174,148)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZHE+ZA=+—H 448 (52,994) 7,521,841 7,469,295
Loss for the year AEERE - - (317,706) (317,706)
Fair value gain oninvestmentsin R ATEESARMZERE

equity instruments at FVTOCI ZHEHETRZ AT EERT = 4,168 - 4,168
Total comprehensive income AEEZENE () 458

(expense) for the year - 4168 (317,706) (313,538)
Dividends recognised as distribution BERASRKZRE - - (117,361) (117,361)
At 31 December 2023 RIE-=F+"A=+—H 448 (48,826) 7,086,774 7,038,396
39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 39. FAMALTIREFIA
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) BABALTERSR

The Group had no material significant transactions with related Z<£EE W EHARIEA AN TE]ITE RIS ©
parties.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (B) TEEEASHE

The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group F@y» KEBFESEBEASZEHMNT :
during the year were as follows:

2023 2022
-8z =% =Stk
HKS'000 HKS 000
BETT BETT
Short-term benefits FEHRER 53,679 51,444
Post-employment benefits BERAKER 3,663 3353
57,342 54797
The emoluments of directors and key executives are BERIBITHRASZHEMIIBEEME -
HE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to EEREARERTHIZERETE o #
the performance of individuals and market trends. u
1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R & B4 75 3 2= Mt 5=

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

40. X EMBAE

A _E_=F+"A=+—8Bk_-%

December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows: __HF+Z“A=+—H' ARTEZEE
MEBATELRWMT :
Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
M BRTLE FARREERTRIEE/
HWEAREE R,/ E ka/sifEs HMESZILE TERH
Directly Indirectly
B it
2023 2022 2023 2022
Z$-=f TE--f  TZECZE CECCE
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Property investment
&# 71%100,0007 NERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - - Investment holding
BERRAG &H 1 9,5007T REZR
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
REERAE &4 A189,5007T NERE
Bright Ocean Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100  Food and beverage
&% A15100007C £
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Money lending
AIEMBERAR X 711,000,000 75 CEES
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - - Provision of nominees
services
Bl (REB) BRAR &4 Bl1m s EIN o
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
EEMERRAE &4 2007 NERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
&8 A 2007T NERE
Global Access Group Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 - - - Investment holding
&8 BT RERR
Golden Harbour International Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100  Property investment
BEERERA B BT NERE
Harvest Gate Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 - - Property investment
SERERRAH & B2 MERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Property investment
REREERAR &4 Bl NERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Investment holding
REXEARAT &H 1007 REZR
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = - 90 90  Investment holding
=N &4 1007 REZR



40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

40. FEMEAT (8)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
L BRTLE FATNABEARIEE
WBARZE Rk, fe# /e EREFZILH TEER
Directly Indirectly
it
2023 2022 2023 2022
—¥-zfF T3 C st St S b3
% % % %
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
BBEIRERAH & HBE1007T REER
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
ERERAR & BT REZR
Joyce King Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - - Investment holding
KEERAF &8 BB REZR
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Property investment
BEERAF &8 B 2007T NERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited
BEIEELERAR B 71%10,000,0007T REER
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
Limited
BRIEXERERAR & 7 72,0000007 nERE
Liu Chong Hing Property Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Property management
and Agency Limited
BRIENXEERREERAT &4 711,000,000 75 NEER
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100  Property investment
&4 BT NERE
Noble Wealth Venture Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - - - Investment holding
& BELT REER
One-Eight-One Hospitality Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Limited management
& BELT EEEEREE
One-Eight-One Lobby Café Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Food and beverage
&4 A1100007 £
Queen Profit International Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 83.75 - - Investment holding
Investment Limited
HHERREBRAR &4 AHE615407T REZR
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 = - 100 100  Property management
Company Limited
ERMEEEERAR & 7110,0007T MEER
Royal Best Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - - Investment holding
SEREERAE BB BB REER

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

40. FEMBAE (&)

= A
A

A 75 W R Bt 5E

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary Notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B ATE BREILE FARBEERTRIEE/
WEARSE Wi i/ EE T /RS B wdin] TERH
Directly Indirectly
B Mk
2023 2022 2023 2022
it —§-zf T3 C
% % % %
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - - Hotel operation
BILERERAT &% Bn BEEE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 100 60 Investment holding
EEREARAT &8 A0 REER
Strong Zone International Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - - Investment holding
SHERERAR &8 Bl1m RER
Supreme Stone Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100  Investment holding
HERERRAE &4 BB1n RERR
Top New Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
WHRERRAR X #1007 REER
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
& #2007 RE#ER
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRARAT &% BT REER
Trend Able Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
ERRERRAR B BELT RERR
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
EMRERRAR &4 A1 REER
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - - Investment holding
BHREERAR &4 B RERR
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
BRIETERAR X 712,0000007T NERE
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property (i) PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited
BlEEEREHEERERAR e 7 1500,000,000 7T NEERE
Foshan Top New Property (i) PRC HK$612,500,000 - - 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited
BlhHEEHEREERAT e 71 612,500,000 7 UES:
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i) PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100  Property investment
Consultancy Limited
ENHEREEAAERAT hE 718,5000007T NERE



40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

40. FEMEAT (8)

Place of Issued
incorporation or ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary Notes operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B ATE BETEE FATNABEARIEE
WEARSE st ik fes /RS EREFZILH TEER
Directly Indirectly
Mk
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZBZ=f T —®-=f —2_—f
% % % %
Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i) PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100  Property management
Management Company Limited
BNBERYZERERAR HE #%1,00000075 NEER
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i) PRC RMB65,370,000 - - 51.54 5154  Manufacturing of
Company Limited magnetic materials
FRUSHEEMEBRAR HE AR 653700007 RIGHNE AL
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong (i) PRC US$34,600,000 - - 100 100  Property investment
Hing Property Development
Company Limited
LEEAEAERMEREBRAR e 34,600,000 %7 NERE
Choengmon Real Estate Company Thailand THB400,100,000 - - 100 100 Hotel operation
Limited
RE 400,100,000 &k BEEE
Eagle Venture General Partners UK GBP100 - - 100 - Investment holding
Limited
HE 10083 REZR
Barratt House Unit Trust Jersey (GBP56,093,489 = - 100 - Property investment
ERS 56,093 489 8% RERR
Bliss Alliance Company Limited British Virgin Islands UssL - - 100 - Investment holding
ERRYHE 137 RERR
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ UssL 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong
HEREBRAR EBRUHE/BE 1£5% RERR
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
Hong Kong
AERUBE/EE 10057 REZK
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - - Share investment
Hong Kong
EBRUME/BE 1000%7 ki RE
Earnest Wealth Company Limited British Virgin Islands Uss1 - - 100 - Investment holding
ERRYHE 1% REER
Premium Realty Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - - 100 - Investment holding
ERRYHE 1%7% RERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority of
these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

AR E B IR MY EE

40. FEMBAE (&)

EXRR HEEEEEHNEEREKX
REZAERNBATRREEHFINE
Ko-ERRH ARHEHEHMMBATE
o AIRRER R

BEEB AT
B o

RAEREHER > sRFAHBEHMERE
EMEFrBEANMBAE - ZFME
NE)RREHEREBEE - LEWE
AR EEZEFHRFIIWMT

BESFRETEMER

Number of subsidiaries
HEARHE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2023 2022
TBER TRERNE ZEC=H —B_C
Hotel operation and management PRC 1 1
BETERER ]
Investment holding British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong 13 12
RELR HBRUEE /B3
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
WERE &%
Inactive Hong Kong/PRC 7 8
BEXH &4,/ HE
notes: Mgk

(i) The companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.
(i) The company is non-wholly owned sino-foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

(iiiy  Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group does not have non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have individually material non-controlling interests.

RAPERIZIERELE o
RAPERIZ P EELERF o

() ZZA8
(i) ZZFRA
(iif) E"ZIS
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